FY 2018

ANNUAL TAX INCREMENT FINANCE STATE OF ILLINOIS
REPORT COMPTROLLER
SUSANA A. MENDOZA

Name of Municipality:  Village of Romeoviile Reporting Fiscal Year: 2018
County: Will Fiscal Year End: 4/30/2018
Unit Code: 099/107/32
| TiF Administrator Contact Information

First Name: Kirk Last Name: Openchowski

Address: 1050 W. Romeo Road Title; Village Treasurer

Telephone: (815) 886-5250 City: Romeoville Zip: 60446
E-mail-

required kopenchowski@ romeoville.org

| attest to the best of my knowledge, that this FY 2018 report of the redevelopment project area(s)

in the City/Village of: Romeoville

or Industrial Jobs Recovery Law [65 ILCS 5/11-74.6-10 et. seq.].

is complete and accurate pursuant to Tax Increment Allocation Redevelopment Act [65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-3 et. seq.] and

75‘\/0'14/\%/1/’// /2o "//>'

Written sEnature of TI¥ Administrator Date

Section 1 (65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-5 (d) (1.5) and 65 ILCS 5/11-74.6-22 (d) (1.5)")

FILL OUT ONE FOR EACH TIF DISTICT

Name of Redevelopment Project Area Date Designated Date Terminated
Marquette Center Redevelopment Project 6/6/1989
Downtown Redevelopment Project Area 1/10/2005
Romeo Road Redevelopment Project Area 9/19/2007
Gateway North Upper Redevelopment Project Area 5/3/2017
Gateway South Lower Redevelopment Project Area 5/3/2017
Bluff Road Redevelopment Project Area 1/17/2018
Independence Boulevard Redevelopment Project Area 1/17/2018

*All statutory citations refer to one of two seclions of the lllinois Municipa!l Code: The Tax Increment Allocation

Redevelopment Act [65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-3 et. seq.] or the Industrial Jobs Recovery Law [65 ILCS 5/1

1-74.6-10 et. seq.)




SECTION 2 [Sections 2 through 5 must be completed for gach redevelopment project area listed in Section 1.]
FY 2018

Name of Redevelopment Project Area {below):
Romeoville Downtown TIF
Primary Use of Redevelopment Project Area": Combined/Mix
* Types include: Central Business District, Retail. Other Commercial, Industrial, Residential, and Combination/Mixed.
Commercial/industrial
It "Combination/Mixed" List Component Types: /Residential/Retait
Under which section of the Illinois Municipal Code was Redevelopment Project Area designated? (check one):
Tax increment Allocation Redevelopment Act X
Industrial Jobs Recovery Law
Please utilize the information below to properly label the Attachments.
52l O T RS . A DR T L e e [ == [ W TP No Yes
Were there any amendments to the redevelopment plan, the redevelopment project area, or the State Sales Tax Boundary? [65
ILCS 5/11-74.4-5 (d} (1) and 5/11-74.6-22 (d) {1 X
M yes. please enclose 1 mendment (labeled Attachment A
Certification of the Chief Executive Officer of the municipality that the municipality has complied with all of the requirements of the
Act during the preceding fiscal year. [65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-5 {d) (3) and 5/11-74.6-22 {d) (3)) X
Please e se the CEQ Certification (labeled Atta ent B
Opinion of legal counse! that municipality is in compliance with the Act. [65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-5 (d) (4} and 5/11-74.6-22 (d) {4)]
Please enclose the Legal Counsel Opinion {labeled Attachment C). X
Statement setling forth all aclivities undertaken in furtherance of the objectives of the redevelopment plan, including any project
implemenied and a description of the redevelopment activities. [65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-5 (d) (7) (A and B) and 5/11-74.6-22 (d) (7) (A X
and B})
If yes, ple - ) 85 Statement (ia Attachment D).
Were any agreements enlered into by the municipality with regard to the disposition or redevelopment of any property within the
redevelopment project area or the area within the State Sales Tax Boundary? [65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-5 (d} (7) (C) and 5/11-74.6-22 (d) X
7y {(C)}
If &5, plEasa & SE qréegementis) (1a _l;-'_—‘_l' Attachment
Is there additional information on the use of all funds received under this Division and steps taken by the municipality lo achieve the
objectives of the redevelopment plan? [65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-5 (d) {7) (D) and 5/11-74.6-22 (d} (7) (D}] X
If yes, please enclose the Additional Infarmation {lab Attachment FJ.
Did the municipality's TIF advisors or consultants enter into contracts with entities or persons that have received or are receiving
Payments financed by tax increment revenues produced by the same TIF? [65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-5 (d) (7) (E) and 5/11-74.6-22 (d) (7) X
(E)]
i yes, please enclose the conlract{s) or description of the contract 5} {labeled Attachment G).
Wera there any reports or meeting minutes submitled 1o the municipality by the joint review board? [65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-5 (d) (7) (F)
and 5/11-74.6-22 (d) (7) (F)] X
If yes, please enclgse the Joint Review Board Report (labeled Attachment Hj.
Were any obligations issued by the municipality? [65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-5 (d) (8) (A) and
5/11-74.6-22 (d) (8) (A}] X
If yes, please enclose any Official Statement (labeled Attachment I). If Attachment | is answered yes, then the Analysis
7] =1 D gitgC e anc (goges Arrs l{]_“_" i
An analysis prepared by a financial advisor or underwriter setting forth the nature and term of obligation and projected debt service
including required reserves and debt coverage. [65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-5 (d) (8) (B) and 5/11-74.6-22 (d) (8) (B} X
If attachment | is yes, then Analysis MUST be attached and {labeled Attachment J).
Has a cumutative of $100,000 of TIF revenue been deposited inlo the special tax allocation fund? 65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-5 {d} {2) and
5/11-74.6-22 (d) (2) X
If yes, please enclose Audited financial statements of the special tax allocation fund
(labegled Attachment K.
Cumulatively, have depasits of incremental taxes revenue equal to or greater than $100,000 been made into the special tax
allocation fund? [65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-5 (d) (9) and 5/11-74.6-22 (d) (9)]
I yes, the audit report shall contain a letter from the independent certified public accountant indicating compliance or X
noncompliance with the requirements of subsection (q) of Section 11-74.4-3 (labeled Attachment L),
A list of all intergovernmental agreements in effect to which the municipality is a part, and an accounting of any money transferred
or received by the municipality during that fiscal year pursuant to those intergovernmental agreements. [65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-5 (d) X
(10)




SECTION 3.1 - (65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-5 (d)(5){(a){b){d)) and (65 ILCS 5/11-74.6-22 (d) (5)(a)(b)(d))
Provide an analysis of the special tax allocation fund.

FY 2018
TIF NAME: Romeoville Downtown TIF
Special Tax Allocation Fund Balance at Beginning of Reporting Period | § 83,973 |
Revenue/Cash S LR
Receipts f Totals of
SOURCE of Revenue/Cash Receipts: gz'p ?“or Revenue/Cash
Repo rt?: Year Receipts for life
porting of TIF % of Total
Property Tax Increment $ 259,321 | $§ 2,091,092 4%
State Sales Tax Increment 0%
Local Sales Tax Increment 0%
State Utility Tax Increment 0%
Local Utility Tax Increment 0%
Interest 5 50,111 0%
Land/Building Sale Proceeds 5 725,000 1%
Bond Proceeds 5 15,344,329 30%
Transfers from Municipal Sources 5 125276 | $ 590,786 1%
Private Sources 0%
Other: Transfer from Marquette TIF - $1,300,000, Athletic Center Naming
Rights & Sponsarships - $100,000, Athletic Center Rental Income - $56,400,
Athletic Center Property Tax Reimbursements - $29,999, Com Ed Power Line
Reimbursement -$14,120, Sign Reimbursement - $2,254 5 2,102,773 | $ 33,108,174 64%
All Amount Deposited in Special Tax Allocation Fund |8 2,487,370 |
Cumulative Total Revenues/Cash Receipts 1% 51,907,492 | 100%|
Total Expenditures/Cash Disbursements (Carried forward from % 2,248,714
Section 3.2)
Transfers to Municipal Sources
Distribution of Surplus
Total Expenditures/Disbursements {$ 2,248,714 |
$ 238,656
Net/tncome/Cash Receipts Over/(Under) Cash Disbursements
FUND BALANCE, END OF REPORTING PERIOD* B 322,629 |

* If there is a positive fund balance at the end of the reporting period, you must complete Section 3.3



SECTION 3.2 A- (65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-5 (d) {5) {c} and 65 ILCS 5/11-74.6-22 (d} {S)(c))

FY 2018
TIF NAME: Romeoville Downtown TIF
ITEMIZED LIST OF ALL EXPENDITURES FROM THE SPECIAL TAX ALLOCATION FUND
{by category of permissible redevelopment project costs }
PAGE 1
Category of Permissible Redevalopment Cost [65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-3 {q) and 65 ILCS 5/11-74.6-10
{0} Amounts Reporting Fiscal Year
1. Cost of studies, surveys, development of plans, and specifications. Implementation and H
adminisiration of the redevelopment plan, statf and professional service cost.
Design & Engineering - Downtown Sita Improvements - 14,891
Consulting Services 813
Athletic & Event Center Storage Building Plannng & Design 10,421
§ 26,124
2. Annual adrinistrative cost.
Audit Services . 825
3 825
3. Cost of marketing sites.
[ g
4. Property assembly cosi and site preparation costs.
Builidng Bamalition - Car Lot & Dentist Office 165,299
Downtown Outiot Improvements 57,307
Edward Athletic and Event Centar Property Taxes 28,197
|17 Atexander Circle Property Tax Bill (Car Wash Sita) 7,448
Edward Athletic and Event Center Rent Reimbursemant 28,800
Uptown Square Monumant Sign 227 474
S 515,525
§. Costs of renovation, rehabilitation, reconstruction, relocation, repalr or remodeling of existing public
or private bullding, leasehold impravemenis, and fixtures within a redevelopment project area.
s B
6. Cosls of the constructuion of public works or Improvements.
Developer Incentive - Foad Improavement Contribuion 115,000
5 115,000




SECTION3.2 A
PAGE 2

7. Costs of gliminating or removing conlaminants and other impediments
$ 5
8. Cast of Job training and retraining projects.
s 5
9. Financing cosls.
Bond Registrar And Agncy Fees 2013 A & B Bonds 950
Bebt Service 2013 A & B 8onds 1,590.290
5 1,591,240
10. Capital costs. -
5 A
11. Cost of reimbursing school districts for their increased costs caused by TIF assisted housing
rojects.
3 -
12. Cast of reimbursing library districts for their increased costs caused by TiF assisted housing
projects.
5 =




SECTION 3.2 A

PAGE 3

13. Relocation costs.

s =

14. Paymanis in lieu of taxes

s .
15, Costs of Job training, retraining, advanced vocational or career education.

3 5
16. Interest cost incurrad by redeveloper or other nongovernmental persons in connection with a
radavelopment project.

s B

17. Cost of day care services.

18. Other.

[TOTAL ITEMIZED EXPENDITURES

2,248,714 ]




FY 2018
TIF NAME:

Section 3.2 B

Romeoville Downtown TIF

Optional: Information in the following sections is not required by law, but would be helpful in creating fiscal

transparency.

List all vendors, including other municipal funds, that were paid in excess of $10,000 during the current reporting year,

Name Service Amount
Amalgamated Bank of Chicago Bond Payments - Paying Agent 5 1,591,240.00
South Water Signs Signs 5 227,474.00
ServiceMaster DSI Building Demolition $ 126,575.00
TD Romeoville LLC Incentive Payment-Road Construct $ 115,000.00
Orange Crush LLC Paving Services $ 57,307.07
Will County Treasurer Property Taxes 3 36,644.94
Indoor Sports Management Group LLC Rent Reimbursement 5 28,800.00
Grosshening, Inc. Building Demaolition 8 23,050.00
Comonwealth Edison Electri¢ Infrastructure Removal $ 17,532.84
Robinson Engineering Civil Engineering Services $ 13,221.50




SECTION 3.3 - (65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-5 (d) (5d) 65 ILCS 5/11-74.6-22 (d) (5d)
Breakdown of the Balance in the Special Tax Allocation Fund At the End of the Reporting Period by source

FY 2018
TIF NAME: Romeoville Downtown TIF
FUND BALANCE BY SOURCE 'S 322,629 |

Amount of Original

Issuance Amount Designated

1. Description of Debt Obligations
2013A GO Taxable TIF Bonds % 12,780,000 | $ 8,320,000
2013B GO Bonds $ 2,175,000 { § 2,175,000
Total Amount Designated for Obligations $ 14,955,000 | $ 10,495,000
2. Description of Project Costs to be Paid
Total Amount Designated for Project Costs 13 -
TOTAL AMOUNT DESIGNATED | § 10,495,000 |

SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) [ $ (10,172,371)]




SECTION 4 [65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-5 (d) (6) and 65 ILCS 5/11-74.6-22 (d) (6)]
FY 2018

TIF NAME: Romeoville Downtown TIF

Provide a description of all properly purchased by the municipality during the reporting fiscal year within the
redevelopment project area.

Check here if no property was acquired by the Municipality within the
Redevelopment Project Area.

Property Acquired by the Municipality Within the Redevelopment Project Area.

Property {1):

Street address:

Approximate size or description of property:
Purchase price:

Seller of propery:

Property (2):
Street address:

Approximale size or description of property:
Purchase price:

Seller of property:

Property (3):
Street address:

Approximate size or description of property:

Purchase price:
Seller of properly:

Property (4):

Street address:

Approximate size or description of property:
Purchase price:

Seller of property:




SECTION 5 - 20 ILCS 620/4.7 {7)(F)

FY 2018
TIF Name:

PAGE 1

Romeoville Downtown TIF

Page 1 is to be included with TIF report. Pages 2 and 3 are to be included ONLY if projects are listed.
Select ONE of the following by indicating an *X":

1. NO projects were undertaken by the Municipality Within the Redevelopment Project Area.

2. The Municipality DID undertake projects within the Redevelopment Project Area. (If selecting this

oplion, complete 2a,)

2a, The number of projects undertaken by the municipality within the Redavelopment Project Area:

25

LIST the profects undertaken by the Municipality Within the Redevelopment Project Area:

Estimated Invéstment
for Subsequent Fiscal

Total Estimated to

TOTAL: 11/1/99 to Date Year Complete Project
Private [nvestment Undertaken (See Instructions) S -1 8 -15 &
Public Investment Underaken 8 51,584,863 | § 2971900 | & 11,994,000
Ratio of Private/Public Investment 0 0

Project 1*: TIF Formation/Administration

*PROJECT NAME TO BE LISTED AFTER PROJECT NUMBER

Private Investment Undertaken (See Inslruclions)

Public Investment Undertaken % 374,365 | & 53,000 | 5 146,000
Ratio of Private/Public investment 4] 0
Project 2*: Stormwater Management incl Honeytree Drainage

Private lnvestment Undertaken {See Instructions)

Public Investment Undertaken S 677,546

Ratio of Private/Public Investment 0 0
Project 3*: Intergovernmental Agreement 365U

Private Investment Undertaken (See Instructions)

Public Investment Undertaken S 2,000,000 | & 250,000

Ratio of Private/Public Invesiment 0 0
Project 4*: Roadway Infrastructure

Private Investment Undertaken (See Instructions)

Public Investment Undertaken 5 3,371,794 ] 700,000
Ratio of Private/Public Investment 0 0
Project 5*: Property Assembly

Private Investment Undertaken (See Instructions)

Public Investment Undertaken 3 14,824,467 | § 800,000

Ratio of Private/Public Investment 0 0
Project 6: Rome Road Retail Center Incentives

Private Invesiment Undertaken (See instructions)

Public Investment Undertaken $ 115,000

Ratio of Private/Public Investment 0 0




PAGE2 **ATTACH ONLY JF PROJECTS ARE LISTED*

Project 7*: Romeo Road TIF Project Transfer

Private Investment Underaken {See Instructions)

Public Investment Undeniaken 371,484

Ratio of Private/Public Investment 0 0
Project 8*: Athletic and Event Center

Private Invesiment Undertaken (See Instructions)

Public Investment Undertaken 17,050,867 150,000

Ratio of Private/Public Investment 0] O
Project 9*: Route 53 Landscaping & Signange

Private Investment Undertaken (See Instructions)

Public Investment Undertaken 565,328 300,000
Ratio of Privale/Public Investment 0 0
Project 10*: Montrose Drive Site Redevelopment

Private Investment Undertaken (See Instructions)

Public Investment Undertaken 1,977,742

Ratio of Private/Public Invesiment 0 0
Project 11*; Spartan Square Operations

Private Investment Undertaken (See Instructions)

Public Investment Undertaken 604,244

Ratio of Private/Public Investment 0 0
Project 12*: Danny Boy's Incentive

Private Investment Undertaken (See Instructions)

Public Investment Undertaken 73,905

Ratio of Private/Public Investment 0 0
Project 13*: Fire Station # 1 & #2 Project

Privale Invesiment Underiaken (See Instructions)

Public Investment Undertaken 72,507

Ratio of Private/Public tnvestment Q 0
Project 14*: BG Investments LLC Agreement

Private investment Undertaken (See Instructions)

Public Investment Undertaken 425,960 25,000
Ratio of Privale/Public Investment 0 0
Project 15*: Dalhart Project

Private Investment Undertaken (See Instructions}

Public Investment Undertaken 696,553

Ratio of Private/Public Investment 0 o




PAGE3 **ATTACH ONLY IF PROJECTS ARE LISTED*

Project 16*: Spangler Road Reconstruction

Private Investment Undertaken {See Instructions)

Public Investment Underiaken $ 333,527

Ratio of Private/Public Investment 0 0

Project 17*: Mickey Goodyear Developer Agreement

Private Investment Undertaken {See Instructions)

Public Investment Undertaken ] 40,000

Ratio of Private/Public Invesiment 0 0

Project 18*: Dalhart & Normantown Fence Project

Private Investment Undertaken {See Instructions)

Public Investment Undertaken 5 125,000

Ratio of Private/Public Investment 0 0

Project 18*: Stone City Daveloper Agreement
Private Investment Undertaken {See Instructions)

Public Investment Underiaken 3 240,000

Ratio of Private/Public Investment 0 0

Project 20*: Bull Run Abandonment

Private Investment Undenaken {Ses Instructions)

Public investment Underaken ] 68,093

Ratio of Private/Public Invesiment [0} 0

Project 21*: White Oak Library Agreement

Private Investment Undertaken (See Instructions)

Public Investment Underaken $ 260,000

Ratio of Private/Public Investment 0 0

Project 22°: Downtown Development Marketing

Private Investment Undertaken (See Instructions)

Public Investment Undertaken $ 120,000

Ratio of Private/Public Investment 0 0

Project 23*: Downtown Retail Center Incentives

Private Investment Undertaken (See Instructions)

Public Investment Undertaken ] 275,168 | 5 140,000 | & 60,000

Ratio of Private/Public Investment 0 a

Project 24*: Debt Service Repayments & [ssuance

Private Investment Undertaken (See Instructions)

Public Investment Undertaken 3 6,910,212 | & 1,578,900 | 10,763,000

Ratio of Private/Public Investment 0 ]

Project 25*: 209 Romeo Road Agreement

Private Investment Undertaken (See Instructions)

Public Investment Undertaken 8 11,100

Ratio of Private/Public Investment 0 0




Optional: Information in the following sections is not required by law, but would be helpful in evaluating the
performance of TIF in lilinols. “even though optional MUST be included as part of the complete TIF report
SECTION &

FY 2018

TIiF NAME: Romeoville Downtown TIF

Provide the base EAV (at the time of designation) and the EAV for the year reported for the redevelopment project area
Year redevelopment

project area was Reporting Fiscal Year
designaied Base EAV EAV
2003] 5 11,461,826 | S 16,691,007 |

List all overlapping tax districls in the redevelopment project area.
If overlapping taxing district received a surplus, list the surplus.

X Check if the overlapping taxing districts did not receive a surplus,

Surplus Distributed from redevelopment

Overlapping_Taxigg District project area to overlapping districts
Will County

Will County Forest Preserve

Will County Building Commission
Lockport Township & Road Funds
DuPage Township

| White Oak Library District
Fountandale Library District
Communituy College Distrct 525
School District 365-U

Lockport Park District

Romeoville Mosquito District
Village of Romeoville

Village of Romeoville Fire

L] R K ead Keogd BT Rt REe) RV R R PR R 1Y
L}

SECTION 7
Provide information about job creation and retention:

Description and T ype
Number of Jobs Number of Jobs {Temporary or
Retained Created Permanent) of Jobs Total Salaries Paid
5 -
[} =
$ g
$ &
g -
5 5
3 -
SECTION 8

Provide a general description of the redevelopment project area using only major boundaries:
The project area is irregularly shaped and generally includes: the traditional downtown of the village
generally bounded by Norman town Road on the North, lllinois Route 53 on the east, Alexander Circle

[Optional Documents Enclosed
Legal description of redevelopment project area X
Map of District X




Exhibit "A"

Legal Description

Those parts of Section 3 and Section 4, Township 36 North, Range 10 East of
the Third Principal Meridian togsther with thosc parts of Section 27, Section
28, Section 33, and Section 34 Township 37 North, Range 10 East of the Third
Principal Meridian all in Will County, Ilinols more particularly described as
follows:

Beginning at the southeasterly comer of Lot 1 of Block 1 in Hampton Parik
Subdivision Number 11, recorded in Book 37 Page 25 of the Office of the Will
County, Illinois Recorder; thence westerly a.long'thc south line of enid Lot 1 to
the west line of said Lot 1; thence northerly along said west line to the' north
" line of Lot 2 of Block 1 in said Hampton Park Subdivision Number 11; thence
westerly along said north line, the narth Line of Lot 3, the north line of Lot 4,
and the north line of Lot 5, al! in Block 1 of sai'd Hampton Park Subdivision
Number 11, to the southeast corner of Lot 7 in Block 1 of said Heampton Park
Subdivision Number 11; thence northwesterly along the northeast line of said
Lot 7 to the southeast cormer of Lot 8 in Block 1 of said Hampton Park
Subdivision Number 11; thence northwesterly along the northeast line of said
Lot 8 and the northeast line of .Lot 9 in Block 1 of said Hampton Park
Subdivision Number 11 to the northeast corner of Lot 10 in Black 1 of said
Hampton Park Subdivision Number 11; thence northwesterly along the
northeast line of said Lot 10 and the northeast line of Lot 11 in .Block 1 of said
Hampton Park Subdivision Number 11 to the northeast corner of Lot 12 in

Nole: The reconding Information pertalnirig to subdivislon Plals as well as the infoimation pertainlng lo
parcal parmanent ldaniification numbers (PINs} stiown heraon has been iaken from tho Wil County, ltinols
Tax Assessment Map Revised for the 2003 Assessment.

Revision daled Wednesday, July 21, 2004
Page 10f 12



Block 1 of said Hampton Park Subdivision Number 11; thence westerly along
the north line of Lot 12, the north line of Lot 13, the north line of Lot 14, the
north line of Lot 15, the north line of Lot 16, the north line of Lot 17, the north
Iine of Lot 18, the north line of Lot 19, the north line of Lot 20, the north line of
Lot 21, and the north line of Lot 22 all in Block 1 of said Hampton Park
Subdivision Number 11 to the nartheast corner of Lot 20 in Block 8 of
Hampton Parlc Subdivision Number 10, rcecorded in Book 37 Page 24 of the
Office of the Wiil County, Ilinois Recorder; thence southwesterly along the
northwest line of Lot 20 in said Hampton Park Subdivision Number 10 to the
northeast corner of Lot 19 in Block 8 of said Hampton Park Subdivision
Number 10; thence southwesterly along the northwest line of Lot 19 in gaid
Hampton Park Subdivision Number 10 to the northeast corner of Lot 18 in
Block 8 of said Hampton Parle Subdivision Number 10; thence southwesterly
along the narthwest line of Lot 18 in said Hampton Parlc Subdivision Number
10 to the northwest corner of said Lot 18; thence northwesterly along a
northeast line of Lot 16, the northeast Line of Lot 15, the northeast line of Tot
14, and the northeast line of Lot 13, all in Block 8 of said Hampton Park
Subdivision Number 10 to the southwest corner of Lot 21 in Block 8 of said
Hampton Park Subdivision Number 10; thence northerly along the west line of
Lot 21 and the northerly prolongution of the west line of Lot 21 all in Block 8 of
said Hampton Park Subdivision Number 10, to the south line of a parcel of
land identified by permanent identification number 02-33-400-061-0000;
thence easterly elong the south line of parcel of land identified as permenent
{dentification number 02-33-400-06 1-0000 and the south line of parcel of land
identified by permanent identiication number 02-34-308-012-0000 to a line
400 feet west of and parallel to the west right of way of Illinois State Road 53
(also known as Joliet Road) as now established; thence northerly on a line 400
feet west of and parallel to the west right of way of Illinois State Road 53 (alsa

Nole: The recording Information pertaining lo subdivision plals es well as the infommation pertalning lo
parcel permanent identification numbers (PINs) shown herson has been taken from the Wil Cotnly, Minois
Tax Assessment Map Revised for the 2003 Assessmenl.

Revision dated Wednesday, July 21, 2004
Page 2 of 12



know as Joliet Road) as now established, to the south line of Lot 4 in Village
Resubdivision of Lot 13 in Block 13 of Hampton Park Subdivision Number 3
recorded in Book 35 Page 47 of the Office of the Will Counly, lllinois Recorder;
thence westerly along the south line of Lot 4 in eaid Village Resubdivision to
the west line of Lot 4 in said Villnge Resubdivision; thence northerly along the
west line of Lot 4, the northerly prolongation of the west line of Lot 4, and the
west line of Lot 2 in said Village Resubdivision to the northwest corner of said
Lot '2; thence easterly along the north line of Lot 2 in said Village
Resubdivision, the easterly prolongation of the north line of Lot 2, the norlh
line of Lot 1, and the easterly prolongation of the north line of Lot 1 all in said
Village Resubdivision to the westerly right of way of Ilinois State Road 53 (elso
Inown as Joliet Road) as now established; thence northerly along the westerly
right of way of Hlinois State Road 53 (also lmown as Jalict Rood) as now
established, to the easterly prolongation of the north line of Lot 1 in Block 10 of
Hampton Park Subdivision Number 1, recorded in Book 31 Page 1 of the Office
of the Will County, Lllinois Recorder, the same being = north line of Block 10 in
said Hempton Park Subdivision Number 1; thence westerly along the north Line
of Block 10'in eaid Hampton Park Subdivision Number 1, to the east line of Lot
25 in Block 10 of said Hampton Park Subdivision Number 1, the same being an
east line of said Block 10; thence northerly along the east line of Block 10 in
said Hampton Park Subdivision Number 1 to the northeast corner of Lot 37 in
Block 10 of said Hampton Park Subdivision Number 1 ; thence westerly along
the north line of said Lot 37 and the westerly prolongetion of the porth line of
Lot 37 in Block 10 of said Hampton Park Subdivision Number 1 to the
southerly prolongation of the cast line of Lat 39 in Block 10 of said Hampton
Park Subdivision Number 1; thence northerly along the southerly prolongation
of the cast line of Lot 39, the east linc of said Lot 39, and the cast line of Lot 40
all in Block 10 of said Hampton Park Subdivision Number 1 to the north line of

Note: The reconling Informalion peralning lo subdivision plats as well as the Infornation pedalping o
parcel permanent identification numbers (PINs) shown hereon has baen taken from the Wil County, linols
Tax Assessment Map Revised for the 2003 Asscssment,

Revision dated Wedncsday, July 21, 2004
Page 3 of 12



] T

Lot 40 in Block 10 of said Hampton Park Subdivision Number 1, the same
being a north line of said Block 10; thence westerly elong a north line of Block
10 in said Hampton Park Subdivision Number 1, to the east line of Roger's
Subdivision recorded in Book 29 Page 71 in the Office of the Will County,
Hlinois Recorder; thence northerly along the cast line of said Rogers
Subdivision and the northerly prolongation of the cast line of said Roger's
Subdivision, to the south line of Lot 1 of Black 1 in Hampton Park Subdivision
Number 5 recorded in Book 32 Page 71, in the Office of the Will County, llinois
Recorder; theace easterly along the south line of Lot 1 in Block 1 of said
Hampton Park Subdivision Niumber 5, to the southeast corner of Lot 1 in Block
1 of said ﬁampton Park Subdivision Number 5, the same being the southwest
corner of Lot 1 in Good Shepherd's Subdivision recorded as docrument number
R93-99551 in thé Office of the Will County, linois Recorder; thence easterly
glong the south lne of Lot 1 and the south line of Lot 2 in said Good
Shepherd's Subdivision to a point 202.88 feet, more or less, east of the
southwest corner of Lot 2 in said Good Shepherd's Bubdivision; thence easterly
to a southwest corner of parcel of land identified by permanent identification
number 02-27-302-002-0000, said point being 28.44 fect, more or less,
southeast of the west line of said parcel of land identified by permancnt
identification number 02-27-302-002-0000; thence easterly along the south
line of parcel of land identified by permanent identification number 02-27-302-
002-0000 to the southeast corner of said parcel of land identified by permanent
identificaion number 02-27-302-002-0000; thence northeasterly to the
eouthwest corer of Lot 19 in Block 2 of Hampton Park Subdivision Number 4
recorded in Boolk 32 Page 69 in the Office of the Will County, Ilinois Recorder;
thence southeasterly and easterly along the south line of Block 2 of said
Hampton Park Subdivision Number 4 to the southenst corner af Lot 24 in
Block 2 of said Hampton Park Subdivision Number 4; thence easterly to the
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southwest corner of Lot 1 in Block 9 of said Hampton Park Subdivision
Number 4; thence casterly along the south line of Block 9 in said Hampton
Park Subdivision Number 4 to the southwesterly prolongation of the sontheast
line of Lat 8 in Black 9 of said Hampton Park Subdivision Number 4, the same
being the southeast line of Block 9 in said Hampton Park Subdivision Number
4; thence northeasterly along the southeast line of Block 9 of said Hampton
Park Subdivision Number 4 to the westerly prelongation of the north line of
parcel of 1and identified as permanent identification number 02-27-311-008-
0000; thence casterly along the westarly prolongation of the north line, of parcel
of land identified as permanent identification number 02-27-311-008-0000 and
the north line of parcel of land identified as permanent idcntfication number
02-27-311-008-0000 to the east line of parcel of land identified as permanent
identification number 02-27-311-008-0000; thepce southerly along the east
line of parcel of land identified as permanent identification number 62-27-311-
008-0000.to the north line of Oxford Banlc Subdivision recorded as document
number R94-113037 in the Office of the Will County, Iilinois Recorder; thence
westerly along the north line of said Oxford Bank Subdivision to the west line
of said Oxford Banlk Subdivision; thence southerly along the west line of said
Oxford Benk Subdivision to the south line of said Oxford Bank Subdivision;
thence southeasterly and easterly along the south line of said Oxford Bank
Sulbdivision to the southwest corner of parcel of land identificd as permanent
identifieation number 02-27-311-013-0000; thence easterly slong the south
line of parcel of 1and identified as permanent identification number 02-97-311-
013-0000 to the southeast corner of parcel of land identified as permanent
identification number 02-27-31 1-018-0000; thence southerly to the northeast
corner of parcel of land identified as permancnt identification nurmber 02-34-
110-010-0000; thence southerly along the east line of said parcel of land
identified as permanent identification number 02-34-110-010-0000 to the
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southcast comer of said parcel of land identified as permenent identification
fumber 02-34-110-010-0000; thence casterly to the northwest comer of Lot 4
in Romeoville Industrial Park Unil Number 1 recorded as document number
R86-42585 in the Office of the Will County, Illinois Recorder; thence southerly
along the west line of Lot 4 and the west line of Lot 5 in said Romieoville
Industrial Park Unit Number 1 to the southwest corner of* Lot 5 in said
Romeoville Industrial Park Unit Number 1; thence easterly along the south line
of Lot S in sald Romeoville Industrial Park Unit Number 1 to the southeast
comner of Lat 5 in said Romeoville Industrial Park Unit Number 1, the same
being the guouthwest corner of Lot 11 in Romeoville Industrial Parlke Unit
Number 2 recorded as document 'number R93-43490 in the Office of the Will
County, Nlinois Recorder; thence casterly along the south line of Lot 11 in snid
Romeoville Industrial Park Unit Number 2 to thé northerdy prolongation of the
cast line of Lot 6 in Forestwood Planned Unit Development recorded as
document. number R96-13708 in the Office of the Wili, County, Ilinois
Recorder; thence southerly glong the northerly prolongation of the east line of
Lot &, the cast line of Lot 6 and the east line of Lot 5 all In said Forestwood
Planned Unit Development to the north line of Lot 4 in said Forestwood
Planned Unit Development; thence casterly along the north line of Lot 4 in said
Forestwood Planned Unit Development to the northeast corner of Lot 4 in said
Forestwood Plenned Unit Development; thence southerly along the cast line of
Lot 4 in said Forestwood Planned Unit Development to the south line of Lot 9
in said Romeoville Industrial Parlk Unit Number 2; thence easterly nlong the
south line of Lot 9 in said Romeoville Industrial Park Unit Number 2 to the
southeast corner of Lot 9 in said Romeoville Industrial Park Unit Number 2;
thence northerly along the east line of Lot 9 and the northerly prolongation of
the east line of Lot 9 in said Romeoville Industrial Park Unit Number 2 to the
south line of Lot 12 in said Romeoville Industrial Park Unit Number 2; thence
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easterly and northeasterly along the south line of Lot 12 and the south line of
Lot 13 in said Romeoville Industrial Park Unit Number 2 to the northwesterly
prolongation of the northeast line of Lot 10 in said Romeoville Industrial Park
Unit Number 2; thence southeasterly along the northwesterly prolongation of
the northeast line of Lot 10 and the northeast line of Lot 10 of said Romeoville
Industrial Park Unit Number 2 to the southeast corner of Lot 10 in said
Romeoville. Indnstrial Park Unit Number 2, the same being the southeast
corner of Lot 15 in said Romeoville Industrial Park Unit Number 2; thence
northeasterly along the southeast line of Lot 15 in said Romeoville Industrial
Park Unit 2, to the north line of parcel of land identified as permanent
identification number 02-34-200-003-0000; thence easterly along the north
line of parcel of land identificd as permanent identification namber 02-34-200-
003-0000, the north lne of parcal of land identified as permanent identification
number 02-34-200-009-0000, and the north line of parcel of land identified as
permanent identification number 02-34-200-015-0000, to the east line of
parcel of land identified as permencit identification. number 02-34-200-015-
0000; thence southerly along the east line of pau:cel of land identified as
permanent identification number 02-34-200-015-0000 and the east line of
parcel of land idectified as permancnt identification number 02-34-200-009-
0000, to the southeast cormer of parcel of land identified as permanent
identification number 02-34-200-009-0000; thence southerly nlong the east
" line of the Southeast Quarter of said Section 34, 1600 feet, more or Jess, to the
eanterly bank of a branch of the Des Plaines River; thence southwesterly,
southerly, and easterly along the east banle of said branch of the Des Pleines
River to the cast line of the Southeast Quarter of said Sechion 34; thence
southerly aleng the east line of said Section 34 and the soutflerly prolongation
of the cast line of said Section 34, to the southerly right of way of 135th Street
{(also known ms Romeco Road) as now established; thence westerly glong the
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southerly right of way of 135th Street (also kmown es Romeo Road) as now
established, to the southwesterly prolongation of the west line of Tract G of plat
of survey recorded in Book 30 Page 12 in the Office of the Will County, Illineis
Recorder; thence northeasterly along the west line of Tract G in said plat of
survey, to the north line of Tract G in said plat of survey; thence westerly along
the westerly prolengation of Tract G in said plat of survey, to the westerly bank
of a branch of the Des Plaines River; thence northeasterly, northerly,
northwesterly and easterly along the westerly bank of aaid branch of the Des
Plaines River to the easterly prolongation of the south lina of a parcel of Jand
identified es permanent identification number 02-34-200-014-0000; thence
westerly along the easterly prolongation of the south line of a parcel of land
identified as permanent identification number 02-34-200-014-0000 and the
south line of parcel of land identified as permanent identification number 02-
34-200-014-0000 to the southwest cormer of parcel of land identified as
Permanent identification number 02-34-200-014-000D; thence westerly to the
southeast comer of parcel of land identified as permanent jdentification
number 02-34-400-015-0000; thence westerly elong the south line of parcel of
land identificd as permanent identification number 02-34-400-015-0000 to the
southwest corner of parcel of land ideatified as permanent identification
number 02-34-400-015-0000; thence northerly along the west lne of parcel of
land identified as permanent identification number 02-34-400-015-0000 to the
northwest corner of said parcel of land identified as permanent identification
number 02-34-400-015-0000; thence easterly along the north line of parcel of
land identified &s permanent identification number 02-34-400-015-0000 to the
nertheast corner of said parcel of land identified as permanent identification
number 02-34-400-015-0000; thence northeasterly elong the southeast line of .
parcel of land identified as permancnt identification number 02-34-200-013-
G000 to the east line of parcel of land identified as permanent ideatification

Nole: The recording Information pertaining lo subdivision plals as well as the information poriaining lo
parcel permanent idenlificatfon numbers (PINs} shown hareca has been laken from the Wil Counly, llinofs
Tax Assessment Map Revised for the 2003 Assessmant.

Revision dated Wednesday, July 21, 2004
Page 0 of 12



number 02-34-200-013-0000; thence northerly along the east line of percel of
land identified as permanent identification number 02-34-200-013-0000 to the
northeast comer of parcel of land identified as permanent identification
number 02-34-200-013-0000; ithence westerly along the north line of parce! of
land identified as permanent identification number 02-34-200-013-0000 to the
northeast corner of Lot 19 in Romecoville Commercial Park Unit Number 2
recorded as document number R97-81160 in the Office of the Will County,
Ilinois Recorder; thence southerly mlong the east line of Lot 19 in said
Romeoville Commercial Park Unit Number 2 to the sontheast corner of Lot 19
in said Romeaville Commercial Park Unit Number 2; thence westetly along the
south line of Lot 19 and the westerly prolongation of the south line of Lot 19 in
said Romeoville Commercial Park Unit Number 2 to the southeast corner of Lot
20 in said Rometville Commercial Parl Unit Number 2; thence northerly,
northwesterly, northerly, northeasterly and easterly along the east line of Lot
20, the east line of Lot 21.and the southeast line of Lot 24 in said Romecoville
Commercial Park Unit Number 2 to the east line of Lot 24 in said Romeoville
Commercial Park Unit Number 2; thence northerly on the cast line of Lot 24 in
said Romeoville Commercial Park Unit Number 2 to the northeast corner of Lot
24 in said Romeoville Commercinl Park Unit Number 2; thence westerly along
the north line of Lot 24 in said Romeaville Commercial Park Upit Number 2 to
the northwest corner of Lot 24 in said Romeoville Commetrcial Park Unit
Number 2; thence southerly along the west line of Lot 24, the west line of Lot
21, and the west line of Lot 20 all in said Romeoville Commercial Park Unit
Number 2 to the southwest corner of Lot 20 in Romeoville Commercial Park
Unit Number 2; thence sontherly to the northwest corner .ol' Lot 3 in Romeoville
Commercial Park Unit Number 1 recorded as document number R21-35350 in
the Olfice of the Will County, llinois Recorder; thence southerly along the west
line of Lot 3 in eaid Romeoville Commercial Park Unit Number 1 to the
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southwest corner of Lot 3 in said Romeoville Commercial Park Unit Number 1;

thence easterly along the south line of Lot 3 and the easterly prolongation of
the south line of Lot 3 in said Romeoville Commercial Park Urg.it Number 1 to

the west line of Lot 4 in said Romeoville Commercial Park Unit Number 1;

thence southerly along the west line of Lot 4 in said Romeoville Commercial
Park Unit Number 1 to the southwest corner of Lot 4 in said Romeoville
Commercial Park Unit Number 1, the same being the northwest corner of Lot 7
in said Romeaville Commercial Park Unit Number 2; thence southerly along the
west line of Lot 7 in said Romeoville Commercial Park Unit Number 2 to the
easterly prolongation of the south line of Lot 6 in eaid Romeoville Commercial
Park Unit Number 2; thence westerly along the easterly prolongation of the
south line of Lot G; the south line of Lot 6, and the south line of Lot 5 all in
said Romeoville (.;oﬁ:mercial Patlk Unit Number 2 to the southwest earner of Lot
5 in said Romeoville Commercial Park Unit Number 2, the same being the
. northwest corner of PCS Devclopment Industrial Condominium Phase 2
recorded as document number RO8-130828 in the Office of the Will County,
Dlinois Recorder; thence southerly along the westerly line of said PCS
Development Industrial Condominium Phase 2 to the southwest corner-of said
PCS Development Industrial Condominium Phase 2, the same being the
northwest corner of Lot 9 in said Romeoville Commercial Parle Unit Number 2;
thence southerly along the west line of Lot 9, the west line of Lot 10, and the
west line of Lot 12, all ifi said Romeaville Commercial Park Unit Number 2, to
the southwest corner of Lot 12 in said Romeoville Commercial Park Unit
Number 2; thence casterly along the south line of Lot 12 in sald Romeoville
Commercial Park Unit Number 2, to the northerly prolongation of the east Line
of Lot 15 in said Romeoville Commercial Park Unit Nurnber 2; thence southerly
along the northerly prolongation of the east line of Lot 15, the cast line of Lot
15, all in said Romeoville Commercial Park Unit Number 2, to the southeast
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corner of Lot 1S in said Romeoville Commercial Parle Unit Number 2; thence
westel"ly along the south line of Lot 15 and the south line of Lot 16, all in said
Romeoville Commercial Park Unit Number 2 to the easterly right of way of
Niinois State Road 53 (also known as Joliet Road) as now established; thence
southerly along the easterly right of way of lllinois State Road 53 {(elso known
as Joliet Road) as now established to the intersection of the northerly right of
way of 135th Street (also known as Romeo Road) as now established; thence
easterly along the northerly right of way of said 135th Street {also Imown as
Romeo Road) as now established, to the northerly prolongation of the east line
of parcel of land identified as permanent identification number 04-03-102-003-
0000; thence southerly along the northerly prolongation of the east line of
parcel of land {dentified as permanent identification number 04-03-102-003-
0000 and the east-line of parcel of land Identified as pecmanent identification
number 04-03-102-003-0000 to the north line of parce! of land identified as
permanent identification number 04-03-102-018-0000; thence casterly along
the north linc of parcel of land identified as permanent identification number
04-03-102-018-0000, to the northeast corner of parcel of land identified as
permanent identification number 04-03-102-018-0000; thence southerly along
the cast line of parcel of land identified as permancnt idcntification number 04-
03-102-018-0000, to the southeast corner of parcel of land identified as
permanent identification number 04-03-102-018-0000; thence westerly along
the south line of parcel of land identified as i:ermanent identification number
04-03-102-018-0000, to the west linc of parcel of land identificd as permanent
identfication number 04-03-102-018-0000; thence northerly along the west
l.i.nc of parcel of land identified as permanent identification number 04-03-102-
O]B-OOOQ to the north line of parcel of land identified as permeanent
identification number 04-03-100-022-0000; thence westerly slong the north
line of parcel of land identified as permanent identification number 04-03-100-
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022-0000, to the west line of parcel of land identified as permanent
identification number 04-03-100-022-0000; thence southerly along the west
Iine of parcel of land identified as permanent identification number 04-03-100-
022-0000, to the south Jine of parcel of land identified as permanent
identification number 04—03—102-0114)000; thence westerly elong the south
line of parcel of land identified as permanent identification number 04-03-102-
011-0000, to the east right of way of Illinois State Read (also known as Jolist
Road) as now cstablished; thence southerly along the east right of way of
llinois State Road 53 (also known as Joliet Road) as now established to the
easterly prolongation of the southerly line of Lot 1 of Block 1 in Hampton Park
Subdivision Number 11; thence westerly along the easterly prolongation of the
southerly line of Lot 1 of Block 1 in seid Hampton Park Subdivision Number 11
to the southeast corner of Lot 1 of Blodk 1 in said Hampton Parlkc Subdivision
Number 11 and the Point of Beginning. '
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STATE OF ILLINOIS )
) SS.
COUNTY OF WILL )

CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE TAX
INCREMENT ALLOCATION REDEVELOPMENT ACT

1, the undersigned, do hereby certify that [ am the duly qualified and
acting President of the Village of Romeoville, Will County, lllinois (the
“Village”), and as such chief executive officer of the Village, I do hereby
further certify to the best of my knowledge, that, according to the records of
the Village in my official possession, the Village has now complied, for the
fiscal year ended April 30, 2018, with all of the requirements of the Tax
Increment Allocation Redevelopment Act, as amended, Division 74.4 of
Article 11 of the Tllinois Municipal Code (65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-1 through 11-
74.4-11) for that certain redevelopment project area known as the Downtown
Area Redevelopment Project Area. Compliance requirements, if any, brought
to the attention of the undersigned have been addressed as of the date of this
certificate.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF [ have hereunto affixed my official

R
signature at Romeoville, Illinois, this "] '\" day of November, 2018.

Presi ent,'ViIlage of Romeoville’ .
Il County, Iilinois
ATTEST:

ThBusrice éqf/%




TRACY, JOHNSON & WILSON

Attorneys at Law
First Community Bank Building
2801 Black Road, Second Floor
Joliet, lllinois 60435

Raymond E. Meader OF CounseL
A. Michael Wojtak James B. Harvey
Kennath A. Carlson
John S. Gallo TELEPHONE (815) 723-8500 Louis R. Bertani (1928-1999)
Richard E. Vogel FAX (815) 727-4846 Thomas R. Wilson (1929-2001)
John G. Foreman Danald J. Tracy (1926-2003)

; November 7. 2018 Wayna R. Johnson {1930-2008)
L EILSG ) ’ Richard H. Teas (1830-2008)

Mr. Kirk Openchowski
Village of Romeoville
1050 West Romeo Road
Romeoville, 11. 60446

Re:  Downtown Redevelopment Project Area

Dear Mr. Openchowski:

We, the undersigned, do hereby certify that we are the Village Attorneys for the Village
of Romeoville, Will County, Illinois (the “Village™). We have reviewed all the information
provided to use by appropriate Village officials, staff, and consultants and to the best of our
knowledge and belief, further certify that the Village has conformed for the fiscal year ended
April 30, 2018, with all of the requirements of the Tax Increment Allocation Redevelopment
Act, as amended, Division 74.4 of Article 11 of the Illinois Municipal Code (65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-
1 through 11-74.4-11) as of the date hereof for that certain redevelopment project area known as
the Downtown Redevelopment Project Area (the “Project™).

In rendering this certification, we have relied upon certifications of the Village with
respect to certain material facts solely within the Village’s knowledge relating to the Project.

Compliance requirements, if any, brought to the attention of the undersigned have been
addressed as of the date of this certification.

Tracy, Johnson & Wilsgn

o

Village Attorneys (
Village of Romeghille, Will County, lllinois




STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES FY 17-18

The projects meet the Downtown TIF General Economic Development Goals and
Redevelopment Objectives.

TIF FORMULATION/ENGINEERING/ADMINSTRATION
The TIF Financial Compliance Report and audit for the prior year was completed.

DOWNTOWN SITE IMPROVEMENTS

The Village spent $14,891 in engineering and design for future Downtown Site
Improvements. A monument sign benefiting the Uptowns Square area was installed for
$227,474. $57,307 was spent on paving for commercial outlots improvements.,

PROPERTY ASSEMBLY

The Village spent $7,448 for property taxes related to the purchase of 17 Alexander
Circle (Finish Line Car Wash) in FY 15-16. The site was developed into a parking lot to
benefit the Downtown TIF area (Uptown Square).

The Village acquired 335 Independence Boulevard (RT 66 Auto Mart) in FY 16-17 for
$265,000 with General Corporate Funds. The property is located within the TIF. The
Village used $23,050 in TIF funds to raze the buiiding.

The Village acquired 626 Town Hall Drive (Harris Bank) in FY 16-17 for $1.2 The
structure of the site (Harris Bank Building) was torn down for a cost of $142,249. The site
will be redeveloped in the future. The Village spent $813 on some preliminary consulting.

TD Romeoville LLC Incentive Aqreement

The Village paid TD Romeoville LLC $115,000 in incentives for improvements made to
both Route 53 and 135™ street needed to accommodate the Thorntons Gas Station and
Car Wash located at that intersection and future development. $200,000 remains in
incentives contingent of future development on the site, which will include a liquor store.



STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES FY 17-18

EDWARD ATHLETIC AND EVENT CENTER/DOWNTOWN SITE REDEVELOPMENT

The Village worked with Harbor Construction to construct the Romeoville Athletic and
Event Center to develop the downtown area. The Village entered into agreements for
Harbor to act as the General Contractor for the Athletic and Event Center, Downtown
Public infrastructure and Road Improvements and Master Developer for the Downtown
Area. The Village approved a GMAX contract for the Athletic and Event Center and
finalized the GMAX contract for the public improvements in FY 14-15.

The Athletic and Event Center partially opened in February of 2014 and fully opened in
Aprit of 2014. The center has already hosted numerous events including several large
boys and girls basketball tournaments that has attracted top level high school talent from
across the state and country.

The Village has entered into a five year, $500,000, naming rights agreement with
Edwards Hospital in 2014. Edwards will pay the costs to have their name added to the
building ($35,000) and made their third payment of $100,000. The naming rights
agreement allows Edwards to enter into a separate lease agreement with the Village
(approved by the Village Board April 1, 2015) for a physical therapy center. There space
is rent free for the first year and then $1,512.67 per month thereafter.

The Village spent $10,421 on planning for small addition to store the temporary
basketball courts that are currently stored offsite. The Village also spent $29,196 on
property taxes which were reimbursed by the operator of the Athletic and Event Center.

The Village altered the arrangement with the operator-renter of the facility. The Village
took over operations in May of 2017. The operator was retained to assist in management
the facility. The agreement required the Village to reimburse the operator $28,000 in lost
rent for the physical therapy space that will be received by the Village in the future. In
May of 2018 the agreement was further altered to terminate the agreement with the
operator.

DEBT ISSUANCE

The Village issued bonds in FY 13-14 to build the Athletic and Event Center and public
infrastructure improvements located within the Downtown TIF. The bond issue size was
$15,045,000. The Edward Athletic & Event Center portion {Series 2013A - $12,870,000)
are taxable bonds (the interest paid to the bond holders is taxable) as it will be leased to
and operated by a private firm and includes several naming rights and sponsorship
opportunities while the public infrastructure (Series 2013 B - $2,175,000) are tax exempt
bonds.



STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES FY 17-18

DEBT ISSUANCE

Payments of $1,590,290 were made in fiscal year 2017-18, including the fourth principal
payment of $1,180,000.

Payments will range between $1.44 million to $1.60 million depending on the year.
Interest costs are $3,850,235. TIF funds will be used for the payments. The total cost is
$18,895,235.83. The majority of the TIF funds to be used for the payments will be
exported from the Marquette TIF to the Downtown TIF. The bonds are for 12.5 years,
which coincides with remaining life of the Marquetie TIF. The final payment will be in
December of 2025. The bonds are structured so that the taxable bonds are paid off first
then the non-taxable bonds.

Taxable bonds in general have higher interest rates, this structure levels out the rates
and interest costs between taxable and non-taxable bonds. $11,615,000 in principal
remains outstanding. Remaining interest is $2,300,557. The Village also paid $1,000 in
agent fees and bond disclosure costs.

DEVELOPER AGREEMENT - BG INVESTMENTS

The Village entered into an amended agreement with BG Investments on April 1, 2015
regarding the construction of an 8,000 square foot building that would house both a Fat
Ricky’s restaurant and banquet facility and a 2,500 square foot delicatessen and grocery
store in the downtown area. The former Fat Ricky's restaurant located in the downtown
area closed upon the completion of the new facility. The location is now a Mexican
restaurant.

The incentive agreement provides up to $450,000 in TIF incentives in reimbursements for
TIF eligible costs, sale of the land to the developer for $1.00 ($550,000 Value) and
$300,000 in reimbursements for non-TIF eligible costs (Payments were from General
Corporate Funds — Not TIF Funds). Only $24,040.41 remains to be paid in incentives.



Meeting Minutes
Joint Review Board Meeting
Downtown TIF District
Village Hall Board Room
Tuesday August 7, 2018 11:00 a.m.

Present:

Village Staff:

Steve Gulden (Village Manager VOR)

Kirk Opechowski (Finance Director VOR)

Josh Potter (Interim Director of Community Development VOR)
Nathan Darga (Senior Planner VOR)

Marian Gibson {Special Projects VOR)

Call to Order: Steve Gulden called the meeting to order at 11:05 A.M.
Motion by Scott Pointon to open the meeting, second by Paul Mills, the motion carried by a unanimous
voice vote,

Members present:

Jerry Caps (Public Member)
Scott Pointon {(White Oak Library District),
Paul Mills (Fountaindale Library),
Nathan Krusinski (Lockport Park District)
Dave Silverman (Special Council)

Nomination and election of Public Member: Motion by Scott Pointon to select Jerry Capps as Public
Member, Second by Nathan Krusinski, the motion carried by a unanimous vote.

Nomination and Election of the Chairperson; Mation by Paul Mills to select Steve Gulden as
Chairperson, Second by Jerry Capps, the motion carried by a unanimous voice vote.

Review Role of Join Review Board: Mr. Silverman reviewed the role of the Joint Review Board.
Overview of TIF: Mr. Silverman provided an overview of the Downtown TIF.

Approval of Minutes — February 22, 2017;: Motion by Scott Pointon to approve the February 22, 2017
Minutes, Second by lerry Capps, the motion carried by a unanimous voice vote.

Presentation and Review of Annual Reports: Mr, Openchowski reviewed the FY 2016-17 annual report
for the Downtown TIF. The full report is available on the Village Website.

Comments from Joint Review Board: No comments
Public Comments: None

Adjournment: Motion by Jerry Capps to adjourn, Second by Paul Mills, the motion carried by a
unanimous voice vote.



village Bl . e
sineovill
Mnmm liery

‘hh_:,._/ﬂ——-—-—— ———
\ o | VILLAGE HALL PARKING

=

o
2 % % s
=]

VILLAGE HALL PARKING

SR

Tty g DEER OROSSING
. : ; | PARK PARKING ____
- — ——
0 AMDPHITHEA LR B
| PARKING :

Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report




VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS

COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL
FINANCIAL REPORT

For the Year Ended
April 30,2018

Prepared by: Finance Department



VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page(s)

INTRODUCTORY SECTION
PrinCipal OffICIalS c.couvueeecieiriree et see et e ees e see s s e i
Organization CRATt........cveueeeeerieeeeers it esss s e sas s s s seseseseseseessssesas i
Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting..........coeueeecreeeneenn, i
Letter of Transmittal .........cccceicvierrenneeienesceceesesses e eeeessesseesee e esessssses s s seess s iv-xiii
FINANCIAL SECTION

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR™S REPORT .....ouoviieirecveteitesee e eesessesesseseesessesessessees 1-3

GENERAL PURPOSE EXTERNAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Management’s Discussion and Analysis..........ooeeeveeeceecercsnnrenereeceecoseeeeneneenn s MD&A 1212
Basic Financial Statements
Government-Wide Financial Statements
Statement 0f Net POSIION -......c.coeeerriiirir et svessosenssensesssesesses 4
StAteMENt OF ACHVILIES ....vvoeeeeeeereeeicvsris et e cesesesonaesseesseesssersans 5-6
Fund Financial Statements

Governmental Funds

Balance SHEEL ..o eeeieeireceeeeeese e e ese et 7-8
Reconciliation of Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the

Governmental Activities in the Statement of Net PoSition ..o veeeeoeeeonn, 9
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances....... 10-11

Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances to the Governmental
Activities in the Statement OF ACHIVItIES.......ocevvereeereee e eseseeessessessessea 12



VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS
TABLE OF CONTENTS (Continued)

Page(s)
FINANCIAL SECTION (Continued)
GENERAL PURPOSE EXTERNAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
Basic Financial Statements (Continued)
Fund Financial Statements (Continued)
Proprietary Fund
Statement Of Net POSILION ......ccuvrreecevreeeceeie et eseeeesessenes 13
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position................. 14
Statement 0f Cash FIOWS .......cooiivrerenecceceecisenessssseesesesesessssessss s 15-16
Fiduciary Funds
Statement of Fiduciary Net POSILION .....c.ovvveieeeeiveieiceeeereeeesieesseresessessssesnns 17
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net POSIition ..........ecocveeereereevsresrsrssrsene 18
Notes to Financial Statements.........cooevcevnnrinrvenes Creeerneneanan 19-74
Required Supplementary Information
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes
in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
General FUNQ ...ttt ese s e ene 75
ReCTeation FUNM.... ...ttt ccsessese s eeens e s 76
Schedule of Funding Progress
Other Postemployment Benefit PLan .............cvveivevveeeoeereeeeeeeeseeseseesese s 77
Schedule of Employer Contributions '
llinois Municipal Retirement FUnd ............cooouieeiveeceeeeeeeeee e eeeeeeresesenns 78
Police Pension FUN ..o s e eess e sesnens 79
Firefighters” Pension FUNd ..........ccccocomiiiinieceeeces et sssnssnssens 80

Other Postemployment Benefit PIan ...........c.eecveieeeeiineeeeeeeeneeeseresesreseenns 8l



VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS
TABLE OF CONTENTS (Continued)

FINANCIAL SECTION (Continued)

GENERAL PURPOSE EXTERNAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Required Supplementary Information (Continued)

Schedule of Changes in the Employer’s Net Pension Liability
and Related Ratios

lllinois Municipal Retirement FUNd ...........ocovvvvoreeeereeeeeeeeeeeeeeeseseeeres o
Police Pension FUN ... sse e vnns

Firefighters” Pension Fund ........................
Schedule of Investment Returns

Police Pension FUN ...ttt ve s senene
Firefighters” Pension FUNd .......covverorunrnceceiiceeieee e
Notes to Required Supplementary Information ..............ceeeeeveeeesreveserseorononn.

COMBINING AND INDIVIDUAL FUND
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SCHEDULES

MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

General Fund

Schedule of Revenues - Budget and Actual ..........oeoeeeeveeevevereeeee oo,

Schedule of Expenditures - Budget and Actual........................

Debt Service Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and

Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual............c.oooeeeeeeeeeeererererernnn.

Facility Construction Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and

Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual...........o.oooouveeoeeeeresrseennns

Downtown TIF District Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance -
Budget and Actual .....................

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Combining Balance SHEEt ........ccueicciviveviceeeec e er e ere s es e essens

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balances ...........ccccoocvvvirrnenann,
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

MOLOr FUET TaX FUNG...o..ooirerieeeeeeee oo eee e oot

Page(s)

82
83
84

85
86
87

96

97

98

99

100

101



VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS
TABLE OF CONTENTS (Continued)

FINANCIAL SECTION (Continued)

COMBINING AND INDIVIDUAL FUND
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SCHEDULES (Continued)

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS (Continued)

Nonmajor Capital Projects Funds

Combining Balance SHeet .........cccourmvrceeereeereeeeeereeste e eeeseennes

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and

Changes in Fund Balances . ettt ettt bs e eneens

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

Road Improvements FUNd.............oveeueeeeereemnnnecerensieeeeeres s seees e
Local Gas Tax Fund.........ccononcrinnrceeecee e esoss

Marquette Center TIF District Fund.........ccooveveevrnanan.

2004 Construction FUN c..ouuee e eeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e eroee et

Romeo Road TIF District Fund...........oovrvevenenn..
MAIJOR ENTERPRISE FUND
Scheduie of Revenues, Expenses, and
Changes in Net Position - Budget and Actual

Water and Sewer Fund ...

FIDUCIARY FUNDS

Combining Statement of Fiduciary Net PoSItion ...........cceoevuvveeeeceeneessonn,

Combining Statement of Changes in Fiduciary
Net POSItion .....coecececcinrnnsernnnnecrnnneneeeenn,

Schedule of Revenues, Expenses, and
Changes in Net Position - Budget and Actual

POlice PENSION FUNG o...c.ooeeeireeeeeeeeeeee et ceeesee oot

SUPPLEMENTAL DATA

Schedule of Debt Service ReqUIrements ...........covvveeveermeeeeseereenss s reseenas

Page(s)

102-103

104-105

11-1i2



VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS
TABLE OF CONTENTS (Continued)

STATISTICAL SECTION

Financial Trends
Net Position by COMPONENL ......c.veeecuirreeieceeecrciiseiesseeseeeeeeessscsessesssessesesseresssessssnes
Change in Net POSILION........vercrererereririee s eceeseeeesessssssssnssessesssseseesaenes

Revenue Capacity
Assessed Value and Actual Value of Taxable Property ...
Schedule of Property Tax Rates - Direct and Overlappmg Govemments ...................
PrinCipal Property TaXPAYETS .......cvccvuevverirrerierssssscseneessssssssssesssesesssssssssssessssesesssons
Schedule of Property Tax Levies and Collections...
Debt Capacity
Ratios of Outstanding Debt BY TYPE.......ueueemmcireeressrecerseeseeesessessessessesssessasssssssssssens
Ratios of General Bonded Debt OutStanding.............o..oeureeveereeerreereesesessesseessesseesns
Schedule of Direct and Overlapping Bonded Debit.........
Schedule of Legal Debt Margin ..o oo esesesssessssossesssesaeses
Demographic and Economic Information
Demographic and Economic INdiCators...........uuveeeeecenevceeceeceseeesessssssssesesseesssssses
PrINCIPal EMPIOYETS covu.cevenriveeeiereceerneeesionsianese e e sssscsssiss sosseseenaseseeseneressesssessssnes
Operating Information
Fuli-Time Equivalent Employees by FURCHON ...........o.oureiveeeeeeeneereesseesssessssreens
Operating INICALOLS ........cccivirerrvereriereinsirseries s sssssssessessanseacesersssessssasessaseons
Capital Asset Statistics ..................

Page(s)

2 1o 19t

\D~I-JL»J-—-
@ 19 b 1o
[=-2N -~ M= N (W]

131
132
133
134

135-136
137
138
139

140
141

142-143
144-145
146



INTRODUCTORY SECTION



VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS
LIST OF PRINCIPAL OFFICALS

April 30,2018

ELECTED OFFICALS
John D. Noak, Mayor
Dr. Bernice E. Holloway, Village Clerk

Lourdes Aguirre, Trustee
Jose (Joe) Chavez, Trustee
Brian Clancy, Sr., Trustee

Ken Griffin, Trustee
Linda Palmiter, Trustee
Dave Richards, Trustee

ADMINISTRATION
Steve Gulden, Village Manager

Kent Adams, Fire Chief
Eric Bjork, Public Works Director
Dawn Caldwell, Assistant Village Manager
Kirk Openchowski, Finance Director
Kelly Rajzer, Director of Parks and Recreation
Steve Rockwell, Community Development Director
Mark Turvey, Chief of Police



1abeuey abepa Juawdojsasq uoNealnsy

URSISSY YWY [oueul4 Aunwwon SHIOAA J)IQng 9 syey G| ao|od

Jabeuepy
abea

18VHD TTYNOILVZINVOMO

JAIM - AOVTIIA
SIONITTI 'ITUAOINOY 20 DV TIIA



®

Government Finance Officers Association

Certificate of

Achievement
for Excellence
in Financial
Reporting

Presented to

Village of Romeoville
Illinois

For its Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report
for the Fiscal Year Ended

April 30, 2017

Chuilphe. P Mrvitt

Executive Director/CEQ

rer
=1l -



MAYOR
Joha Noak

CLERK
Dr. Bernice E. Holloway

TRUSTEES

Linda §. Paleniter
Jose (Joe) Chavez
Brian A. Clancy Se.
Dave Richards
Ken Griffin
Lourdes Aguirre

VILLAGE MANAGER
Steve Gulden

October 30, 2018

To the Village President and Members of the Board of Trustees of the Village of Romeoville

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of the Village of Romeoville for the fiscal year
ended April 30, 2018, is hereby submilted as required by the Iliinois Comglied slatutes. State law
requires thal the Village annually issue a complele set of audited financial stalements. The sialements
must be presented in conformance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
ot America (GAAP) and audited in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards by an
Independent firm of certified public accountants. This CAFR is published to fuliill these requirements
for the fiscal year ended April 30, 2018,

The report consists of management's representations concerning the finances of the Village of
Romeoville. Management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and reliability of the
informalion contained in this repon, based upon a comprehensive framework of inlernal conirol thal it
has established for this purpose. Because the cost of internal control should nol exceed anticipated
benefits, the objeclive is to provide reasonable, rather than absolule, assurance that the financial
statements are free of any material misstatments. As management, we assert that, to the best of our
knowledge and belief, this financial report is complete and reiiable in all material respects,

The Village's financial statements have been audited by Sikich LLP, a firm of licensed certified public
accountants. The goal of the independent audit is to provide reasonable assurance that the financial
statements ol the Village are free of material misslatement. Sikich LLP has issued an unmodified
("clean”) opinion on the Village of Romeoville's financial statements for the year ended April 30, 2018
and as such are fairly presented in conformity with GAAP. The independent audilor's report is localed
at the front of the financial section of this report.

Management's discussion and analysis (MD&A) immedialely follows the independent auditor's report
and provides a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis of the basic financial statements. MD&A
complements this letter of ransmittal and should be read in conjunction with it. GAAP requires that
management provide the MD&A as a narrative introduction, overview and analysis of the basic financial
slatements.

Profile of the Village of Romeoville

The Village of Romeaoville, incorporated in 1895, is located in Will County and is approximalely 26 miles
southwest of Chicago. It currently encompasses 18 square miles and is bardered by ihe Village of
Bolingbroak {o the north, unincorporated Will Counly to the west, south and east, the City of Lockport
to the southeast and the City of Crest Hill to the South. The Village serves a population of approximately
40,000 residents. Itis a home rule community as defined by the Ilfinois Constitution.

The Village of Romeoville is empawered 1o levy a property lax on real propery located within its
boundaries. It also is empowered by slate slalule lo extend ils corporate limits by annexation, which it
has done from time to time.
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The Village has a President and Board of Trustees and has a Village form of governmenl. The Village
Board is composed of the Village President and six truslees who are elecled at large on a non-partisan
basis for staggered four year terms. The Village has an elected Clerk who is elected to a four-year term at
the same time as the Village President. Policy making and legislative aulhority are vested in the Village
Board. The Village Board is responsible for, among other things, passing ordinances and resolutions
pertaining to and authorizing the wide scope of Village activilies and aperations, adopting the budget,
appointling members to Boards and Commissions and appointing the Village Manager. The Village
Manager is responsible for carrying out the policies and ordinances of the Village Board and for overseeing
the day-to-day operations of the Village.

The Village of Romeoville provides a full range of services, including police and fire prolection; refuse
collection; snow and leaf removal; traffic control; on-and off-siseet parking; building inspeclions; community
development; code enforcement; community relation services: licenses and permits; the conslruction and
maintenance of roads, bridges, storm waler systems and other infrastruciure; recrealional and cultural
aclivilies including parks; and general administrative services. In addition 1o the Villaga's general
government activities the Village provides water and sewer services.

The Village has excellent schools, a wide variely of post high school education opportunities within the
Village incfuding those provided by Lewis University, Joliel Junior College and Rasmussen College, a
diverse housing stock, easy access to major highways and public transportation and is home to the Lewis
University Airport.

The Village is required to adopt an initial budget for the fiscal year no later than the April 30" preceding the
beginning of the fiscal year on May 1sl. This annual budgel serves as the foundation for the Village of
Romeoville's financial planning and control. The budget is prepared by fund, function (e.g., public safety),
and department (e.g., police). The Village's legal level of control is at the fund level. The Village does not
amend the budgel as approved. Departments may, on an internal basis, transfer resources within a
department. Departmenis have lo demonstrate line item savings to transfer funds to ancther line item.
Depariments may, on an internal basis, increase expenditure and revenue line items if both 1he revenue
and expenditure was unbudgeted and related to each other. Budget transfers may not be made between
funds. Transfers between departmenis and overages require approval from the Village Manager.

Economic Factors

The Village became a Home Rule community in February of 2004. Heme Rule communities are not subject
1o the state imposed property tax cap which limits property tax increases, excluding new development and
newly annexed property, to the lessor of 5% or the CPI. Home Rule communities have no legal debl limit,
can implement additional revenue sources not available to non-Home Rule communities and can implement
regulations not available to non-Home Rule communities. Under lllincis State Statutes a Village or Cily
automatically qualities as a Home Rule community when the population exceeds 25,000.

The financial condition of the Stale Government and, to a lesser extent, the Federal government continued
to effect the Village of Romeoville during fiscal year 2018 and is expected to continue through fiscal year
2019. Grant assistance remains extremely competilive and previously reliable stale shared revenues that
are distributed on a per capita basis, including the income tax, molor fuel tax and use tax, which may be
reduced by the state as part of the state's effort to balance future state budgets, are still economically
sensitive and tend to fluctuate up and down on a year-to-year basis. The Village continues to look inlernally
and consider increasing other revenue sources and/or reduce expenditures to maintain services levels until
these larger governments get their finances in order. However, as the economy continuas to improve
downward trends are slowing and show signs of reversing course.

The State, after the start of the Village's FY 17-18 fiscal year, presenled three major challenges. The first
challenge was a 10% seduction in State Income tax which reduced revenues by $310,000 in FY 17-18.
The State claimed the reduction will be for one year only. However, the reduclion was not fully restored.
The State will reduce the State Income Tax by 5% for the state FY 18-19 (July-June). As a result, the
Village will face a $235,000 annual revenue challenge in FY 18-19 and $40,000 in FY 19-20,
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The second was a 2% collection fee on the Village's Home-Rule sales tax which otaled $137,000 for FY
17-18. The rale was reduced for Stale FY 18-19 {0 1.5%.

The third challenge was the State reduced FY 17-18 sales tax deduclions, State and Home Aule, by
$290,000 for overpayments made by the State to the Village. The challenges were met with a combination
ol expenditure reductions and use of additional revenues from olher sources.

The FY 14-15 and FY 15-16 Budgels were at $47 million and the FY 16-17 budget increased to $50 million.
The FY 17-18 budget was al the $57 million level and did utilize $1 million in fund balance, which was not
needed. The FY 17-18 Budge! included $5 million for the construction of the Metra Station and $4 million
in grant funds. Excluding this project, the budget was $52 million. The FY 18-18 budget was $54 million.
FY 19-20 is anlicipated to be $57 million.

The Village, after the start of the FY 17-18 Budget, implemented the following changes not reflected in the
budget, Overweight/Over-width permits, self-adjudication hearings for towing, ambulance rate changes to
simplify the rates and belter capture Medicare payments.

in FY 18-19 the Village raised the local gas tax rate from S cents to 6 per gallon and Diesel Fuel from 7
cents per gallon to 9 cents per gallon. The combined impact will range from $400,000 to $600,000. Local
lax rates and fees will be reviewed as part of the FY 19-20 budgsl and proposed increases and/or new fees
may be presented to the Village Board.

The Village implemented an annual 5% increase in the waler and sewer rates. The rate increases are
reviewed every year as part of the budget process. Haowever, the increases will be needed for several
years to ensure the proper levels of services are provided to the residents and the system is maintained in
the proper manner, The Village anticipates decreasing the annual 5% rate increase to 3% starling in FY
19-20. However, this will be monitored on a year-lo-yaar basis.

The Village pursued the imptementation of a Real Eslale Transfer Tax. The tax, by state slatute, can only
be implemented by Home Rule communities but still must be approved by the voters through the
relerendum process. The Village was able to successfully pass the referendum during the April 5, 2005
elections. The Real Estate Transler Tax generated $1.2 million in FY 17-18 and has already generated
over $900,000 in FY 18-19, These ligures are ¢losing in on peak pre-recession numbers of $1.7 million.

The impraving housing market positively affect receipts but sale of commercial and industrial properiies
continues to produce the bulk of the revenue. The Village pledged, through the referendum process, to
use half the proceeds for recreational projects and open space acquisition and the other half for growth
related capital projects and public safety equipment.

Fiscal year 2004 saw the slart of a slowdown in residential growth in the Village. The trend continued
during the 2014 fiscal year. The Village's housing slarts have decreased from the 700 10 1,200 range {o the
current 25 to 50 range. The Village has no new subdivisions planned and only lwe active subdivisions are
having new homes buiit with increased aclivity up to 50 homes in FY 18-19. An apartment complex, located
along Weber Road, of 292 units started construction in FY 15-16, opened in FY 16-17 and was fully
occupied in FY 18-19. A similar sized complex along Normantown Road broke ground in 2018 and will see
occupancy in 2019,

The Village continues 1o receive substantial funds from growth related revenues including building permils
and tap-on fees but conlinues to experience small annua! increases in areas such as water and sewer
usage, utility tax and recreation department revenues. The Village conlinues lo see significant industrial
and, to a lesser extent, commercial development. The industrial and commercial development does have
a posilive impact on sales tax, property tax, utility tax, business licenses and water and sewer revenues.

Amazon opened a large distribution center in 2017 that employs over 1,000 people and is now one of the

Village's iargest sales tax payers, offselling the FY 17-18 closing of both the Target store and the Sam's
Club.
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The closing of the Target was also offset by the fact that the 50/50 sales 1ax economic incentive to the
developer of the retail center that included the Target store had recently ended. The 50/50 sales tax
incentive agreement wilh the Sam’s Club effectively ended with stores closing as well.

Blain's Farm and Fleet broke ground on their new slore in 2015 which opened in October of 2016. The
outlols are starling to develop on the site, as a Murphy's gas station opened in 2018 and Checkers has
expressed some interesl. Toyola opened a new car dealership on Weber Road in the September of 2018,
The Holiday Inn Express located along Normantown Road broke ground in FY 18-19 and will cpen in FY
19-20.

Two new Mexican restaurants opened Iheir doors in the fall of 2017, One is located in the old Fat Ricky's
site, while the olher is located off of Budler Road. The Bee Brothers opened their doors in 2018 at the old
Applebee’s site. Doc Watsons also opened in FY 17-18

The Village, in hope of revilalizing what is now designated as the downtown area, formed a Tax Increment
Finance District (Downtown TIF) to provide a funding mechanism for the needed activities and projects,
The revitalization wili provide an economic engine on the Village's aging North side. The revitalization is
expected lo have a long-term posilive impact on property taxes, sales taxes, building permits and other
revenue sources. The Village has implemented extensive design standards for properties lacated within
the TIF area and wanls to improve the existing structures 1o meet the new standards. More imporiantly,
the Downtown TIF is expecled to improve the quality of life lor the residents. The Downtown TIF is
anlicipated to altract new quality businesses 1o the area.

The downtown area is generally bounded by Normantown Road on the north, lllinois Route 53 on the east,
Alexander Circle on the south and Dalhart Avenue on the west. The area includes what currently is the
Spartan Square Shopping Center and the surrounding vacant land and various out lots. The entire
Downlown TIF area is approximately 421 acres including the Downtown Area. The Downtown TIF extends
east of the Downtown area lo include nearby industrial parks and open space up to and along the Des
Plaines River and soulh along the Route 53 frontage properties to Romeo Road. The Downtown TIF is
conliguous to the existing Marquette TIF.

The Downtown TIF allows the Village to capture property tax dollars based upon additional equalized
assessed value (EAV) realized above 2003 values and the combined 1ax rate for all faxing bodies, Property
owners in the Downtown TIF pay the property taxes they normally pay. The taxing bodies receive property
taxes based upon the 2002 EAV of the TIF area and the Village receives the remaining portion of property
laxes for the incremental EAV above the 2003 lavel. The Village has the approval and support from the
taxing bodies affected by the Downlown TIF, including the Valley View 365U School District. The Village
began 1o receive TIF funds in the 2006-07 fiscal year. The Downtown TIF may generale an estimated $5.5
million in property taxes over ils remaining life. An additional $19 million is anticipated 1o be impored from
the exisling Marguetie TiF over ils remaining life. State stalules allow the villages to import/export TIF
Funds between TIF Districts if they are contiguous with each other. The Marquette TIF is the primary
funding source for the Downtown TIF.

Businesses include the relocation of the Fat Ricky's restaurant from their former location within the TIF to
a new, larger building that includes a 4,000 square oot deli and the construction of a 7,000 square fool
strip center that includes a Subway sandwich shop, a relocated Harris Bank and a relocated dentist office.
TIF incentives have been provided lo Fat Ricky's and to the developers of the retail cenler. The projects
broke ground in early 2016 and were completed late in 2016.

The Village acquired the Spartan Square Shopping Plaza, located within the Downtown TIF, during fiscal
year 2008. The Village was in the process of looking at condemnation. Having conirol of the properly
provided the Village better ffexibility and flow of information in working with potential developers with regards
to the property. The Village razed the Spartan Square Plaza in 2013. The Village also acquired the 9 Rock
Road property for $1.3 million and demolished the main structure with TIF funds in FY 201213, and
performed additional site clean-up and improvements in FY 13-14 and FY 14-15, The business located on
the site was taken over by the bank.

- vii -



It was a sile the Village has coveted because the business was improperly zoned but was grandlathered in
when Ihe zoning for the business type changed. The Village, as part of the transaction, had an oplion to
acquire an additional 2.3 acres adjacent to 9 Rock Road for $170,000. The Village exercised the option in
FY 13-14 and completed the transaction in FY 14-15.

The Village has purchased both the former Harris Bank site {FY 16-17 - Downtown TIF - $1.2 million) and
the former Dentist Office site (FY 17-18 - Facility Gonstruction Fund - $268,000). The Village also acquired
vacant land from Harris Bank during fiscal year 2009 {$2.2 million). The combined land may be used for
an apartment complex, hotel or addilional parking. The Village has alse acquired the Route 66 used car
lot located along Route 53 in FY 17-18 (General Corporate Fund) and budgeted Downtown TIF funds to
acquire the other used car lot along Route 53 in FY 18-19. Bolh car lols are located within the Downtown
TIF. However, the secand car lot may be purchased by a developer to construct a new Dunkin Donuts,
The current nearby Dunkin Donuts would relocate 1o the new facilily. The new site would belter
accommodate the retailer's high volume of business and relieve poor traffic conditions generated by the
currenl site,

The Village purchased a small car wash in FY 15-16 located within the downtown TIF and converded it to a
much needed parking lol. The Edward Hospital Athletic and Event Cenlter hosts many evenls where parking
is at a premiumn.

In 2017 a new Thornlons gas stalion and a new car wash opened on the corner of Route 53 and Romeo
Road with additional commercial use 1o follow, including a liquor store that will start construclion in FY 18-
19. TIF incentives were provided for this project to offset road improvements required along both Route 53
and Romeo Road. Additional incentives will be provided as the site develops. The car wash relocated from
a small lot located near Route 53 and Normantown Reoad. A new Checkers restaurant is open al that
location.

Two restaurants apened in or near the Downtown Area in FY 2010-11 (Mongo McMichael's Texas
Barbeque and the Stone City Saloon). TIF incentives were provided to both restauranis. The new
McDonalds opened up in the Downlown TIF area in 2016 across the street from the Edward Hospital
Alhletic and Event Center.

The Village may spend $65.0 million in projects throughout the Downtown TIF area with the main focus in
the designated downtown area. Projects include the Edward Hospital Athletic and Events Cenler including
a potential fulure expansion of the facility, Route 53 landscaping islands, infrastructure improvements to
slorm water systems, improve and realign roadways and property acquisition, assembly, preparation and
maintenance. TIF dollars will be used lo assist propenty owners wilh property rehab, facade improvements,
relocation expenses and other incenlives, The Village, in FY 18-19, is starting the process to exiend the
life of the Dawntown TIF by 12 years.

Incentives have been or will be provided 1o assist the White Oak Library renovalion project {$270,000),
Mickey's Goodyear renovations ($40,000), Mongo McMichael's Restaurant improvements {$75,000),
Danny Boys site resloration {$72,605), Stone City Saloon improvements ($240,000), Walgreens site
improvements ($350,000), McDonalds ($100,000), Duke Realty (§700,000), the PAL Group/Orange Crush
property restoration (330,000} and TD Romeoville LLC (Route 53 & 135" St. Development - $315,000).

Fat Ricky's Restaurant incentives include $750,000 in cash incentives plus free land, parking lot design and
engineering fees, reduced permit iees and landscape construction that could push the tolal value well over
$1 million. The Relail Center incentives include $275,000 in cash incentives plus free land, reduced permil
fees and landscape construction that could push the total value well aver $500,000. Ali of the Retail Center
incentive have been paid while $24,000 remain on the Fat Ricky's Incenlive.

The Village issued, in July of 2013, $15.1 millian in bonds to pay for the construction of the Edward Hospital

Athletic and Event Center and public improvements in the downtown area. The bonds were for 12 years
and are being paid with TIF funds. The bond issue is a mix of taxable and non-taxable bonds.
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The 1axable portion pertains to the funding needed for the Edward Hospital Athletic and Event Center (312.9
million) while the remaining portion ($2.2 million) was used primarily for storm waler and road
improvements. $10.5 million remains outstanding. Remaining payments including interest totals $12.3
million.

The Edward Hospilal Athletic and Event center provides the Village a presence in the downtown and serves
as an attraction to bring both a daylime and nighitime population to the downtown. The Edward Hospital
Athletic and Event Center partially opened in the January of 2014 and fully opened in March of 2014.

The Edward Hospital Athletic and Evenl Center is fulfilling its intended goal to act as an economic engine
for the downlown area, as it has been in near conslant use for many practices, leagues, and hosting of
events including several large basketball tournaments, featuring youth and high school male and female
athletes of interest to various levels of college programs., The Edward Hospital Athletic and Event center
contains space for a performing arls cenler/slage, indoor lur practice fields, two permanent baskelball and
valleyball counts, six temporary basketball courts, and community rooms. The Village entered into a naming
rights agreement with Edward Hospital in 2015 regarding the Athletic and Event Cenler. The agreement is
for five years with five payments from Edward to the Village of $100,000. Edward Hospital also operales a
physical therapy cenler in the center.

The Village pursued a Public/Private partnership where the Village builds the facilities and provided the
building to a privale group to operale the facllity. The agreement, which was supposed to be for 5 years,
placed much of the financial risk of operating losses with the operator while the Village received limited use
of the facility, a low annual rental fee, relain revenue generated for naming rights, a 50/50 splil of certain
sponsorships, limited revenue sharing for the last three years of the agreement and olher minor
considerations. However, the Village restructured the operating arrangements ol the Athletic and Event
Center.

Starting in May of 2017 the Village took over operaling responsibilities for 1he center on a day-to-day basis
while contracling with the former operator tenant to help manage and siaff the facility for the remaining
length of the original contract. The Village now bears the risk and reward for operating the facility. The
revised arrangement with the former operator was approved by the Village Board in May of 2017. The
Village then further revised the agreement in May of 2018, terminating the relationship with the former
operalor. The center is now managed, stalfed and operated 100% by the Village.

The Village received approval from the state legislature, which required the approval of allthe taxing bodies
within the TIF to grant approval, lo extend the life of the Margquette TIF for 12 years to further support what
the Village hopes to accomplish in the Downtown area. The Village increased the Marguelte TIF tax
distribution surplus from 20% to 50% during the remaining life of the ariginal Marquette TIF and 30% for
the life of the extended portion which started with the 2013 property tax levy.

The Village also provided the Valley View School District $1,000,000 in TIF funds for improvements for the
RC Hill Schoo! and $250,000 will be provided for Transportation Facility improvements both of which are
located in the Downtown TIF. The Village also forgave the school district $250,000 in a loan, funded through
TIF, related to the Transportation Facility. The area also includes a renovated library facility. The library
district completed their renovation project in the summer of 2012.

The Village created a third TIF in fiscal year 2008, The Romeo Road TIF is located on the North East corner
of Route 53 and Romeo Road and is 2.5 acres in size. The TIF was created lo provide $350,000 in
incentives for Developers lo bring a Walgreens to the site. The Walgreens opened in Octaber of 2008. The
site was home to a long-time closed Amoco station. The site had a number of environmenial and
inirastructure challenges and would not be developed without the incentives. The Romeo Road TIF is
contiguous to the Downtown TIF. The Village may construct additional turn lane improvements at the
Walgreens, which will be funded out of the Romeo Road TIF.

The Village completed the formation the two Gateway TIF's in May of 2017. The TIF's are located along
Route 53 and Joliet Road with properties near or adjacent to the Marquette TIF.



The TIF's are separaled by a strip of ComEd land that ComEd did not wish to annax into the Village. The
site will see the development of a Thorntons truck relueling center, a truck wash, a large distribution center
and a smaller industrial building. Work on all the bolh projects has starled.

The developer will recsive 90% of the increment from the two TIF’s and will include the issuance of up to
$9 million in notes, and possibly bonds to monslize the project for he developer. The developer will
construct a road, make improvements to Route 53 and Joliel Road, that are required by the Illinois
Department of transportation, including completion of the inlersection traffic signal. In order to make the
site viable, a great deal of clean-up is required and dynamic compaction of the soil is required. The Village
is also providing a local gas tax incentive, based on the Thorntons motor fuel sales, for the project. The
Village will reimburse the developer 100% of the taxes collected up 1o $3 million.

The agreements 10 provide the incentives were completed in FY 17-18. The notes were issued in April of
2017, with an initial balance of $3,384,000. The Gateway TIF's will generale a small increment ($2,100} in
FY 18-19,

The Village also compleled the formation of the Bluff Road TIF and Independence Road TIF late in FY 17-
18. The first TIF property taxes will be received in FY 19-20. The Bluff Road includes vacant property
located along and near Blufi Road and older properties located along Joliet Road. The Bluff Road TIF is
contiguous with the Upper Gateway TIF. CT Realty is constructing twa industrial building in the Bluif Road
TIF totaling over 1.3 million square feet. The Village is providing $14.6 million in T!F incentives that will be
paid based on a 50/50 split of the TIF revenues. The site requires exlensive environmental remediation
and CT Realty will also make a number of infrastructure improvemenis including expanding and
reconstructing a signilicant portion of Bluff Road.

The Independence Road TIF is located on the north side of Roule 53 belween Honeylree and Enterprise
Drive. The TIF was formed to provide incentives for a project that did not come to fruition due to concerns
from residents and additional challenges associated with the sile. The Independence TIF and the
Marquetle TIF will be amanded in FY 18-18 so that the Independence TIF can expand across Rt. 53 and
include properties located in the current Marquette TIF. The expansion will also include properiies not
localed in either TIF  Tha Marquette TIF properties have seen litlle development. The impact .on the
Marquette TIF will be minimal while providing more time tor the properties to develop within a TIF.

In FY 18-19 the Village is forming the Normantown Road TIF hat will encompass vacant propeny located
along Normantown Road near the 155/Weber Interchange and the Normantown Business District that will
encompass many of the businesses located in the same area. The TIF will assist the Village in developing
several parcels that languished in terms of development despite being in a desirable location due 1o storm
water and access issues. The I55/Weber Interchange, while greatly improving traffic safety conditions, is
remaving Weber Road access from a number of businesses including McDonalds, a 7-11 store/gas station
and Discount Tire. The district will provide funding to restore access and other area improvements. The
district will include a 1% sales tax and 1% hotel tax. There will be two hotels in the district, the Days Inn
and the new Holiday Inn Express.

The Village has experienced decreases in Equalized Assessed Value in 2008, 2008 and 2011 lhrough
2013, a slight 0.42% increase in 2014 a 2.66% increase in 2015, a 7.06% increase in 2016 and & 5.92%
increase in 2017. It is anticipated that the EAV will increase 4% to 6% in 2018. There was a large increase
in 2010 due to a successful challenge, at the county level, of the Citgo Refinery EAV by a local school
district, If not for the Citgo EAV adjustment the Village’s EAV would have decreased for 2010 as well. The
2010 Citgo EAV increase in the Village was $85 million and generated $1.2 million in property tax for the
Village a year lor several years.

Citgo was challenging the EAV increase and if they were successful with the challenge, the Village would
have lo repay the taxes. The case was not scheduled to be reviewed by the Slate Properly Tax Appeals
Board lor several years because of their case backlog. The Village set aside the Citgo Funds in case the
funds had to be repaid. The taxing bodies, led by the county and school district, did reach a settlement
with Cilgo in 2015.



The settlement required that no repayment of taxes collected by the taxing bodies be returned to Citgo.
The Village transferred the funds ($4.3 million) in FY 14-15 from the General Carporale Fund to the Facility
Construction Fund to construct the new Fire Station in FY 16-17. The agreement sels the EAV for the 2014
through 2018 levies.

The settlement did reduce the 2013 EAV by $30 million over the 2015 and 2016 levy years and then remains
steady through the 2018 lavy year but the Village no longer has to sel aside the funds. FY 20-21 (2019
Levy) may be greatly affected by the expiration of the agreement when the refinery will be reassessed.
Another agreement may be struck between ihe refinery and the taxing bodies.

The Village lowered its property tax rate in 2018 (2017 Levy) and has modestly increased the levy over the
last three years. The tax bill (Village portion) for the homeowners has also increased slightly the last three
years, after holding steady for several years, but still remains lower than what the homeowners paid in
2008, after adjusting for inflation.

The Village anticipates keeping the 2018 levy and homeowner cost at similar levels 1o the 2017 lavy. Any
increases will be based upon new growth,

The Village, in order 1o increase sewage trealment capacily and meet EPA requirements, initiated a
wastewater consolidation and expansion project. The tolat project costs $36 million and took several years
lo complele. The Village has secured an linois EPA Revolving Loan ($26 million) for a low interest loan
1o fund the project. The current IEPA loan rate is 2.5%. The loan is lor 20 years, with 11 years remaining.
Annual payments are $1.8 million. The loan is being repaid from water and sewer revenues. The Village
is looking at further expanding the plant, which could slart as early as FY 19-20.

The Village continues to improve infrastructure and transportation in the Village. The State is in the process
of widening the 155 and Weber Road inlersection which includes widening the Normantown and Weber
Road intersection as well. The State has completed the design phase and did “break ground” in FY 14-15.
Some preliminary construction had started but the State was still in the pracess of securing easemnents and
resolving other issues associated with the project. Construction started in lale 2018 and will bagin in earnest
in the spring of 2019, The two interseclions are two of the top ten worst lacations in the stale for accidents.
The Village will have to contribute up to $1 million towards the project for additional improvements
requested by the Village but has secured a grant 1o cover 80% of those costs.

The Village has an 80% malching grant to study and design an interchange system at 155 and Airport and
Roule 126. The Village is working in conjunclion with the Villages of Plainfield and Bolingbrook to fund the
project. All three communities would be the primary beneficiaries of the interchange. The gran! portion of
the project has been completed but additional engineering to complele the study is being paid 100% by the
thres communities. The study should be completed in FY 18-19.

The Village worked with Metra to construct a new train slation located at 135" street and New Avenue. The
Citgo Refinery donated the land for lhe project. The Village secured a grant for design of the station, to
study the impact of the slalion on Ihe Village's east side, and 1o guide proper planning for the area. Melra
worked with the Village 1o secure a grant for construction of the project. The Village is contributing 20% of
the costs ($1 million) 1o fund the project while BO% is coming through grants ($4 million). The station began
construction in spring of 2017 and opaned in February of 2018.

The Village had to pay lor some additional landscaping and other improvements ($300,000) that were
beyond the original scope of the project but desired by the Village. The Village operales the parking lot
associated with the station. The Village secured a grant to expand the parking lot, which will double capacily
to over 250 spaces, The additional parking is badly needed. The expanded parking lot construclion will slart
in the fall of 2018 and be completed in late 2018 or early 2019.
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The Village per state statute, was required lo consolidate its E911 Dispatch cenler for Police and Fire. The
Village chose 1o consolidate with the Wilt Counly Sheriff's Depariment, the Lincolnway Center and several
other municipalities to form the Laraway Communication Cenler,

The consolidation eliminated eleven full-time and seven pari-lime positions. The Village now pays Laraway
for dispatch services. The state felt that limiting the number of dispaich centers in each county would result
in operaling efficiencies and cost savings for the taxpayer. The transition costs slightly exceeded the
personnel cosl savings in FY 17-18. FY18-18, from a budgel perspective, saw aboul $120,000 in savings.
However, those savings will evaporate in FY 19-20 due to greater than anticipaled cost to run the new
center. The consolidation was competed in FY 17-18.

The FY 18-19 budget was prepared at a similar level as FY 17-18, continues to leave cerain positions
vacant from FY 10-11, and limits expenditure increases to only what is contraciually obligated and what is
deemed necessary. The FY 19-20 budget will be prepared in a similar manner.

The Village's contracls with the Police Union (MAP) and Public Works/Clerical/lnspeciors/Code
Enlorcement Union (AFSCME) expire at the end of fiscal year 2019. COLA increases were limited to 2.35%
for the Police and AFFCME expiring contracis, required all new hires to belong to the less expensive HMO
and a greater premium cost for employees who do not participate in the Village's wellness program.

The first Fire Union contract expired in FY 12-13 and negatiations were completed in FY 14-15. The setled
contract included a substantial pay increase in order o maintain compensation at levels similar fo
surrounding and like size communities and included a 2% COLA. The original contract expired al the end
of FY 15-16. The new contract was finally settled in October of 2017 with lerms similar to those of the Police
and AFSCME unions with a 2.35% increase for FY 16-17 {paid retroactively in FY 17-18), a 6% increase
tor FY 17-18 and a 2.35% increase for FY 18-19. Current firefighters on the HMQO plan now contribute 5%
{vs. 0%} of the premium cost. All new hires are required to be on the HMO plan and conlribute 12% of the
premium costs. Current Firefighlers on the PPO plan saw no changes to confribution rate (12%).

Non-Union employees moved from a step plan to a merit based range plan for FY 16-17 with average raises
ol 3.5%. There are no automalic COLA increases but the range top and boltom are adjusted each year.
Tolal raises including performance based bonuses did average 3.5% for FY 17-18 and FY 18-19, a similar
percent to the combined union Step Increase and COLA increases received by the unions {4.0%). Starling
in FY 18-19 current Non-Unien stalf was required to contribute 5% towards HMO premiums. New hires are
no longer able to participale in the PMO insurance plan and will contribute 12% towards premiums.

Police and Fire Pension Fund Information

The Police Pension fund overall had a good vear in in FY 17-18. Actuarial assumptions estimale that the
Village will return 7% annually for pension fund purposes when, in actuality, the Police Pension fund had a
return of 8.9% in FY 17-18. The relurn was caused by an up year in the equily markets, which was reflected
in the increase of the market vaiue in mutual funds held by the fund. Overall, the fund value increased by
$3.9 million/10%. The Police Pension fund has a diverse portlolio that includes cash, cash equivalenls and
money market mutual funds {1%), treasuries and agencies (32%) and equities (67%). The Police Pension
fund, based on FY 17-18 data and the Village's actuary calculations, is 66.7% funded, a 0.9% increase
from the prior year under the Actuarial Valuation of Assets and 68.2% funded, a 1.89% increase from the
prior year under the Markel Valuation of Assets. However, the Village changed its assumplions, excluding
lhe investment rale of return, to reflect the changes the state made for their actuarial studies. On an apples-
lo apples comparison basis with last year's sludy, the percent funded increased by 3.6% to 70.3% funded
{Actuarial Valuation of Assels). The Village, at the lime of this repor, does nol yet have actuarial information
based on FY 17-18 dala from the State. The Village and Slale use differing methodelogy. The Village
bases the levy on the higher actuary requirement between the two.

The Fire Pension fund had an up year in FY 17-18. Acluarial assumptions estimate that the Village will
return 7% annually for pension fund purposes.
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However, the Fire Pension fund only returned 4.3%. Overall, the fund value increased by $61B,000/7%.
The Fire Pension fund is very conservative with 65% of the assels invested in money markel mutual funds
(1%), lederal lreasuries, agencies (51%) and municipal bonds (79). The remaining 41% is invested in
mulual funds. The Fire Pension fund, based on FY 17-18 data and the Village's actuary calculalions, is
88.9% funded, a 7.2% decrease from Ihe prior year under the Actuarial Valuation of Assets and 92.6%
funded with a 7.2% decrease from the prior year under the Markel Valuation of Assels. However, the Village
changed ils assumptions, excluding the investment rate of return, to reflect the changes the state made for
their acluarial sludies. On an apples-to apples comparison basis with last year's sludy, the percent funded
decreased by 5.0% to 91.1% funded (Actuarial Valuation of Assets). The driving cause of the decrease was
the seltlement of the Fire Unian conlract, the data reflecled two years of salary increases including the FY
17-18 6% increase. The Village, at the time of this report, does not yel have actuarial information based on
FY 17-18 dala from lhe State. The Village and Stale use differing methodology. The Village bases the
levy on the higher acluary requirement between the two.

The Village conducted an OPEB GASB 45 actuary study in FY 17-18. The acluarial liability remained the
increased slighily from $4.8 million lo $4.9 million. Positive impacts on the study included maintaining similar
assumptions pertaining 1o the length of time participants will remain an Village insurance upon retirement
based on sick lime benelit usage, the ages of reliree spouses, gender and sliding scale of the implicit cost
as relirees age, having 6 fewer participants in the plan, smaller than anlicipated rate increases since the
last study, positive IMRF actual report information and a change lo a better suited moriality table. Negative
impacls include an older, longer tenured workforce and a higher assumed rate of insurance premium
increases.

The next study will be based upon FY 18-19 dala. The Village in FY 18-19 switched from a wholly insured
health insurance program lo a seli-insurance pool The Village joined several other Chicage-land area
communities lo form the Government Insurance Nelwork (GIN) pool. The pool offers similar sell-insured
PPO plans and HMO plans, It is anticipated the Village will save aboul 7% annually on health insurance
premiums. The Village will implement GASB 75 as required in FY 18-19.

The preparation of this report would not have been possible withoul the skill, effort, and dedication of the
entire stafl of the Finance Department. We wish lo thank all government departments for their assistance
in providing the necessary dala and participation to prepare this reporl. Credit also is due to the Village
President and the Village Board for thair unfailing support for rmainlaining the highest standards of
professionalism in the management of the Village of Romeoville's finances.

Respectfully submitted,
hl

Tloofee O plinclimiet

Kirk Openchowski
Finance Direclor/Treasurer
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s l K I C H CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS & ADVISORS
¢

1415 West Diehl Road, Suite 400
Napervilte, IL 60563

630.566.8400

SIKICH.COM

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

The Honorable Village President
and Members of the Board of Trustees
Village of Romeoville, Illinois

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the
Village of Romeoville, 1llinois (the Village), as of and for the year ended April 30, 2018 and the
related notes to financial statements, which collectively comprise the Village's basic financial
statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementation. and maintenance of internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
Judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the Village's preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statemments in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Village's internal control.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a

basis for our audit opinions.

ACCOUNTING TECHNOLOCY ADVISORY



Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Village of Romeoville, Illinois
as of April 30, 2018, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash
flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America,

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management’s discussion and analysis and the required supplementary information listed in the
table of contents be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information,
although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board. who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the
basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have
applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of
inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the
information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements.
We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited
procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any
assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the Village’s basic financial statements. The introductory section,
combining and individual fund financial statements and schedules, and statistical section are
presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial
statements.

The combining and individual fund financial statements and schedules are the responsibility of
management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to
the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare thé basic financial statements or to the
basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the
combining and individual fund financial statements and schedules are fairly stated, in all material
respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.



The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an
opinion or provide any assurance on them.
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Naperville, 1llinois
October 26, 2018
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Village of Romeoville, lllinois
Management's Discussion and Analysis

April 30, 2018

The Village of Romeovilie's (the “Village”) management discussion and analysis (MD&A) is designed to (1) assist the reader in
focusing on significant financial issues, (2) provide an overview of the Vitlage's financial activity, (3) identify changes in the Village's
financial posilion (its ability to address the next and subsequent years' challenges), (4) idenlify any malerial deviations from the
financial plan {the approved budget), and {5) identify individual fund issues or concerns

Since the Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&AY} is designed to focus on the current year's activities, resulting changes
and currently known facts, please read it in conjunction with the Village's financial statements {beginning on page 4).

Using the Financial Section of this Comprehensive Annual Report

In the past, the primary focus of local governmental financial stalements has been summarized fund type information on a current
financial resources basis. This approach has been modified and now the Village's financial stalements present two kinds of
statements, each with a different snapshot of the Village's finances. Both perspectives (government-wide and major fund) allow
the user to address relevant questions, broaden a basis for comparison (year-lo-year or govemment-to-govemment) and enhance
the Village's accountability.

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (see pages 4-6) are designed to emulate the corporate sector in that all governmental
and business-type activities are consolidated into columns which add fo a total for the primary government. The focus of the
statement of net position (lhe “unrestricted net position®) is designed to be similar to bottom line results for the Village and its
governmental and business-type activities. This statement combines and consolidates the governmental funds’ current financial
resources {short-term spendable resources) with capital assets and long-term obligations using the accrual basis of accounting
and economic resources measurement focus.

The stalement of aclivities (see pages 5-6) is focused on both the gross and net cost of various activities (including govemmental
and business-type}, which are supported by the government's general taxes and olher resources. This is intended to summarize
and simplify the user’s analysis of the cost of various governmental services and/or subsidies to various business-type activities.

The govemmental activilies reflect the Village's basic services, including general govemment, public safety, public works, and
cullure and recreation. Shared state sales, local utility and shared state income taxes finance the majorily of these services. The
business-type aclivities reflect private sector type operations (water and sewerage), where the fee for service typically covers all
or most of the costs of operalion, including deprecialion.

Fund Financial Statements
Traditional users of governmental financial statements will find the fund financial stalements presentation more familiar. The focus
is on major funds, rather than (the previous model's) fund types.

The govemmental funds (see pages 7-12) presentation is presented on a sources and uses of liquid resources basis. This is the
manner in which the financial plan (the budget} is typically developed. The flow and availability of liquid resources is a clear and
appropriate focus of any analysis of a government. Funds are established for various purposes and the fund financial statements
allow the demonstration of sources and uses andfor budgeting compliance associated therewith.

The fund financial stalements also allow the government lo address its fiduciary funds (Police Pension and Firefighters’ Pension,
see pages 17-18). While these funds represent trust responsibilities of the goverment, these assets are restricted in purpose and
do not represent discretionary assels of the government. Therefore, these assels are not presented as part of the govemment-
wide financial statements.

(See independent auditor’s report.)
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Village of Romeoville, lilinois

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

While the business-type activiies column in the business-type fund financial statements (see pages 13-16) is the same as the
business-type column in the government-wide financial statements, the governmental funds total column requires a reconciliation
because of the different measurement facus (current financial resources versus lotal economic resources} which is reflected on
the page following each statement (see pages 9 and 12). The flow of current financial resources will reflect bond proceeds and
interfund transfers as other financing sources as well as capital expenditures and bond principal payments as expenditures. The
reconciliation will eliminate these transaclions and incorporale capital assets and long-term obligations (bonds and others} into the
governmental activities column (in the government-wide financial statements).

Infrastructure Assets

Historically, a govemment's largest group of assets (infrastructure - roads, bridges, storm sewers, etc.) have not been reported
nor depreciated in governmental financial stalements. The Govemmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 34
(GASB 34) requires that these assets be valued and reported within the governmental column of the government-wide financial
slalements. Additionaliy, the govemment must elect to either (1) depreciate these assets over their estimated useful lives or
{2) develop a system of asset management designed to maintain the service delivery potential to near perpetuity. If the govemnment
develops the assel management system (the modified approach) which periodically (at least every third year), by category,
measures and demonstrates its maintenance of locally established levels of service standards, the government may record its cost
of maintenance in lieu of depreciation. The Village has chosen to depreciate assels over their useful lives. If a road project is
considered maintenance - a recurring cost that does not extend the road's original usefu! life or expand its capacily - the cast of
the project will be expensed. An “overlay” of a road will be considered mainlenance whereas a “rebuild” of a road will be capitalized.

Government-Wide Financial Statements

Statement of Net Position
Net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a govemment’s financial position. In the case of the Village, assets and
deferred outflows of resources exceeded liabiiities and deferred inflows of resources by $339.4 million as of April 30, 2018.

A significanl portion of the Village's net position {104.9%) reflects its investment in capital assets (i.e., land, land improvements,
streets and bridges, slorm sewers, waler mains, buildings and vehicles) less any relaled debt used to acquire those assets that is
still outstanding. The Village uses these capital assels to provide services to its citizens; consequently, these assets are not
available for future spending. Although the Village's investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be
noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources since the capital assets themselves cannot
be used o liquidate these liabilities.

For more detailed information see the statement of net position (page 4).

The Village's combined net position {which is the Village's equity) increased ta $339.4 million from $325.7 million as a result of
increases in the net position of both the govemmental activities and business-type activities. Net position of the Village's
governmental activities for FY 17-18 were $248.4 million, an increase of 10.2 million from FY 16-17. The increase can mostiy be
attributed to changes in current and capital assets of $14.4 million. Current assets increases include additional cash and cash
equivalents and increased property lax receivables. Additional capital assets include the Metra Station, Discovery Park and land
purchases.

Governmental Activities liabilities decreased by $2 million due to debt service payments but was offset by an increased Deferred
Inflow of Resources of $3.7 million, mainly in pension items pertaining fo IMRF and deferred property tax revenues and The
Village's unrestricled net position of a negative $27.4 million is $5.6 million higher than FY 16-17 is negative due to the application
of the GASB 68 requirements regarding pension fund liability reporting requirements, especially in FY 17-18 for IMRF. The net
position of business-type activities increased to $91.0 million from $87.5 million due mainly to an increase in various capital assets
and decreases in water and sewer debt, but the unrestricted portion decreased from $7.6 million to $6.8 million. The Village can
use unrestricted nel posilion to finance the continuing operations of ils water and sewer system,

(See independent auditor’s report.)
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Management's Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Governmental Activities

Current Assels

Noncurrent Assets

Capital Assets
Total Assets

Deferred Quifiows of
Resources
Pension ltems
Unamortized Loss on
Refunding
Tolal Deferred Qutflows
of Resources

Total Assets and
Deferred Outflows
of Resources

Current Liabilities
Noncurrent Lizbilities
Total Liabilities

Deferred Inflows of
Resources
Pension ltems
Deferred Revenue
Unamortized Gain on
Refunding

Total Deferred Inflows

of Resources

Total Liabilities and
Deferred Inflows
of Resources

Net Investment in
Capital Assets
Restricted
Unrestricted

Total Net Position

Normal Impacts

Table 1
Statement of Net Position
As of April 30, 2017
(in millions)

2018 2017 2018
$ 811 $ 568 $122
342.3 334.0 100.4
403.4 390.8 112.6
4.5 5.0 02
04 05 ==
48 55 0.2
408.3 3963 128
8.8 76 33
129.1 132.2 175
137.9 139.8 208
75 44 1.0
14.3 13.7
0.2 0.2 S0
220 183 10
159.9 158.1 218
2718 256.8 84.2
4.0 3.2 -
274 21.8 6.8

Business-Type Activities
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Total Primary Government

2018 2017
$ 733 $ 679
442, 4337
5160 501.6
47 56
04 05
51 61
521.1 507.7
12.1 9.1
146.1 154.6
1587 163.7
8.5 44
14.3 13.7
0.2 02
23.0 18.3
184.7 182,
356.0 336.7
40 3.2
206 14.2

There are six basic (normal) transactions thal will affect the comparability of the Statement of Net Position summary presentation.

Net Results of Activities - which will impact (increase/decrease) current assets and unrestricted net position.

Borrowing for Capital - which will increase current assets and long-term debt.

(See independent auditor’s report.)
-MD&A 3 -



Village of Romeoville, Nlinois

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Spending Borrowed Proceeds on New Capital Assets — which will reduce curent assets and increase capital assets. There is
a second impact, an increase in the amount invested in capital assels and an increase in related net debt which will not change

the nel investment in capital assets.

Spending of Non-borrowed Current Assets on New Capital Assets — which will (a) reduce current assels and increase capital

assets and (b} will reduce unrestricted net position and increase net investment in capita! assets.

Principal Payment on Debt - which will (a) reduce current assets and reduce long-term debt and (b) reduce unrestricted net
posilion and increase net investment in capilal assets.

Reduction of Capital Assets through Depreciation - which reduces capital assels and net investment in capita! assels.
Current Year Impacts
The Village's governmental activities net position increased $10.2 million which can be attributed to several factors.

Capital assets increased $8.3 million due to capital items several projects including the Metra Station, Discovery Park, a new
Animal Shelter and a new concessions stand at Deer Crossing Park,

Current assets increased by $4.3 million, which can be atiributed to a $3.7 million increase in cash and cash equivalents due to
operaling revenues exceeding expendilures, an increase of $0.5 million in receivables driven by property tax receivables and $0.1
million from funds due from other govemments,

Deferred Outflows of Resources decreased by $0.6 million due to changes in Police, Fire and IMRF pension related items and a
reduction in the unamortized loss on refunding on the series 2016A bonds.

Liabilities decreased by $1.8 million due to a $3.0 million decrease in non-current liabilities due to the principal payments of bonds.
Interest payable decreased by $0.1 million due to repayment of debt. There was an offsetting increase of $1.2 million in current
liabilities. Accounts payable increased $0.8 million due to increased capital projects retainages and cutstanding bilts at year end.
Accrued liabilities increased by $0.4 million due to timing with fiscal year end payrolls. Deposits payable, which are funds held in
escrow for various development project, and police fines/ forfeiturefseizure funds that are designated for specific uses by law,
remained the same.

Deferred Inflows of Resources increased by $3.7 million which can mainly be attributed to a $3.0 increase in pension items
pertaining to IMRF and $0.6 million increase in deferred revenue pertaining to property taxes

The Village's business-type activities net position increased $3.5 million and can be attributed to several factors. Liabilities and
Deterred Inflow decreased by $2.1 million and Assets and Deferred Outflows increased by $1.4 miltion.

Current Assets increased by $1.2 miliion due to funds provided by operations exceeding operating expenditures.

Business Capitat asset increased by $0.6 million due to developer contributions of capital assets of $2.2 miltion which was offset
by depreciation and disposal of other assets.

Deferred Outflows of Resources decreased by $0.4 million due to changes in IMRF pension items.

Liabifities decreased by $3.0 million, which can be attributed to a $4.8 million decrease in long term debt comprising of bonds and
|EPA notes payable which was offset by a $1.6 million increase in Account Payable and $0.2 million in accrued liabilities. The
Accounts payable increase is due to increased capita! projects retainages and outstanding bills at year end Accrued liabilities
increased due to iming with fiscal year end payrolls

Deferred Inflows of Resources increased by $0.9 which can be attributed to changes in IMRF pension items.

Current year impacts are discussed in more delail after Table 2,

(See independent auditor’s report.)
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Village of Romeoville, lllincis

Management’s Discussion and Analysis {Continued)

Changes in Net Position

The following chart compares the revenue and expenses for the current and prior fiscal year.

REVENUES
Program Revenues
Charges for Services
Operating Grants and
Contributions
Capital Granls and
Contributions
General Revenues
Property and
Replacement Taxes
Sales Taxes
Income Taxes
Utility Taxes
Other Taxes
Transfers
Other
Special ltem
Total Revenues

EXPENSES
General Government
Public Safety
Public Works
Culture and Recreation
Debt Senvice

Total Expenses

CHANGE IN NET
POSITION

BEGINNING NET
POSITION

Prior Period Adjustment

BEGINNING NET
POSITION, RESTATED

ENDING NET POSITION

Table 2
Changes in Net Position
For the Fiscal Year Ended April 30, 2017
{In millions)

Governmental Activities

2018 2017
$ 14.0 $ 136
16 1.2
46 6.0
17.7 16.6
146 12.0
36 38
6.4 64
55 55
0.2 04
04 06
8.6 66.1
15.9 13.1
20.7 205
1.1 14.4
6.4 58
43 48
584 584
10.2 11
238. 246.3
5 {15.8)
238.2 230.5
$ 2484 $ 2382

Business-Type Activities

2018 2017
$18.6 $ 177
24 18
(0.2) (0.4)
208 11
17.3 17.5
173 i75
35 16
87.5 97.3
(114)

875 85.9
$ 910 $ 878

(See independent auditor’s report.)
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Village of Romeoville, illinois

Management’s Discussion and Analysis {Continued)

2018 Governmental Activities Expenses

BGeneral Government aFublic Safety @Public Works ODebt Service B Cuiture & Recrealion

2018 Governmental Activities Revenue

=]

BCharges for Services OQOperating Granls DCapital Grants OProperty Tax B0Other Taxes aOther

There are eight basic impacts on revenues and expenses as reflected befow:

Normal Impacts

Revenues:
Economic Condition - which can reflect a declining, stable or growing economic environment and has a substantial impact
on state income, sales and utility tax revenue as well as public spending habits for building permits, elective user fees and
volumes of consumption.

Increase/Decrease in Village Board approved rates — while certain tax rates are set by stalule, the Village Board has
significant authority to impose and periodically increase/decrease rates (water, wastewater, impact fees, building fees, home
rule sales taxes, elc.)

Changing Patterns in Intergovernmental and Grant Revenue (both recurring and nonrecurring) - certain recurming
revenues (state shared revenues, etc.) may experience significant changes periodically while nonrecurring (or one-time}
grants are less predictable and often distorting in their impact on year-to-year comparisons.

Market Impacts on Investment income - the Village's investment portfolio is managed using a similar average maturity to
most governments. Market conditions may cause investment income to fluctuate.

(See independent auditor’s report.)
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Village of Romeoville, lllinois

Management's Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Expenses:
Introduction of New Programs - within the functional expense categories (General Government, Public Safety, Public

Works, Culture and Recreation, etc.} individual programs may be added or deleled to meet changing community needs.

Increase in Authorized Personnel - changes in service demand may cause the Village Board to increase/decrease
authorized staffing. Staffing costs (salary and related benefits) represent 41% of the Village's operating coss.

Salary Increases (annual adjustments and merit raises) - the ability {o attract and retain human and inlellectual resources
requires the Vilage to strive to approach a competitive salary range position in the marketplace.

Inflation - while overall inflation appears lo be reasonably modest, the Village is a major consumer of cerain commodities
such as supplies, fuels and parts. Some functions may experience unusual commodity-specific increases.

Current Year Impacts

Revenues:
For the fiscal year ended April 30, 2018, revenues from all activities totaled $89.4 million, The Village has a diversified revenue
structure and depends on several key revenue sources to help pay for lhe services provided. These sources include property
laxes, sales taxes, ulility laxes, shared revenues from the State {income tax, molor fuel tax), building permits, grants,
developer contributions, rubbish collection fees, water and sewer sales to customers and tap-on fees.

The Village saw a 5.92% increase in the equalized assessed valuation (EAY) from $1.140 billion to $1.208 billion. The tax
rate decreased from $1.2594 to $1.2476 per $100 EAV. The Village's levy increased by 4.8% from $13.7 to $14.3 million,
There was a 6.6% increase in its properly and replacement tax revenue in 2018 compared to the previous year as revenues
increased from $16.6 million to $17.7 million. The Village received a modest increase in Replacement Tax. The Village, as a
Home Rule community is not subject to the property lax cap laws. The Village FY 18 collections increased from $16.4 million
lo $17.6 million. TIF property taxes increased by $0.7 miflion, while levied taxes increased by $0.5 million.

Sales Tax increased by 52.6 million or 21%. Sales Tax increased primarily due to the addition of an Amazon distribution
center, a full year of Blains Farm and Fleet, other additional smaller retail and a recovering economy. The Village, later in the
fiscal year did see the closing of the Target Store and Sam's Club. State sales tax increased by $0.9 million and the Village's
Home Rule sales tax increased by $1.7 million. The Village last increased its home rule sales tax rate from 1.00% to 1.5%
effective January 1¢, 2010.

The State Use Tax increased by 50.1 million.

State Income Tax revenue showed a decrease of $0.2 million due to a 10% decrease in the distribution formula used by the
state. The state used the funds to help balance their budget.

Utility taxes remained stable as increases and decreases from electric, water, lelecommunications and nalural gas balanced
each other out.

The Village saw other tax revenue remain stable versus the prior year. Increases in Food and Beverage Tax, Gaming Tax
and local Motor Fuel Tax were offset by decreases in Real Estate Transfer Tax, The Food and Beverage increase of $0.1
million is due lo addilional restaurants and increased sales from existing stores. The Real Estate Transfer Tax decrease of
$0.2 million is due to a smaller number of high value industrial properties selling.

License and permil revenue decreased $0.8 million/23%in 2018. The decrease in building permits is due to a smaller number
of large projects having permits issued in FY 16-17. However, this is due more lo project timing than a dramalic change in
building activity. Several large building projects, including a farge industrial building, had permits issued in May and June of
2018. Building Permit revenues for FY 17-18, while less than last year, did exceed FY 14-15 and FY 15-16.

Investment relums, excluding pension funds, increased by approximalely 53% due to market valuation changes and increased
earnings for funds invested in government securities based investment funds,

(See independent auditor’s report.)
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Village of Romeoville, lllinois

Management's Discussion and Analysis {Continued)

Charges for services increased by $1.3 million or 4%, The increase is from both governmental activities {50.4 million/3%)
and business-lype aclivities {$0.9 million/5%).

The governmental activities increases were generaled through rubbish collections, fire academy revenues, athletic and event
cenler revenues but were offset by decreases in business permits, engineering fees and other growth related revenues. The
Village tool over operations of the athletic and event center in FY 17-18. In previous years, the Village essentially leased the
space to a private operator.

The business-type activities (water and sewer operations) increase was from greater water and sewer sales due to a 5% rate
increase and additional users on the system.

Operating Grants and Contributions decreased by $0.4 million, while Capital Grants and Contributions decreased by 50.8
million. The Village's grant revenues increase was due to grant funds received for the Metra Station and Discovery Park. This
was offset by receiving no funds for the 155 Airport Road/RT 126 Interchange engineering as grant portion of the project was
competed in FY 16-17. Grant revenue will fluctuate from year to year based upon project timing and grant availability. The
decrease in Capital Grants and Contributions is due to decreased infrastructure contributed by developers.

Transfer payments, starting in FY10-11, from the business-type activities (Water and Sewer fund) to governmental activities
{General Fund) are no longer shown as a transfer but are reflected as an allocation belween funds and are netted against
expendilures in govemmental activiies. The transfer of $3.2 million increased by 50.1 million/2% for FY 18.

The Police Pension Fund ended the year with $42.8 million in assets. The Fund had $6.0 million in additions, which were
provided by employer and employee contributions, and investment income. The Fund had $2.1 million in deductions. The
bulk of the deductions were from pension benefits ($2.0 million) along with administrative costs. There net increase fo the
Fund was $3.8 million. The funds equity related investments performed strongly in FY 18.

The Fire Pension Fund ended the year with $9.2 million in assets. The Fund had $0.9 million in additions, which were provided
by employer and employee contributions and investment income. The Fund had $0.3 million in deductions which consisted
of adminisirative expenses, pension benefits and refunds of contributions. The net increase to the Fund was $0.6 million.
The funds equity related investments performed strongly in FY 18

Expenses:

The Village's tota! expenses for all activities for the year ended April 30, 2018 were $75.7 million. Expenses decreased slightly
{80.2 million) as compared to 2017.

Govemmental Activilies costs saw no change. Increases in General Government (52.8 miltion), Culture and Recreation (50.6
million), and Public Safety (0.2 million) were offset by decreases fo costs related to Public Works (53.3 million) and Debt
Service (50.3 million).

The General Govemment aclivities increased by $2.8 million is attributed to $3.4 million provided as an eligible TIF expense
reimbursement incentive to the developer of the property contained in the Upper Gateway TIF. The Village issued a taxable
TIF note to the developer.  Operational expenses and olher capital expenses decreased by $0.6 million.

Public Safety expenditures remained stable with a modest increase of $0.2 miltion, driven by operation expenses,

Public Works expenses decreased by $3.3 million compared to the prior year. Operational expenses increased slightly by
50.6 million while capital outlay related expenses decreased by $3.9 million from the prior year.

The Cuiture and Recreation increase of $0.6 million is due to the Viilage taking over operations of the athlelic and event center
and increases due to timing of capital expense recognitions and depreciation casts.

Business-type activities (water and sewer) expenses decreased by $0.2 million from the prior year. The decreases were from
operations aclivities and depreciation (combined $0.1 million) and interest expense decrease ($0.1 million) which reflects
scheduled debt service payments. The water and sewer operations accounted for 60.9% of the total Public Works activities.

(See independent auditor’s report.)
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Management's Discussion and Analysis {Continued)

Financial Analysis of the Village's Funds

Governmental Funds

At April 30, 2018, the govemmental funds (as presented on the balance sheet on pages 7-8) reported a combined fund
balance of 538.4 milion. Revenues/other financing sources exceeded Expenditures/other financing uses in 2018 by $2.5
million. The General Fund’s fund balance increased by $3.7 million, The increase would have been $2.0 million greater bul
funds were transferred to the Facility Construction Funds (S2.0 million) The transferred funds will be used to construct new
Public Works facilities as the current campus is a patch work of outdated buildings and structures. The fund balance in the
Facility Construction Fund only increased by $0.6 million in FY 17-18 due to the construction of the road extension needed to
provide access to Discovery Park and the Deer Crossing Park concession stand. Recreation fund balances decreased $3
millicn due to the budgeted construction of Discovery Park. Non-Major funds saw an increase of $1 million in fund balance
due lo greater than anticipaled TIF property taxes and less than expected Motor Fuel Tax expenditures.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights
Prior to or at the last Village Board meeting in April, the Mayor submits to the Village Board a proposed operating budget for

the fiscal year commencing on May 1. The operating budget includes proposed expenditures and the means to finance them.
The Village had no budget amendments in 2018. Below is a table thal reflects the original budget and the actual activity for

the revenues and expendilures for the General Fund.

Table 3
General Fund Budgetary Highlights
{In millions)

QOriginal
General Fund Budget

Revenues and Other Financing Sources
Property Taxes S 108
Other taxes 14.6
Interest -
Fines 0.6
Licenses and permits 2.6
Charges for services 6.4
Intergovernmental 17.2
Other 0.6
Capital leases issued -
Sale of capital assets _ -
Total 52.8

Expenditures and Other Financing Uses
General government 11.1
Public safety 201
Public works 8.9
Capital outlay 10.3
Debt service 0.3
Reimbursements (3.2)
Transfers out 8.3
Total 53.8
Change in Fund Balance _(1.0)

(See independent auditor’s report.)
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Management's Discussion and Analysis {Continued)

As shown above, the General Fund was budgeled to have a deficit of $1 million, while actual results were an increase of $3.7
million. Revenues were over budget by approximately $0.1 million while expenditures were under budget by $4.6 million. Excluding
the impact of the Metra Station, which was budgeted as a $4 million grant and S5 million expendilure, the budgel would have been
break even at $48.8 million, revenues exceeded budget by S4 million and expenditures were under budget by $1 million. Grant
revenues and expendilures were both approximately $4 million under budget.

The Village collected 100% of budgeted property taxes.

The Village received $2.3 million more in other taxes than anticipated. The Village received $1.6 million more than anticipated in
in Home Rule Sales Tax, $0.2 million more in Real Estate Transfer Tax, $0.2 million more in electric utility tax, $0.2 million more
in Food and Beverage Tax $0.1 more in Natural Gas use {ax and 0.1 million more in Gaming Tax. Offsetting these gains were a
combined $0.1 million less than anticipated in a variety of other taxes. The Home Rule Sales Tax increase was primarily due to
sales tax generated from the Amazon distribution center and a full year of Blain's Farm and Fleet and a stronger local economy.
The Village did see the closure of the Sam's Club and Target stores. Real Estate Transfer Tax was budgeted conservatively and
there were grealer than anticipated sales of industrial and commercial property. The electric utility tax increase was due to greater
than anticipated usage. The food and beverage increase is also due a stronger economy and the addition of a few smaller
restaurants. The nalural gas use tax increase was due lo greater than anticipated usage. The Video Gaming Tax was due to more
machines being available for the full year as venues continue to open in the Village.

Interest was higher than anticipated due to grealer than anticipated eamings on lllinois Metropolitan Investment Funds held in the
General Corporate Fund. The budget was $10,000 and receipts were $117,700.

Fines were in line with the budget of $0.6 million.

Licenses and Permits were 50.1 million over budget. Butlding Permits were under by $0.1 million but Inspection Permits were over
budget by $0.2 million. FY 17-18 was one of the Village’s best years ever for Building Permils but fell slightly short of budget due
to timing issues. Greater than anticipated development favorably impacted building inspections.

Charges for services, over budget by $0.5 million, saw $0.2 million in additional revenues in engineering reimbursements and $0.1.
million more Zoning Variance Fees due to greater than anticipaled development activity. The Village received $0.1 million more in
ambulance fees due to a rate change to better capture Medicare and insurance reimbursements and increased activity. Fire
Academy revenues exceeded budget by $0.1 million due to increased academy activity and costs. Rubbish Collection fees were
S0.1 million less than anticipaled revenues

Intergovernmental Revenues were $3.3 million under budgeted levels. The Village had budgeted $4 miliion in grants for the Metra
Station projected based upon an 80 percent reimbursement of $5 million construction costs. However, the project, a parinership
with Metra and the lllinois Department of Transportation (IDOT), ended up with IDOT making the construction payments and being
reimbursed 20% of the costs by the Village. The Village did pay the engineering costs and was reimbursed 0.7 million through
IDOT.

Other revenues were 50.2 million greater than the budgeted amount of $0.6 million. The Village recorded $0.3 million in unbudgeted
donations for the animal control center. Reimbursements exceeded the budget by $0.2 million due 1o a reimbursement from Lewis
University for funds the Village spent on the Lewis Route 53 corridor project. Workers' Compensation Reimbursement was $0.1
million under budgel due to favorable claim experience. Health insurance Contributions and Flexible Spending Confributions were
a combined $0.2 million under budget. The Village budgels for the contributions withheld from employees’ paychecks but the
receipls are not recognized as revenues for financial reporting purposes.

General Government expenditures were under budget by $0.7 million. Other expenses savings of $ 0.5 million were from less than
anticipaled sales tax incentives ($0.4million) due to the closing of the Sam's Club and timing of new business opening later than
anticipaled and contingency savings ($0.1 million). Salary savings of $0.2 million were due to vacancies and flexible spending
expenses that are recognized for budgeting purposes but not for accounting purposes. Liability and Worker Comp Insurance
savings of $0.1 million were offset by the wrile off of $0.1 miltion in bad debt.

Public Safety expenditures were under budget by $0.8 million. The majorily of savings came through salary savings of $0.9 million
due lo less than anticipated Worker's Compensation payments, the timing of hiring new fire and police personnel including vacant
Firefighter positions, vacant Police Officer posilions, the elimination of E91% Dispatcher positions and part-time Firefighter
positions. The savings were offset by additional contractual services of $0.2 million needed to pay for E911 Dispatch services.

(See independent auditor’s report.)
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Management's Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

The Village eliminaled ils in-house E911 Dispatch services and joined the newly formed Laraway Dispalch center which includes
several local municipalities, the Will County Sheriff department and a smaller multi-jurisdictional dispatch center. State legistation
required the E911 consolidation. The legislation dictated home many dispalch centers could be located in the county.

Public Works expenditures were under budget by $0.4 million. Public works realized $0.2 million in personnel savings due to
department vacancies and $0.2 million in net contractual services and commodilies savings through a variety of line item accounts,

Capital oullay expenditures were under budget by $4.6 million. $3.8 million can be altributed to the Metra project. The Village had
budgeted $5 million for the construction of the Melra Station wilh an offselling $4 million grant (80% reimbursement). However,
the project, a partnership with Metra and the lllinois Department of Transportation (IDOT), ended up with IDOT making the
construction payments and being reimbursed 20% of the cosls by the Village. The Village did pay the engineering costs and was
reimbursed 80% through IDOT. General Govemment capital expenditures were under budget S0.1 million due to the less than
anlicipated work on the Lewis University Corridor project. Public Safety capital expenditures were over budget $0.3 mitlion due to
unbudgeted costs associated with the Animal Control shelter. The costs were funded through unbudgeted donations.

Debt Service payments were within budget.

Reimbursements were within budget. The reimbursements are allocations to the Water and Sewer Fund from the General
Corporate fund to reimburse via a transfer to General Corporate Fund for the unallocated costs.

Translers to other funds were over budget by $1.9 million. The transfers were to the Debt Service Fund {$5.0 million), The Fagility
Construction Fund $2.0 million) and the Recreation Fund ($1.3 million). The unbudgeted funds transfer of $2 million to the Facility
Construction Fund will be used to construct new Public Works facilities. The project will start in FY $9-20.

The Village made a concerted effort lo keep General Fund expenditures within or under revenues for fiscal year 2017-18. The
Village, at the start of fiscal year 2005, had a negative fund balance of $0.6 million. The fiscal year 2017-18 fund balance is now
at 328.8 million. The Village's long-term goal is to have and maintain a positive fund balance equal to 25% of the General Fund
budget. The Village increased the fund balance by $3.7 million in FY17-18. The Village's targeted fund balance, based on actual
expenditures and transfers and excluding the $3.2 million in reimbursements, of $52.5 million as of April 30, 2018 was $13.1 million.
The FY 17-18 budget was $52.1 million, excluding the $5 million Metra Station, had a targeted fund balance of $13.0 million. The
Village's FY 8-19 budget of $54.2 million has a targeted fund balance of $13.6 million.

Capital Assets

Al the end of fiscal year 2017, the Village had a combined total of capital assets of $442.7 million (after accumulated depreciation
of 5182.9 million) invested in a broad range of capital assets including land, land improvements, buildings, vehicles, machinery
and equipment, furniture and fixtures, streets, bridges, waler mains, storm sewers and sanitary sewer lines. (See Table 4 below).
This amount represents a net increase (including additions and deletions) of approximately $9.0 miltion. Detailed information
related to capital assets is included in Noles 1, 4 and 13 to the basic financial statements.

The Net Capital Assets of the Village increased by $9.0 million over 2017. The main reason for the increase can be attributed to
the construction of Discovery Park, the Metra Station, the Animal Contro! Facility and the concessions stand at Deer Crossing
Park. Governmental activities increased by $12.6 million, while business-type activilies capital assels increased by 0.7 million.
Assel additions have slowed as the Village has depleted bond and TIF funds for their intended projects and Water and Sewer
unrestricted equily balances have slowed as several large infrastructure projects have been completed and the balances have
been depleted. However, the Metra Station was funded by grants while the park projects were funded by prior year transfers from
the Corporate Fund to capital project funds,

(See independent auditor’s report.)
-MD&A 11 -



Village of Romeoville, lllincis

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Table 4
Total Capital Assets at Year End
Net of Depreciation

(In millions)

Balance 4/30/17 Net Additions/Deletions Balance 4/30/18
Land $194.3 $05 $ 1948
Construction in Progress 1.2 3.3 45
Buildings 67.1 6.1 73.2
Machinery and Equipment 6.6 01 6.7
Infrastructure 164.5 (1.0} 163.5
Total Capital Assets 54337 590 $.4427

Debt Qutstanding

As of April 30, 2018, the Village had outstanding bonded debt of $97.5 million. Of this amount 51.2 million represented general
obligation bonds associated with business-type activities. General obligation bonds associated with governmental activities totaled
$94.5 million.

As of April 30, 2018, the Village has a $15.0 million Iflinois Environmental Protection Agency Clean Water Stale Revolving Fund
loan.

The Village is no longer subject to the debt limit due lo its Home Rule community status. However, the Village's legal debt limitation
would be $104,203,799 if it were a non-Home Rule community. The limit is based on 8.625% of the 2016 equalized assessed
valuation of $1,208,159,992.

Detailed information related to long-term debt is included in Note 6 to the basic financial statements.

Economic Factors

The fiscal year ended positively as bolh the Village's General Corporate Fund and Enterprise Funds ended with a surplus versus
an anlicipated deficil. The Village's TIF Funds, Facility Construction Fund and other Non-Major Governmental Funds all ended
with a surplus, The Recreations Funds ended with less than anticipated decreases. The Pension Funds benefited r from the market
uptun in FY 17-18. The financial condition of the General Corporate Fund has stabilized and improved significantly over the past
several years. The Village continues lo feel the effects of the slow growth economy and effects of the recession which began to
impact the Village in the fall of 2008, now mainly through changes implemented by the State as part of their FY 17-18 and FY 18-
19 budgets. The Village has made many adjusiments on beth the revenue and expenditure side to ensure core services are
provided while slill maintaining adequate fund balances. The Village was able to prepare a FY 18-19 budget that was designed to
ensure the Village's financial position remains strong and maintain existing service levels. The budget only utitized fund balances
to fund capilal projects and were at a minimal level as compared to past years. The Village may utilize fund balance in future
budgets in the General Corporate Fund and in other funds as well for capital projects and other non-operational purposes.

Contacting the Village's Financial Management

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, customers, investors and creditors with a general overview of the Village's
finances and lo demonstrate the Village's accountability for the money it receives. Questions concemning this report or requests for
additional financial information should be directed to Kirk Openchowski, Finance Director, Village of Romeoville, 1050 West Romeo
Road, Romeoville, Mingis 60446.

(See independent auditor's report.)
-MD&A 12 -
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VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINCIS

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
[nvestments
Receivables (net, where applicable,
of allowances for uncolleciibles)
Propenty taxes
Accounts
Interest
Other
Due from other governments
Capital asseis not being depreciated
Capital assets being depreciated

Total assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension items - IMRF
Pension items - Police Pension
Pension items - Firefighters' Pension
Unamortized loss on refunding

Total deferred outflows of resources
Total asscts and deferred outflows of resources

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Deposits payable
Uneamed revenue
Accrued interest payable
Nencurrent liabilities
Due within one year
Due in more than one year

Total liabilitics

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension items - Police Pension
Pension items - Firefighters' Pension
Pension items - IMRF
Deferred revenue
Unamortized gain on refunding

Total deferred inflows of resources
Total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assels
Restricted for
Mainienance of roadways
Economic developiment
Capilal projects
Unrestricted (delicit)

TOTAL NET POSITION

Primary Government

Governmental  Business-Type

Aclivities Activities Total
§ 36064245 S 3814115 39,878,360
4,605,929 6,786,420 11,392.349
14,337,231 - 14.337.231
685,408 1.651,844 2,337.252
17816 - 17.816
1,156,225 - 1,156,225
4.304.608 B 4,304,608
195,646,559 3.676.206 199,312,765
146.643.736 96.741.767 243.387.503
403.463.757 112.670.352 516.134.109
589,896 182 826 172322
2,629,311 - 2629311
1,230,272 - 1,230,272
421,282 - 421.282
4.870.761 182,826 5.053.587
408.334.518 112,853,178 521,187,696
3,417.061 2,581,617 5.998,678
1,257,989 364,535 1,622,524
3723251 177,081 3,900,332
13,530 - 15,530
406.6-46 172,532 579.178
7.493.340 2.859,725 10,355,065
121.586.086 14.690.323 136.276.409
137.901.903 20.843.813 138.747.716
4,264,108 - 4,264,108
127,087 - 127,087
3,137,693 972,463 4,110,156
14,337.231 - 14,337,231
181,075 - 181.073
22,047,194 972463 23.019.657
159.949.097 21.B18.276 181.767.373
271,821,336 84,196.076 356,017.412
1.357,710 - 1,557,710
2,364,056 - 2,364,056
110,911 - 110,911
{17.468.592) 6.838.826 {20.629.766)
5 248.385421 S 91.034.902 339.420.323

See accompanying notes to financial statements.



VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

For the Year Ended April 30, 2018

rogram Revenues

Operating Capital
Charges Grants and Grants and
FUNCTIONS/PROGRAMS Expenscs for Services Contributions  Contributions
PRIMARY GOVERNMENT
Governmental Activilics
General government S 15869380 3  1.789.766 S 287778 S -
Public safety 20.712.374 3.890.946 187.284 -
Public works 11.089.243 6.620.284 1.090.187 4.387.792
Culture and recreation 6.378.864 1.690.279 - 239927
Interest and fiscal charges on
long-term debt 4.264.187 - - -
Total governmental activities 58.314.048 13.991.275 1.565.249 4.627.719
Business-Type Activities
Walter and sewer 17.303.114 18.645.295 - 2.354.115
Total business-type activities 17.303.114 18.645.295 - 2.354.115
TOTAL PRIMARY GOVERNMENT 5  75619.162 § 32.636.570 S 1.565.249 S 6.981.834




General Revenues
Taxes
Property
Home rule sales
Telecommunications
Utility
Hotel/motel
Other
Intergovernmental - unrestricted
Replacement 1ax
State sales tax
Use tax
Income tax
Investment income
Miscellancous
Translers in (out)

Total
CHANGE IN NET POSITION
NET POSITION, MAY 1

Prior period adjustment

NET POSITION. MAY 1. RESTATED

NET POSITION, APRIL 30

Net (Expense) Revenue and Chanpe in Net Position

Primary Government

Governmental

Business-Type
Activities Aclivities Total

$ (13.791.836) S - $  (13.791,836)
(16.634.144) - (16.634.144)
1.009,020 - 1.009.020
(4.448.638) - {4.448.658)
{4.264.187) - (4.264,187)
(38.129.8035) - (38.129.805)
- 3.694.296 3.694.296
- 3.694.296 3.694.296
(38.129.805) 3.694,296 (34.435.509)
17.572.297 - 17.572.297
7.945.079 - 7.949.079
872,932 - 872,932
6421.712 - 6.421.712
344,641 - J4.641
2.998.165 - 2,998,165
146.802 - 146,802
6.633.606 - 6.633.606
1.049.326 - 1,049,326
3.598.257 - 3.598,257
194.067 9.138 203,205
169.815 10,773 [80.588

212.896 (212.896) -
48.363.395 (192.983) 48.170.610
10,233.790 3.501.311 [3.735.101
238.190.193 87.533.591 325.723.784
(38.562) = {38.562)
238.151.631 87.533.591 325.685.222
§ 248383421 §  91.034.902 § 339420323

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLEINOIS

RECONCILIATION OF FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIWVITIES IN THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

April 30, 2018

FUND BALANCES OF GOYERNMENTAL FUNDS $ 38420400

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position
are different because:

Capital asscts used in governmental activities are not financial resources and.
therefore. are not reported in the governmental funds 342.292.295

Differences between expected and actual experiences., assumplion changes,
net differences between projected and actual earnings, and contributions
subsequent 1o the measurement date for the llinois Municipal Retirement
Fund are recognized as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows
of resources on the statement of net position
Deferred outflows of resources 589.896
Delerred inflows of resources (3.137.693)

Differences between expected and actual experiences. assumption changes. and
net differences between projected and actual camings for the Police Pension
Fund are recognized as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inllows of
resources on the statement of net position
Deferred outflows of resources 2.629.31]
Deferred inflows of resources (4.264.108)

Differences between expected and actual experiences. assumption changes. and
net differences between projected and actual earnings for the Firefighters' Pension
FFund are recognized as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows ol
resources on the statement of net position
Deferred outflows ol resources 1.230.272
Deferred inflows of resources (127.087)

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and. therefore,
are not reported in the governmental funds

Compensated absences payable (3.883.203)
Other postemployment benefit obligation (393.696)
Unamortized premium on bonds {1.520.901)
General obligation bonds pavable (93.017.362)
Capital leases payable (789.381)
Noles payable (4.928.790)
Net pension liability - Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund (2.952.236)
Net pension liability - Police Pension Plan (20.020.972)
Net pension liability - Firelighters' Pension Plan {1.374.663)

Gains and losses on debt relundings are capitalized and amortized at the
government-wide level
Unamortized loss on refunding 421.282
Unamortized gain on refunding (181,073)

Accrued interest on long-term liabilities is reported as a liability on the statement

of net position (406.6-16)
NET POSITION OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES $ 248.385.421

See accompanying notes to financial statements,
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VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, iLLINOIS
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS STATEMENT OF REVENUES.
CXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 10 THE
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES IN THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

For the Year Ended April 30, 2018

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES -TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 5 2.503.666
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlay as expenditures: however, they are capitalized and
depreciated in the statement of activitics 13.703.560

The Village accepted and received capital contributions that are capitalized and depreciated
in the statement ol activitics 2,520,579

Some expenses in the statement of activitics do not require the use of current financial resources
and. therefore. are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds
Depreciation of capital assets (7.937.637)

The aceretion of interest on the Series 2008B capital appreciation bonds is reported as interest
expense and an increase in bonds payable in the statement of activities (3.231.257)

The issuance of long-1erm debt and related costs are shown on the fund financial statements
as other financing sources (uses) and current expenditures but are recorded as long-term
liabilities and deferred outflows and inflows of resources on the government-wide statements
Issuance of notes payable {3.384.000)

The repayment of the principal portion of long-term debt is reported as an expenditure when
due in governmental funds but as a reduction of principal outstanding in the statement of’

aclivities
General obligation bonds 6.189.006
Notes payable 75.000
Capital leases 196.584

T'he change in accrued interest payable on long-term debt is reported as an expense on the

statement of activitics 69.908
Governmental funds report the eftect of premiums. discounts, and similar items when debt

is first issued. whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized in the statement of

activities 357985

The change in the lllinois Municipal Retirement Fund net pension liability and deferred
outflows/inflows of resources is not a source or use of a financial resource (321.404)

The change in the Police Pension Plan net pension liability and deferred outllows/inflows
ol resources is not a source or use of a financial resource (232.464)

The change in the Firefighters' Pension Plan net peasion liability and deferred outftows!inilows

of resources is not a source or use of a financial resource (203.227)
Changes in compensated absences are reported only in the statement of activitics 154,510
Changes in net postemployment benefil assets are reported only in the statement of activities {207.019)

CHANGE IN NET POSITION OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES % 10.233.790

See accompanying notes to financial statements.



VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUND

April 30, 2018

Aclivities
Water
and Sewer
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 3 3814115
Invesiments 6,786,420
Receivables {net where applicable,
of allowances lor uncollectibles) 1,651 844
Total current assels 12.252.379
NONCURRENT ASSETS
Capital assets not being depreciated 3,676,206

Capital assets being depreciated. net

Total nencurrent assels 100,417,973
Total assels 112,670,352
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension items - IMRF 1832.826
Total deferred outflows of resources 182.826
Total assets and deferred outtlows of resources 112.853.178
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 1581617
Acerued liabilities 364,535
Accrued nterest payahle 172,332
Deposits payable 177,081
General obligation bonds payable 1,252,360
Note payable 1,335,205
Compensated absences payable 272160
Total current liabilities 6.155.490
LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
General obligation bonds payable -
Note payable 13,634,332
Net pension liability - IMRF 914,990
Compensated absences payable 141.001

Total long-term fiabilities
Total liabihties

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Penston items - IMRF 972,463
Total deferred inflows of resousces 972463
Total liabihtics and deferred inflows of resources 21,818.276

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 84,196,076
Unrestricied 6.838.826

TOTAL NET POSITION

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

Business-Type

96741767

14.690.323

20.843.813

3 91.034.902



VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES,
AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUND

For the Year Ended April 30, 2018

Business-Type

Activities
Water
and Sewer

OPERATING REVENUES

Charges for services $ 17.532,585

Fines and fees 1,032,251

Reimbursements 80,673

Miscellaneous 21

Total operaling revenues 18,645,295
OPERATING EXPENSES
EXCLUDING DEPRECIATION

Operations 12,875,919
OPERATING INCOME BEFORE DEPRECIATION 5,769,376

Depreciation 3.907.478
OPERATING INCOME 1,861,398
NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

Property tax rebate (59,190)

Gain on the sale of fixed assets 10,773

Investment income 9,138

Interest expense (462,527)

Total non-operating revenues (expenses) (501,806)

INCOME BEFORE TRANSFERS AND CONTRIBUTIONS 1,360,092

Transfers (out) (212,896)

Contributions 2,354,115
CHANGE IN NET POSITION 3,501,31)
NET POSITION, MAY 1 87.533,591
NET POSITION, APRIL 30 $ 91,034,902

See accompanying notes to financial statements.



VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUND

For the Year Ended April 30, 2018

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers and users
Payments to suppliers
Payments to employees
Payments to other funds

Net cash from operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Transfers (out)

Net cash from noncapital financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Capilal assets purchased
Capital contributions
Proceeds from the sale of capital assets
Principal payments - general obligation bonds
Principal payments - note payable
Interest paid

Net cash from capital and related
financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Sale of investments
Interest received

Net cash from investing activities

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, MAY 1

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, APRIL 30

(This statement is continued on the following page.)

215 -

Business-Type
Activities

Water
and Sewer

$ 18,637,841
(7,171,090)
(2,228.353)
(3.246.000)

5.992,398

(212,896)

(212,896)

(664,917)
159,894
10,773
(2.300,163)
(1,302,439)
(509,077)

(4.605,929)

62,351
9,138

71,489

1,245,062

2,569,053

5 3.814.115




VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS

STATEMENT OF CASH FLLOWS {Continued)
PROPRIETARY FUND

For the Year Ended April 30, 2018

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME
TO NET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating income
Adjustments to reconcile operating income
to net cash from operating activities
Depreciation
Property tax rebate
(Increase) decrease in
Receivables
Increase (decrease) in
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Deposils payable
Pension items - IMRF
Compensated absences payable

NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

NONCASH TRANSACTIONS
Capital asset additions included in accounts payable and retainage payable
Contributions of capiial assets

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

Business-Type
Activities

Water
and Sewer

5 1.861,898

3,907,478
(59,190)

{4,204)

170,374
12,986
(3,.250)
69,265
37.041

$ 5,992,398

5 1,708,542

2,194,221



VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
PENSION TRUST FUNDS

April 30,2018
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents b 239716
Investments
U.S. Treasury and agency securities 18,471,830
Municipal bonds 662,743
Money market mutual funds 444,705
Equity mutual funds 32,277,518
Prepaid items 901
Accrued interest receivable 99,695
Total assets 52,197,108
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 157,481
Total liabilities 157,481
NET POSITION RESTRICTED
FOR PENSIONS § 52,039,627

See accompanying notes to financial statements,



VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
PENSION TRUST FUNDS

For the Year Ended April 30, 2018

ADDITIONS
Contributions
Employer $ 2215445
Employee 815,050
Total contributions 3,030,495
Investment income
Net appreciation in fair value
of investments 1.488,551
Interest and dividends 2,761,761
Total investment income 4,250,312
Less investment expense {(382,551)
Net investment income 3,867,761
Total additions 6,808,256
DEDUCTIONS
Administration 59,212
Benefits and refunds
Benefits 2,291,117
Total deductions 2,350,329
NET INCREASE 4,547,927
NET POSITION RESTRICTED
FOR PENSIONS
May | 47,491,700
April 30 $ 52,039.627

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
-18-



VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

April 30,2018

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Village of Romeoville, lllinois (the Village), is located in Will County, Illinois and
was first incorporated in 1895 under the provisions of the constitution and general statutes
of the State of Illinois. The Village operates under a Board/Administrator form of
government. The Village Board of Trustees consists of seven elected members that
exercise all powers of the Village but are accountable to their constituents for all their
actions. The Village provides the following services as authorized by it charter: public
safety (police, fire, civil defense, and emergency medical), highways and streets, culture
and recreation, public improvements, planning and zoning, and general administrative
S5€rvices.

The financial statements of the Village have been prepared in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America, as applied to government
units (hereinafter referred to as generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP)). The
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body
for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The more
significant of the Village's accounting policies are described below,

a.  Reporting Entity

The Village is a municipal corporation governed by an elected board. As required by
generally accepted accounting principles, these financial statements present the
Village (the primary government) and its component units. In evaluating how to
define the reporting entity, management has considered all potential component
units. The decision to include a potential component unit in the reporting entity was
made based upon the significance of its operational or financial relationship with the
primary government. There are no component units that are required to be included
in the Village’s basic financial statements.

Joint Venture

Northern Will County Joint Action Water Agency - The Village entered into an
intergovernmental agreement with the Villages of Bolingbrook, Homer Glen,
Woodridge, and Lemont on December 13, 2011 to form the Northern Will County
Joint Action Water Agency (JAWA). JAWA is a municipal corporation empowered
to provide adequate supplies of water on an economic and efficient basis for member
municipalities, public water districts, and other incorporated and unincorporated
areas within such counties. Management consists of a Board of Directors comprised
of one appointed representative from each member. The Village does not exercise
any control over the activities of JAWA beyond its representation on the Board of
Directors. The Village has approximately 25 member water connections, which
represents 0.10% of total member water connections.
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VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

a.

Reporting Entity (Continued)
The Village’s financial statements include two pension trust funds:
Police Pension Employees Retirement System

The Village’s police employees participate in the Police Pension Employees
Retirement System (PPERS). PPERS functions for the benefit of these employees
and is governed by a five-member pension board. Two members appointed by the
Village's President, one pension beneficiary elected by the membership, and two
police employees elected by the membership constitute the pension board. The
Village and PPERS participants are obligated to fund all PPERS costs based upon
actuarial valuations, The State of [llinois is authorized to establish benefit levels and
the Village is authorized to approve the actuarial assumptions used in the
determination of contribution levels. PPERS is reported as a pension trust fund
because of the Village’s fiduciary responsibility.

Firefighters® Pension Employee Retirement System

The Village’s sworn firefighters participate in the Firefighters® Pension System
(FPERS). FPERS functions for the benefit of those employees and is governed by a
five-member pension board. Two members appointed by the Village's President, one
elected pension beneficiary, and two elected fire employees constitute the pension
board. The Village and FPERS participants are obligated to fund all FPERS costs
based upon actuarial valuations. The State of Illinois is authorized to establish benefit
levels and the Village is authorized to approve the actuarial assumptions used in the
determination of contribution levels. FPERS is reported as a pension trust fund
because of the Village’s fiduciary responsibility.

Fund Accounting

The Village uses funds to report on its financial position and the changes in its
financial position. Fund accounting is designed to demonstrate legal compliance and
to aid financial management by segregating transactions related to certain

government functions or activities.

A fund is a separate accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts. Funds
are classified into the following categories: governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary.

! |



VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

b.

Fund Accounting (Continued)

Governmental funds are used to account for substantially all of the Village's general
activities, including the collection and disbursement of restricted or committed
monies (special revenue funds). the funds restricted, committed, or assigned for the
acquisition or construction of capital assets (capital projects funds). and the funds
restricted, committed, or assigned for the servicing of long-term debt (debt service
funds). The General Fund is used to account for all activities of the general
government not accounted for in some other fund.

Proprietary funds are used to account for activities similar to those found in the
private sector, where the determination of net income is necessary or useful to sound
financial administration. Goods or services from such activities can be provided
either to outside parties (enterprise funds) or to other departments or agencies
primarily within the Village (internal service funds). The Village does not utilize any
internal service funds.

Fiduciary funds are used to account for assets held on behalf of outside parties,
including other governments, or on behalf of other funds within the Village. The
Village utilizes pension trust funds which are generally used to account for assets
that the Village holds in a fiduciary capacity.

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statements of net position and
the statement of activities) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of
the Village. The effect of material interfund activity has been eliminated from these
financial statements, except for interfund services. Governmental activities, which
normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported
separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and
charges for support.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a
given function, segment. or program are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses
are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program
revenues include (1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or
directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or
segment and (2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational
or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not
properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.



VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

¢.  Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements (Continued)

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds,
and fiduciary funds, even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide
financial statements. Major individual governmental funds and major individual
enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements.

The Village reports the following major governmental funds:

The General Fund is the Village's primary operating fund. It accounts for all
financial resources of the general government, except those accounted for in
another fund. The services which are administered by the Village and
accounted for in the General Fund include general government, public works,
culture and recreation, and public safety.

The Debt Service Fund accounts for the repayment of governmental long-term
debt. The Village has elected to present this fund as a major fund.

The Recreation Fund accounts for property taxes that are legally restricted for
recreation purposes as well as other taxes and charges for services that are
assigned for recreation purposes.

The Facility Construction Fund accounts for the cost of construction of new
facilities in the Village, including the new Village Hall. The Village has elected
to present this fund as a major fund.

The Downtown TIF Fund accounts for the resources that are legally restricted
for the redevelopment of the areas that fall within the TIF District boundaries
which includes the Uptown Square Center. The revenue in this fund is mainly
from funds imported from the contiguous Marquette TIF along with the
collection of the TIF property tax increment created from the increase in the
value of property within the district. The Village has elected to present this
fund as a major fund.

The Village reports the following major proprietary fund:

The Water and Sewer Fund accounts for the provision of water and sewer
services to the residents of the Village. All activities necessary to provide such
services are accounted for in this fund, including but not limited to,
administration, operations, maintenance, billing and collection, financing, and
related debt service.



VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

C.

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements (Continued)
The Village reports the following fiduciary funds:

The Village reports pension trust funds as fiduciary funds to account for the
Police Pension Fund and the Firefighters' Pension Fund.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting. and Basis of Presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund
and fiduciary fund financial statements. Revenues and additions are recorded when
earned and expenses and deductions are recorded when a liability is incurred.
Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied (i.e.,
intended to finance). Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as
all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met. Operating
revenues and expenses are directly attributable to the operation of the proprietary
funds. Non-operating revenue/expenses are incidental to the operations of these
funds.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial
resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting, Under
the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when susceptible
to accrual (i.e., when they become both measurable and available). “Measurable”
means the amount of the transaction can be determined and “available” means
collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafier to be used to pay
liabilities of the current period.

The Village considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of
the end of the current fiscal period, except for sales taxes and telecommunication
taxes which use a 90-day period and income taxes which uses a 90 to 120-day period.
The Village recognizes property taxes when they become both measurable and
available in the year intended to finance. Expenditures are recorded when the related
fund liability is incurred. Principal and interest on general long-term debt are
recorded as expenditures when due,

Corporate personal property replacement taxes owed to the state at year end,
franchise taxes, licenses, charges for services, and interest associated with the current
fiscal period are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and are recognized as
revenues of the current fiscal period. Income and motor fuel taxes and fines collected
and held by the state or county at year end on behaif of the Village also are
recognized as revenue. Fines and permit revenues are not susceptible to accrual
because generally they are not measurable until received in cash.
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VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Continued)

d.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Basis of Presentation (Continued)

In applying the susceptible to accrual concept to intergovernmental revenues (i.c.,
federal and state grants), the legal and contractual requirements of the numerous
individual programs are used as guidelines. Monies that are virtually unrestricted as
to purpose of expenditure, which are usually revocable only for failure to comply
with prescribed compliance requirements, are reflected as revenues at the time of
receipt or earlier if the susceptible to accrual criteria are met.

The Village reports unavailable/deferred and unearned revenue on its financial
statements. Unavailable/deferred revenues arise when a potential revenue does not
meet both the measurable and available or earned criteria for recognition in the
current period. Unearned revenues arise when resources are received by the
government before it has a legal claim to them such as when grant monies are
received prior to the incurrence of qualifying expenditures. [n subsequent periods,
when both the revenue recognition criteria are met, or when the government has a
legal claim to the resources, the liability or deferred inflow of resources for unearned
and unavailable/deferred revenue is removed from the financial statements and
revenue is recognized.

Cash and Investments
Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Village's proprietary fund considers
its equity in pooled cash and all highly liquid investments with an original maturity
of three months or less when purchased to be cash equivalents.

Investments

Investments with a maturity of one year or less when purchased are stated at cost or
amortized cost. Investments with a maturity greater than one year and all pension
fund investments are stated at fair value. Fair value is the price that would be
received to selt an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date.

The Village categorizes the fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy
established by generally accepted accounting principles. The hierarchy is based on
the valuation inputs used to measure the fair value of the asset. Level | inputs are
quoted prices in active markets for identical assets; Level 2 inputs are significant
other observable inputs; and Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs.

L9380



VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

f.

Interfund Receivables/Payables

Activity between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements
outstanding at the end of the fiscal year are referred to as either “due to/from other
funds™ (i.e., the current portion of interfund loans) or “advances to/from other funds”
(i.e., the noncurrent portion of interfund loans). All other outstanding balances
between funds are reported as “due to/from other funds.”

Inventories

Inventories are valued at cost, which approximates market, using the first-in/first-out
(FIFO) method. The costs of governmental fund inventories are recorded as
expenditures when purchased.

Prepaid Items/Expenses

Payments made to vendors for services that will benefit periods beyond the date of
this report are recorded as prepaid items/expenses.

Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets
(e.g., roads, bridges, storm water systems), are reported in the applicable
governmental or business-type activities columns in the government-wide financial
statements. Capital assets are defined by the Village as assets with an initial,
individual cost of more than $25,000 for machinery and equipment, $100,000 for
property or building improvements. and $150,000 for infrastructure and an estimated
useful life in excess of one year. Easements are defined by the Village as assets with
an initial, individual cost of more than $100,000. Such assets are recorded at
historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated
capital assets are recorded at acquisition value at the date of donation.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset
or materially extend asset lives are not capitalized. Improvements are capitalized and
depreciated over the remaining useful lives of the related capital assets, as applicable.



VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Capital Assets (Continued)

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are
constructed. Interest incurred during the construction phase of capital assets of
business-type activities is included as part of the capitalized value of the assets
constructed. Property, plant, and equipment is depreciated using the straight-line
method over the following estimated useful lives:

Assets Years
Buildings and improvements 10-40
Equipment 5-30
Infrastructure 15-50

Compensated Absences

Vested or accumulated vacation and vested sick leave is reported as an expenditure
and a fund liability of the governmental (General) fund that will pay it once
retirement or separation has occurred. Vested or accumulated vacation of proprietary
funds and governmental activities are recorded as an expense and liability of those
funds as the benefits accrue to employees.

l.ong-Term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements and proprietary funds in the fund
financial statements, long-term debt, and other long-term obligations are reported as
liabilities in the applicable governmental activities, business-type activities, or
proprietary fund financial statements. Bond premiums and discounts and gains/losses
on refundings are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds. Bonds payable
are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount and gains/losses on
refundings. Issuance costs are reported as expenses.

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds recognize bond premiums and
discounts, as well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount
of debt issued is reported as other financing sources. Premiums received on debt
issuances are reported as other financing sources while discounts on debt issuances
are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the
actual debt proceeds received, are reported as expenditures.



VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Fund Balances/Net Position

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report nonspendable fund
balance for amounts that are either not in spendable form which or legally or
contractually required to be maintained intact. Restrictions of fund balance are
reported for amounts constrained by legal restrictions from outside parties for use for
a specific purpose, or externally imposed by outside entities or from enabling
legislation adopted by the Village. Committed fund balance is constrained by formal
actions of the Village Board of Trustees, which is considered the Village’s highest
level of decision-making authority. Formal actions include resolutions and
ordinances (equally binding) approved by the Village. Assigned fund balance
represents amounts constrained by the Village's intent to use them for a specific
purpose. Although there is no formal policy, the authority to assign fund balance has
been delegated to the Village's Director of Finance consistent with the intentions of
the Village Board of Trustees. Any residual fund balance in the General Fund,
including fund balance targets and any deficit fund balance of any other
governmental fund is reported as unassigned.

The Village’s flow of funds assumption prescribes that the funds with the highest
level of constraint are expended first. If restricted or unrestricted funds are available
for spending, the restricted funds are spent first. Additionally, if different levels of
unrestricted funds are available for spending the Village considers committed funds
to be expended first followed by assigned funds and then unassigned funds.

In the government-wide financial statements, restricted net position is legally
restricted by outside parties for a specific purpose. Net investment in capital assets
represents the book value of capital assets less any outstanding long-term debt issued
to acquire or construct the capital assets.

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a
separate section for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement
element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net assets that
applies to future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources
(expense/expenditure} until that time. In addition to liabilities, the statement of
financial position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred inflows of
resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources,
represents an acquisition of net assets that applies to future period(s) and so it will
not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. These amounts
are deferred and recognized as an inflow of resources in the period these amounts
become available.



VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

n.

Interfund Transactions

Interfund services are accounted for as revenues, expenditures, or expenses.
Transactions that constitute reimbursements to a fund for expenditures/expenses
initially made from it that are properly applicable to another fund are recorded as
expenditures/expenses  in the reimbursing fund and as reductions of
expenditures/expenses in the fund that is reimbursed.

All other interfund transactions, except interfund services and reimbursements, are
reported as transfers.

Accounting Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of
the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenditures/expenses during the reporting period. Actual resuits could differ from
those estimates.

DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

The Village maintains a cash and investment pool that is available for use by all funds,
except the pension trust funds. Each fund's portion of this pool is displayed on the
financial statements as “cash and investments.” In addition, investments are separately held
by several of the Village®s funds. The deposits and investments of the pension trust funds
are held separately from those of other funds.

Village Deposits and Investments

The Village's investment policy authorizes the Village to invest in all investments
allowed by Illinois Compiled Statutes (ILCS). These include deposits/investments in
insured commercial banks, savings and loan institutions. obligations of the U.S.
Treasury and U.S. agencies, insured credit union shares, money market mutual funds
with portfolios of securities issued or guaranteed by the United States Government or
agreements to repurchase these same obligations. repurchase agreements, short-term
commercial paper rated within the three highest classifications by at least two
standard rating services, The lllinois Funds (created by the Illinois State Legislature
under the control of the State Treasurer that maintains a $1 per share value which is
equal to the participant’s fair value), and Illinois Metropolitan Investment Fund



VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2.

DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)

a.

Village Deposits and Investments (Continued)

(IMET), a not-for-profit investment trust formed pursuant to the lllinois Municipal
Code and managed by a Board of Trustees elected from the participating members.
IMET is not registered with the SEC as an investment company. Investments in
IMET are valued at IMETs share price, the price for which the investment could be
sold. The Village’s investment policy does limit its deposits to financial institutions
that are members of the FDIC system and are capable of posting collateral for
amounts in excess of FDIC insurance,

The lllinois Public Treasurers' Investment Pool, known as The [llinois Funds,
operates as a qualified external investment pool in accordance with the criteria
established in GASB Statement No. 79, Certain External Investment Pools and Pool
Participants, and thus, reports all investments at amortized cost rather than market
value. The investment in The Illinois Funds by participants is also reported at
amortized cost. The lllinois Funds does not have any limitations or restrictions on
participant withdrawals. The lllinois Treasurer's Office issues a separate financial
report for The lllinois Funds which may be obtained by contacting the
Administrative Office at lllinois Business Center, 400 West Monroe Street, Suite
401, Springfield, Illinois 62704,

It is the policy of the Village to invest its funds in a manner which wiil provide the
highest investment return with the maximum security while meeting the daily cash
flow demands of the Village and conforming to all state and local statutes governing
the investment of public funds, using the “prudent person™ standard for managing the
overall portfolio. The primary objectives of the policy are, in order of priority, safety
of principal, liquidity, and yield.

Deposits with Financial institutions
Custodial credit risk for deposits with financial institutions is the risk that in the

event of bank failure, the Village's deposits may not be returned to it. The Village's
investment policy does not specififally address custodial credit risk.



VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2.  DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)

a. Village Deposits and Investments (Continued)
Investments
The following table presents the investments and maturities of the Village's debt
securities as of April 30, 2018:
Investment Maturities (in Years)
Less than Greater than
Investment Type Fair Value | 1-5 6-10 10
Certificate of deposit -
negotiable 5 171,957 § - 3 171,957 & - 8 -
U.S. Treasury notes 1,969,630 - 1,340,586 629,044 -
U.S. agencies - FFCB 2,227,107 - 2,227,107 - -
U.S. agencies - FHLB 1,348,466 - 1,348,466 - -
U.S. agencies - FHLMC 1,431,681 646,724 152,737 - 632,220
U.S. agencies - FNMA 2,988,289 249,130 632,138 - 2,107,021
Bond mutual funds 1,072,545 - - 1,072,545 -
IMET 9.939.919 - 9.039.919 - -
TOTAL $ 21,149,594 § 895,854 % 15812910 § 1,701.589 § 2,739,241

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair
value of an investment. In accordance with its investment policy, the Village limits
its exposure to interest rate risk by structuring the portfolio to provide liquidity for
cash requirements for ongoing operations in shorter-term securities, money market
funds, or similar investment pools. To the extent possible, the Village shall attempt
to match its investments with anticipated cash flow requirements. Unless matched to
a specific cash flow, the Village will not directly invest in securities maturing more
than five years from the date of purchase in accordance with state and local statutes
and ordinances.

Credit risk is the risk that the issuer of a debt security will not pay its par value upon
maturity. The Village limits its exposure to credit risk limiting investments to the
safest types of securities; prequalifying the financial institutions, intermediaries, and
advisors with which the Village will conduct business; and diversifying the
investment portfolio so that potential losses on individual investments will be
minimized. IMET and The lllinois Funds are rated AAA. U.S. agency obligations are
rated AAA. The bond mutual fund and negotiable certificates of deposit are not
rated.
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VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)
a.  Village Deposits and Investments (Continued)
Investments (Continued)

Custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the
counterparty to the investment, the Village will not be able to recover the value of its
investments that are in possession of an outside party. To limit its exposure, the
Village's investment policy requires all security transactions that are exposed to
custodial credit risk to be processed on a delivery versus payment (DVP) basis with
the underlying investments held by an independent third party custodian and
evidenced by safekeeping receipts and a written custodial agreement. The Illinois
Funds, IMET, and the bond mutual funds are not subject to custodial credit risk.

Concentration of credit risk is the risk that the Village has a high percentage of its
investments invested in one type of investment. The Village limits its exposure by
limiting investments to avoid over-concentration in securities from a specific issuer
or business sector (excluding U.S. Treasury securities); limiting investment in
securities that have higher credit risks; investing in securities with varying maturities:
and continuously investing a portion of the portfolio in readily available funds such
as local government investment pools (LGIPS) or money market funds to ensure that
proper liquidity is maintained in order to meet ongoing obligations.

The Village has the following recurring fair value measurements as of April 30,
2018. The U.S. Treasury notes, agency obligations, and negotiable certificates of
deposit are valued using quoted matrix pricing models (Level 2 inputs). The bond
mutual funds are valued using quoted prices (Level I inputs). The IMET 1 to 3 Year
Fund, a mutual fund, is measured based on the net asset value of the shares in IMET,
which is based on the fair value of the underlying investments in the mutual fund
(Level 3 input).

3. RECEIVABLES
a.  Property Taxes
Property taxes for 2017 attach as an enforceable lien on January [, 2017, on property
values assessed as of the same date. Taxes are levied by December of the subsequent
fiscal year (by passage of a Tax Levy Ordinance). Tax bills are prepared by the

County and issued on or about May 1, 2018, and are payable in two installments, on
or about June I, 2018 and September I, 2018. Tax increment financing (TIF)
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VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

3.

RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Property Taxes (Continued)

property tax receipts are received in two installments similar to levied taxes
described above. TIF property taxes are not levied but are paid by the County from
the incremental property tax receipts of all taxing bodies within a TIF District. The
County collects such taxes and remits them periodically. As the 2017 tax levy is
intended to fund expenditures for the 2018-2019 fiscal year, these taxes are deferred
as of April 30, 2018.

The 2018 tax levy, which attached as an enforceable lien on property as of January |,
2018, has not been recorded as a receivable as of April 30, 2018 as the tax has not yet
been levied by the Village and will not be levied until December 2018 and, therefore,
the levy is not measurable at April 30, 2018,

Other Receivables

Other receivables are comprised of the following at April 30, 2018:

Debt Local
Description General Recreation Service Gas Tax Total

Water utility 3 24,549 § - 5 - 8 - 8 34,549
Franchise fees 108,532 - - - 108,532
Utility taxes 626,770 - - - 626,770
Home rule gas tax 70,161 - - 70,161 140,322
Food and beverage tax 154,677 - - - 154,677
Tax refund receivable 36,561 - - - 36,561
NSF checks - 181 - - 181
Hotel/'motel tax - 64.633 - - 64,633

S 1,021,250 $ 64,814 S - 8 70,161 § 1,156,225
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VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

4.  CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the year ended April 30, 2018 was as follows:

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
Capital assets not being depreciated
Land
Construction in progress
Total capital assets not being
depreciated

Capital assets being depreciated
Buildings and improvements
Machinery and equipment
Infrastructure

Total capital assets being
depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation for
Buildings and improvements
Machinery and equipment
Infrastructure

Total accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets being
depreciated, net

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
CAPITAL ASSETS, NET

Balances Balances

May | Increases Decreases April 30
§ 193,072,547 § 447,800 § - 5 193,520,347
1.189,500 9.487.676 8,550,964 2,126,212
194,262,047 9,935,476 8.550,964 195,646,559
83,577,951 8,778,438 - 92,356,389
13,650,954 900,475 419,925 14,131,504
161,161,656 5,160,714 - 166,322,370
258,390,561 14,839,627 419,925 272,810,263
17,091,348 2,589,497 - 19,680,845
7,778,854 744,369 419,925 8,103,298
93,776,613 4,603,771 - 98,380,384
118.646,815 7.937.637 419,925 126,164,527
139,743,746 6,901,990 S 146,643,736
$ 334,005,793 § 16,837,466 S 8,550,964 § 34272923295

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the governmental activities as

follows:

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

General government
Public safety

Public works

Culture and recreation

TOTAL DEPRECIATION EXPENSE -
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

3% .-

$

554,137
1,141,666
5,127,966
1,113,868

$

7,937,637




VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS
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4,  CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued)

Balances Balances
May | Increases Decreases April 30
BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES
Capital assets not being depreciated
Land $ 1,276,150  § - § - 3 1,276,150
Construction in progress 26.597 2,373,459 - 2,400,056
Total capital assets not being
depreciated 1,302,747 2,373,459 - 3,676,206
Capital assets being depreciated
Buildings and improvements 1,068,601 - - 1,068,601
Machinery and equipment 1,861,344 - 38,000 1,823,344
Infrastructure 158,347,769 2,194,221 - 160,541,990
Total capital assets being
depreciated 161.277.714 2,194,221 38,000 163,433,935
Less accumulated depreciation for
Buildings and improvements 423,055 43,623 - 466,678
Machinery and equipment 1,137,930 82,001 38,000 1,181,931
Infrastructure 61,261,705 3,781,854 - 65.043.559
Total accumulated depreciation 62.822 690 3,907,478 38,000 66,692,168
Total capital assets being
depreciated, net 98,455,024 (1,713,257} - 96,741,767
BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES
CAPITAL ASSETS, NET $ 99,757,771 § 660,202 § - $ 100417973

5.  RISK MANAGEMENT

The Village is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; employee health; and
natural disasters.

The Village is a member of the Southwest Agency for Risk Management (SWARM) which
is a public entity risk pool with eight member groups (villages and cities). The Village pays
annual premiums to SWARM for its workers™ compensation, general liability, and property
coverages.

The cooperative agreement provides that SWARM will be self-sustaining through member
premiums and will reinsure through commercial companies for claims in excess of
$600,000 per occurrence for workers' compensation and $50,000 for occurrences for
general liability and $100,000 for occurrences for property.

One representative from each member serves on the SWARM board and each board
member has one vote on the board. None of its members have any direct equity interest in
SWARM.
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RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

The Village purchases commercial insurance to cover its employees for health and accident
claims.

The Village has not had significant reductions in insurance coverage from the previous
fiscal year nor did settlements exceed insurance coverage in any of the last three years.

LONG-TERM DEBT
a.  General Obligation Bonds

The Village issues general obligation bonds to provide funds for the acquisition and
construction of major capital facilities. General obligation bonds have been issued
for both general government and proprietary activities. These bonds, therefore, are
reported in the proprietary funds if they are expected to be repaid from proprietary
revenues, In addition, general obligation bonds have been issued to refund both
general obligation bonds and revenue bonds.

General obligation bonds are direct obligations and pledge the full faith and credit of
the Village.

b. Governmental Activities

The following is a summary of long-term obligation activity for the Village
associated with governmental activities for the year ended April 30, 2018:

Due
Balances Balances Within
May | Additions Reductions April 30 One Year

General obligation bonds $ 38,254,006 $ -% 6,189,006 S 32,065,000 $ 6,035,000
General obligation capital

appreciation bonds 57,721,305 3,231,257 - 60,952,562 -
Unamortized bond premiums 1,950,750 - 429 849 1,520,201 -
Capital leases 985,965 - 196,584 789,381 162,716
Tax increment revenue note 61,312

payable - 3,384,000 - 3,384,000 -
Note payable 1,619,790 - 75,000 1,544,790 75,000
Compensated absences* 4,037,713 1,151,271 1,305,781 3,883,203 1,161,312
Net other postemployment

benefit obligation* 186,677 207,019 - 393,696 -
Net pension liability - IMRF* 7,002,648 - 4,050,392 2,952,256 -
Net pension liability - Police* 19,715,344 305,628 - 20,020,972 -
Net pension liability - Fire* 686.468 888.197 - 1,574,665 -
TOTAL $ 132,160,666 $ 9,167,372 % 12,246,612 § 129,081,426 § 7.495340

*The General Fund resources are used to liquidate these liabilities.
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6. LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)
c.  Business-Type Activities

The following is a summary of long-term obligation activity for the Village with
business-type activities for the year ended April 30, 2018:

Due
Balances Balances Within
May 1 Additions Reductions April 30 One Year

General obligation bonds § 3505994 § -5 2260994 5 1,245,000 5 1,245,000
Note payable 16,271,977 - 1,302,440 14,969,537 1,335,205
Unamortized bond premiums 46,528 - 39,168 7,360 7,360
Net pension liability - IMRF 2,211,362 - 1,296,372 914,990 -
Compensated absences 376,120 210,545 173,504 413,161 272,160

TOTAL 3 22411981 § 210,545 § 5072478 § 17,550,048 § 2,859,725

d.  Changes in Long-Term Liabilities

Fund Due
Debt Balunces Relundings/ Balances Within
Retired by My | Additions Reductions April 30 One Year

General Obligation Bonds

General Obligation Refunding

Bonds, Series 2007A. dated

November 15, 2007, provide for the

serigl retirement of bonds on

December 30, 2010 through

December 30, 2017 in amounts

between $340.000 and $675,000.

Interest is due on June 30 and

December 30 of cach year at rates Water and

varving from 3.75% 10 5.25%. Sewer 3 673000 $ - § 0675000 § - % -

General Obligation Bonds. Series

2008A. dated June 30, 2008,

provide for the serial retirement of

bonds on December 20, 2010

through December 30, 2020 in

amounts between $400.000 and

£2.050.000. Interest is due on

June 30 and December 30 of each

year at rates varying from 3.250% Debt

to 4.125%, Service 3.300.000 - 700.000 2.600.000 1,130.000

SR
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6. LONG-TERM DEBT (Continucd)

d.  Changes in Long-Term Liabilities (Continued)

Fund
Debt
Retired by

Balances
May ]

Additions

Refundings/
Reductions

Due
Balances Within
April 30 One Year

General Obligation Bonds
{Continued)

General Obligation Refunding

Bonds, Series 2008C. dated

November 3. 2008. provide for the

serial retirement of bonds on

December 30. 2010 through

December 30. 2018 in amounts

between $325.000 and $1.245.000.

Interest is due on June 30 and

December 30 each vear ot rates Water and
varying {rom 3.50% to 4.00%0. Sewer

General Obligation Bonds, Series

2009. dated May 4, 2009, provide

for the serial retirement of bonds on

December 30, 2010 through

December 30, 2029 in amounts

between $2035.000 and $510,000.

[nterest is due on June 30 and

December 30 of cach year at rates Debt
varying from 3.000% 10 4,375%, Service

General Obligation Relunding

Bonds, Series 2012A. dated

October 10. 2012. provide for the

serial retirement of bonds on

December 30, 2012 through

December 30, 2017 in amounts

between $170.000 and $210.000.

[nterest is due on June 30 and

December 30 of cach year at rates Debt
of 2%, Service

General Obligation Refunding

Bonds, Scries 20128, dated

October 10. 2012, provide for the

serial retirement of bonds on

December 30. 2012 through

December 340, 2017 in amounts

between $5335,000 and $645.000,

[nterest is due on June 30 and

December 30 of cach year at rates Debt
of 2%, Service

$

2.015.000

285.000

170.000

645.000

.

5 770000 S

285.000

170.000

645.000

1.245.000 $ 1.245.000
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6. LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

d.  Changes in Long-Term Liabilities (Continued)

Fund Due
Debt Balances Refundings/ Balances Within
Retired by Mayv 1 Additions Reductions April 30 One Year

General Obligation Bonds
{Continued)

General Obligation Bonds, Series

2013A. dated July 30. 2013,

provide for the serial retirement of

bonds on December 30. 2014

through December 30. 2024 in

amounts between $605.000 and

$1.380.000. Interest is due on

June 30 and December 30 of cach Downlown

year at rates of 2.50% 1o 4. 10%. TIF $ 9500000 § =

Generil Obligation Bonds, Serics

20138, dated July 30, 2013,

provide for the retirement of bonds

on December 30, 2024 and

December 30, 2023 in amounts ol

$725.000 and $1.450.000. Interest

is duc on June 30 and December 30 Downtown

of each year at rates of 4%, TIF 2.175.000 -

General Obligation Refunding
Bonds. Series 2014, dated
November 3. 2014, provide for the
retirement of bonds on

December 30. 2015 hrough
December 30, 2024 in amounts

between $370,000 and $2.220.000. Debt

[nterest is due on June 30 and Service/

December 30 of each year at rates Water and

varying from of 3% to 4%, Sewer 5.975.000

General Obligation Refunding

Bonds, Series 2016, dated May 3.

2016. provide for the retirement of

bonds on December 30, 2017

through December 30, 2020 in

amounts between $1.745.000 und

$4.535.000. Interest is due on

June 30 and December 30 of each Debt

year at a rate of 3%. Service 11.950.000 -

-18 -

$ L180.000 §

2.220.000

1,745.000

$320,000 $ £.200,000

2.175.000

3.755.000

10.205.000

1.343.000

1.980.000
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6. LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

d.  Changes in Long-Term Liabilities (Continued)

Fund Due
Debt Balances Refundings/ Balances Within
Retired by May 1 Additions Reductions April 30 One Year

General Obligation Bonds
(Continued)

General Obligation Refunding

Bonds, Series 20106A. dated

September 12, 2016, provide for

the retirement of bonds on

December 30, 2016 through

December 30, 2029 in amounts

between $35.000 and $480.000.

Interest is due on June 30 and

December 30 of cach year at a rate Debt

of 2.00% to 2.25%. Service  $  3.070.000 § - 5 60.000 § 5010000 §  360.000

Taotal General Obligation Bonds 41,760,000 - 8,450,000 33.310.000 7.280.000

General Obligation (Capital

Appreciation) Bonds, Series 20088

DBonds, dated June 30, 2008,

provide for the serial retirement of

bonds on December 30, 2021

through December 30. 2039 in

amounis including interest between
£5.500.000 and $6.300,000.

[nterest rates vary from 5.12% w0

5.83% (includes acereted interest of Debt
$12.684.834), Service 57.721.305 3.231.257 - 60,952,562 -

General/
Recreation
Capital leases Fund 985.965 - [96.584 789.381 162716

Note Payable. duted August 1.

2008, provides for retirement of

principal on December 1 and

June | of each year in the annual

amounts between $1.642.834 and Water

$1,701.150, including interest at and

2.50% through December 1, 2027, Sewer 16.271.977 - 1.302.440 14.969.537 1.335.205

Note Payable. dated March 3, 2013,

provides for retirement of principal

on December 31 of cach year in

annual amounts between $75.000

and $1.319.790. including interest General

a1 0% through December 31, 2021, Fund 1.619.790) - 75.000 1.54:4.790 75.000

g 10 g
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

6. LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

d.  Changes in Long-Term Liabilities (Continued)

Fund Due
Debt Balances Relundings’  Balances Within
Retired by May | Additions Reductions  April 30 One Year
General Obligation Bonds
(Continued)
*Tax Increment Revenue Note
Payable. dated April 27. 2018,
provides for interest at 7% due on Upper
June 30 and December 30 through Gateway
April 27, 2038. North TIF  § - 3 3584000 % - 5 3384000 §
TOTAL $ 118.359.037 § 6.615.257 $10.024.024 § 114.950.270 § 8.852.921

*The Tax Increment Revenue Note Payable was issued to reimburse developers for
qualifying costs incurred in the Gateway North Upper tax increment financing (TIF)
district and are repaid solely from TIF revenues. Since these revenues are not
determinable, there is no debt service to maturity schedule.

e.  Debt Service Requirements to Maturity

Annual debt service requirements to maturity are as follows:

Fiscal Year Governmental Activities

Ending General Obligation Bonds Note Payable
April 30, Principal Interest Principal Interest

2019 $ 6035000 $ 1219940 § 75,000 $

2020 6,655,000 991,390 75,000

2021 6.995,000 708,578 75,000

2022 2.090,000 403,578 1,319,790

2023 2,150,000 338.178 -

2024 2,205,000 264,213 -

2025 2,190,000 185,493 -

2026 1,885,000 105,688 -

2027 445,000 38,988 -

2028 465,000 30,088 -

2029 470,000 20,788 -

2030 480,000 10,800 -

TOTAL $ 32,065,000 $ 4317722 $ 1,544,790 §$
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6. LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)
€. Debt Service Requirements to Maturity (Continued)

Annual debt service requirements to maturity are as follows:

Fiscal Year Business-Type Activities
Ending General Obligation Bonds Note Payable
April 30, Principal Interest Principal Interest
2019 $ 1245000 % 49,800 § 1,335205 § 365,945
2020 - - 1,368,793 332,356
2021 - - 1,403,227 297,923
2022 - - 1,438,527 262,623
2023 - - 1.474,715 226,435
2024 - - 1,511,813 189,337
2025 - - 1,549,845 151,305
2026 - - 1,588,833 112,317
2027 - - 1.628,802 72,348
2028 o - - 1,669,777 31,373
TOTAL 3 1,245,000 § 49,800 $ 14,969,537 $ 2,041,962

General Obligation Capital
Appreciation Bonds Payable

Fiscal Year from Governmental Activities
Ending Principal
April 30, Accretion Repayment
2019 $ 3412414 3 -
2020 3,603,743 -
2021 3,805,816 -
2022 4.019,235 5,500,000
2023 3,959,435 6,000,000
2024 3,866,033 6,000,000
2025 3.764,213 6,000,000
2026 3,652,724 6,500,000
2027 3,503,925 6,500,000
2028 3,344,059 6,500,000
2029 3,172,353 6,500,000
2030 2,987,981 6,500,000

0T B
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6.

LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

€.

Debt Service Requirements to Maturity (Continued)

General Obligation Capital
Appreciation Bonds Payable

Fiscal Year from Governmental Activities
Ending Principal
April 30, Accretion Repayment
2031 $§ 2,790,732 § 6,500,000
2032 2,579,737 6,500,000
2033 2,354,742 6,500,000
2034 2,116,166 6,500,000
2035 1,863,193 6,500,000
2036 1,594,950 6,500,000
2037 1,310,520 6,500,000
2038 1,008,928 6,500,000
2039 689,149 6,500,000
2040 347,390 6,200,000
TOTAL $ 59,747.438 $ 120,700,000

Capital Lease Obligation

The Village leases vehicles and other equipment under capital leases, which expire
between June 2018 and July 2025. Annual lease payments, including interest ranging
from 0.00% to 6.39%, range from $2,806 to $64,009. The cost of the capital assets
acquired under capital leases was $1,896,426, all of which is included in
governmental activities vehicles and machinery and equipment.

Minimum future lease payments under the capital lease together with the present
value of the net minimum lease payments as of April 30. 2018 are as follows:

Fiscal Year
Ending
April 30, Payment
2019 $ 185,173
2020 146,282
2021 120,680
2022 113,515
2023 113,515
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6.

LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

Capital Lease Obligation (Continued)

Fiscal Year
Ending

April 30, Payment
2024 h) 64,008
2025 64,008
2026 64,009

Total minimum lease payments 871.190
Less amount representing interest (81,809)

Present value of future minimum lease payments 789,381
Less current portion (162,716)
LONG-TERM PORTION $ 626,665

Legal Debt Margin

The Village is a home rule municipality.

Article VII, Section 6(k) of the 1970 lilinois Constitution governs computation

of the legal debt margin.

“The General Assembly may limit by law the amount and require referendum
approval of debt to be incurred by home rule municipalities, payable from ad
valorem property tax receipts, only in excess of the following percentages of
the assessed value of its taxable property ...(2) if its population is more than
25,000 and less than 500.000 an aggregate of one percent: ...indebtedness
which is outstanding on the effective date (July 1. 1971) of this constitution or
which is thereafier approved by referendum ...shall not be included in the

foregoing percentage amounts.”

To date, the General Assembly has set no limits for home rule municipalities.

Sl
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6. LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

h.

Conduit Debt

In a prior fiscal year, the Village issued Adjustable Rate Demand Revenue Bonds to
Lewis University (the University) for the purpose of financing. These bonds are
collateralized only by the revenue of the University and are not considered liabilities
or contingent liabilities of the Village. The principal amount of the series could not
be determined; however, the original issue amount of the bonds was $44,950,000.

In a prior fiscal year, the Village issued Revenue Bonds to the University for the
purpose of financing. These bonds are collateralized only by the revenue of the
University and are not considered liabilities or contingent liabilities of the Village.
The principal amount of the series could not be determined; however, the original
issue amount of the bonds was $24,300.000.

On March 17, 2015, the Village issued Revenue Bonds to the University for the
purposes of financing and partially refunding $18.520,000 worth of the 2006
Revenue Bonds issued to the University. These bonds are collateralized only by the
revenue of the University and are not considered liabilities or contingent liabilities of
the Village. The original issue amount of the bonds was $38.995.000.

In a prior fiscal year, the Village issued Industrial Development Revenue Bonds to
CGI Real Estate, LLC (the Company) for the purpose of financing. These bonds are
collateralized only by the revenue of the Company and are not considered liabilities
or contingent liabilities of the Village. The principal amount of the series could not
be determined; however, the original issue amount of the bonds was $3,500,000.

7. INDIVIDUAL FUND DISCLOSURES

a.

Interfund Transactions

Due from/to other funds at April 30, 2018 consist of the following:

Due Due
Fund From To
General $ 159175 $ -
Capital Projects
Downtown TIF 38,100 -
Debt Service - 33.823
Special Revenue
Athletic and Event Center - 163,452
TOTAL ALL FUNDS $ 197.275 § 197,275
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7.

INDIVIDUAL FUND DISCLOSURES (Continued)

b.

Transfers

Transfers between funds during the year were as follows:

Transfers Transfers
Fund In Out

General 3 - § 8,252,709
Recreation 1,267,800 341,136
Debt service 3.200,769 -
Downtown TIF 2.025.276 -
Facility Construction 2,000.000 -
Nonmajor Governmental

Marquette Center TIF - 1,900,000
Water and Sewer - 212,896
TOTAL ALL FUNDS $ 10,493,845 $ 10,706,741

The purposes of significant interfund transfers are as follows:

$1,267,800 transferred from the General Fund to the Recreation Fund to
support recreation department projects and costs,

$2,000,000 transferred from the General Fund to the Facility Construction
Fund to support capital and construction projects, including the construction of
a new fire station.

$4,984,909 transferred from the General Fund to the Debt Service Fund to
lessen the property tax burden on residents,

$141,136 transferred from the Recreation Fund to the Debt Service Fund
($15,860) to lesson the property tax burden on residents and to the Downtown
TIF District Fund ($125,276) to fund specialized sports flooring that is being
utilized by the Athletic and Event Center.

$200,000 transferred from Real Estate Transaction Fund to the Debt Service
Fund to lessen the property tax burden on residents.

$1,900,000 transferred from the Marquette Center TIF District Fund to the
Downtown TIF District Fund for various TIF related projects. The main
financing mechanism for the Downtown TIF District Fund will be the
Marquette TIF District Fund.
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7

INDIVIDUAL FUND DISCLOSURES (Continued)
b.  Transfers (Continued)

U $212,896 of capital assets transferred from the Water and Sewer Fund to
Governmental Activities.

J $3.246,000 transferred from the Water Fund to the General Fund. }t was not
reported as a transfer in prior years, and therefore, in the current year it is
considered a contra-expense account representing allocation of General Fund
costs to Water Fund.

DEVELOPMENT ASSISTANCE

The Village has entered into various agreements with private organizations to encourage
economic development in the Village. These agreements provide for rebating a portion of
state shared sales taxes to the private organizations if certain benchmarks of development
are achieved. During the fiscal year ended April 30, 2018, approximately $871,707 in state
shared sales tax rebates were incurred under these agreements. Future contingent rebates of
approximately $24,316,1 10 in state shared sales taxes may be rebated if certain criteria are
met in future years.

TAX ABATEMENTS

The Village rebates local home rule sales taxes, food and beverage taxes, certain
incremental property taxes generated by a tax increment financing district to encourage
economic development in the Village. The terms of these rebate arrangements are specified
within written agreements with the business concerned as allowed under the Illinois
Compiled Statute Municipal Code (65 ILCS 5/8-11-20). Certain rebates may be recaptured
if the subject development ceases to operate as intended for the periods described in the
agreements. These agreements are authorized through formal approval by the Village
Board of Trustees. The Village rebated $1,546,270 of home rule sales taxes, food and
beverage taxes, and property taxes during the year ended April 30, 2018. Future contingent
rebates of approximately $41,769,656 in home rule sales taxes, food and beverage taxes,
and property taxes may be rebated if certain criteria are met in future years.

e |
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10.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

HR

Litigation

The Village has been sued by an entity claiming damages related to a ruptured oil
pipeline in September 2010. A motion for summary judgment in favor of the Village
was granted on August 10, 2016. A further order was entered that granted final
judgment in favor of the Village on all remaining claims against the Village. These
rulings have been appealed and a resolution of the appeal could take at least one year.

Grants

Amounts received or receivable from grantor agencies are subject to audit and
adjustment by grantor agencies, principally the federal government. Any disallowed
claims, including amounts already collected, may constitute a liability of the
applicable funds. The amount, if any, of expenditures which may be disallowed by
the grantor cannot be determined at this time; although, the Village expects such
amounts, if any, to be immaterial.

Construction Contract Commitments

At April 30, 2018, the Village had the following construction contract commitments:

Remaining

Total Contract

Contract Paid to Date Amount
JIC Park $ 248495 § 203,294 % 45,201
Malibu Bay Renovation 217,350 46,237 171,113
Deer Creek Concession 839,597 687.061 152,536
Animal Kennel 775.504 703,675 71,829
TOTALS $ 2,080,946 $ 1,640,267 $ 440,679
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11.

OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

Plan Description

In addition to providing the pension benefits described below, the Village provides
postemployment health care benefits (OPEB) for retired employees through a
single-employer defined benefit plan (the Plan). The benefits, benefit levels,
employee contributions, and employer contributions are governed by the Village and
can be amended by the Village through its personne] manual and union contracts.
The Plan is not accounted for as a trust fund, as an irrevocable trust has not been
established to account for the Plan. The Plan does not issue a separate report. The
activity of the Plan is reported in the Village’s governmental and business-type
activities.

Benefits Provided

The Village provides pre and post Medicare postretirement health insurance to
retirees, their spouses, and dependents (enrolled at time of employee’s retirement).
To be eligible for benefits, the employee must qualify for retirement under one of the
Village’s three retirement plans. The retirees pay the blended premium. Upon a
retiree becoming eligible for Medicare, the amount payable under the Village's
health plan will be reduced by the amount payable under Medicare for those
expenses that are covered under both.

Membership
At April 30, 2018 (latest information available), membership consisted of*
Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 33

Terminated employees entitled
to benefits but not yet receiving them -

Active employees 209
TOTAL 242
Participating employers I

Funding Policy
The Village is not required to and currently does not advance fund the cost of

benefits that will become due and payable in the future. Active employees do not
contribute to the Plan until retirement.
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11. OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (Continued)

e.  Annual OPEB Costs and Net OPEB Obligation

The Village's annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to
the Plan, and the net OPEB obligation for 2018 and two previous fiscal years was as

follows:
Fiscal Annual Percentage of
Year OPEB Employer Annual OPEB Net OPEB
Ended Cost Contributions Cost Contributed  Obligation
2016 $ 428263 § 235415 3511% % 8,101
2017 429292 250,716 58.40% 186,677
2018 407,971 200,952 49.20% 393,696

The net OPEB obligation as of April 30, 2018 was calculated as follows:

Annual required contribution h)
Interest on net OPEB obligation (asset)
Adjustment to annual required contribution

406,976
7,467
(6,472)

Annual OPEB cost
Contributions made

407.971
(200,952)

Increase in net OPEB obligation (asset)
Net OPEB obligation (asset), beginning of year

207,019
186,677

NET OPEB OBLIGATION (ASSET), END OF YEAR 3

393,696

Funded Status and Funding Progress: The funded status and funding progress of the

Plan as of April 30, 2018 (latest information available) was as follows:

Actuarial accrued liability (AAL) 5
Actuarial value of plan assets

Unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL)

Funded ratio (actuarial value of plan assets/AAL)

Covered payrol| (active plan members) 3
UAAL as a percentage of covered payroll

4,864,329

4,864,329

0.00%

16,121,520

30.17%

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported
amounts and assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the
future. Examples include assumptions about future employment, mortality, and the
healthcare cost trend. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the Plan
and the annual required contributions of the employer are subject to continual
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11.

12.

OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (Continued)
e.  Annual OPEB Costs and Net OPEB Obligation (Continued)

revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are
made about the future. The schedule of funding progress, presented as required
supplementary information following the notes to financial statements, presents
multi-year trend information that shows whether the actuarial value of plan assets is
increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for
benefits.

Actuarial methods and assumptions - projections of benefits for financial reporting
purposes are based on the substantive plan (the Plan as understood by the employer
and plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at the time of each
valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the employer
and plan members to that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include
techniques that are designed to reduce short-term volatility in actuarial accrued
liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long-term perspective
of the calculations,

In the April 30, 2018 actuarial valuation, the entry-age normal percentage of salary
actuarial cost method was used. The actuarial assumptions included an investment
rate of return of 4% and an initial healthcare cost trend rate of 6.50% with an
ultimate healthcare inflation rate of 4.50%. Both rates include a 3% inflation
assumption. The actuarial value of assets was not determined as the Village has not
advance funded its obligation. The Plan’s unfunded actuarial accrued liability is
being amortized as a level percentage of projected payroll on an open basis. The
remaining amortization period at April 30, 2018 was 30 years.

DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS

The Village contributes to three defined benefit pension plans, the lllinois Municipal
Retirement Fund (IMRF), an agent multiple-employer public employee retirement system;
the Police Pension Plan which is a single-employer pension plan: and the Firefighters"
Pension Plan which is also a single-employer pension plan. The benefits, benefit levels,
employee contributions, and employer contributions for all three plans are governed by
ILCS and can only be amended by the Ilinois General Assembly. None of the pension
plans issue separate reports on the pension plans. However, IMRF does issue a publicly
available report that includes financial statements and supplementary information for the
plan as a whole, but not for individual employers. That report can be obtained at
wwiw.imrf.org or by writing to Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund, 2211 York Road, Suite
500, Oak Brook, Hlinois 60523.



VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

12,

DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (Continued)

a.

Plan Descriptions

lllinois Municipal Retirement Fund

Plan Administration

All employees (other than those covered by the Police Pension Plan or the
Firefighters® Pension Plan) hired in positions that meet or exceed the prescribed
annual hourly standard must be enrolled in IMRF as participating members.

The plan is accounted for on the economic resources measurement focus and the
accrual basis of accounting. Employer and employee contributions are recognized
when earned in the year that the contributions are required, benefits and refunds are
recognized as an expense and liability when due and payable.

Plan Membership

At December 31, 2017, membership consisted of:

Inactive employees or their beneficiaries

currently receiving benefits 91
Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits 74
Active employees 167
TOTAL 332

Benefits Provided

IMRF provides two tiers of pension benefits. Employees hired prior to January 1,
2011, are eligible for Tier | benefits. For Tier | employees, pension benefits vest
afier eight years of service. Participating members who retire at age 55 (reduced
benefits) or after age 60 (full benefits) with eight years of credited service are entitled
to an annual retirement benefit, payable monthly for life. in an amount equal to
I 2/3% of their final rate of earnings. for each year of credited service up to 15 years,
and 2% for each year thereafter,

Employees hired on or after January 1, 2011, are eligible for Tier 2 benefits. For
Tier 2 employees, pension benefits vest after ten years of service. Participating
members who retire at age 62 (reduced benefits) or after age 67 (full benefits) with
ten years of credited service are entitled to an annual retirement benefit, payable
monthly for life, in an amount equal to 1 2/3% of their final rate of earnings, for each
year of credited service up to 15 years, and 2% for each year thereafter.
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12.

DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (Continued)

a.

Plan Descriptions {Continued)

lllinois Municipal Retirement Fund (Continued)

Benefits Provided (Continued)

IMRF also provides death and disability benefits. These benefit provisions are
established by state statute.

Contributions

Participating members are required to contribute 4.50% of their annual salary to
IMRF. The Village is required to contribute the remaining amounts necessary to fund
IMRF as specified by statute. The employer contribution for the year ended April 30,
2018 was 12.15% of covered payroll,

Actuarial Assumptions

The Village's net pension liability was measured as of December 31, 2017 and the
total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an
actuarial valuation performed as of the same date using the following actuarial
methods and assumptions.

Actuarial valuation date December 31, 2017
Actuarial cost method Entry-age normal
Asset valuation method Market value

Assumptions

Price inflation 2.50%
Salary increases 3.39% 10 14.25%
Investment rate of return 7.50%
Cost of living adjustments 3.50%
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12.

DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (Continued)

a.

Plan Descriptions (Continued)

Hlinois Municipal Retirement Fund (Continued)

Actuarial Asswmptions (Continued)

For non disabled retirees, an IMRF specific mortality table was used with fully
generational projection scale MP-2017 (base year 2015). The IMRF specific rates
were developed from the RP-2014 Blue Collar Health Annuitant Mortality Table
with adjustments to match current IMRF experience. For disabled retirees, an IMRF
specific mortality table was used with fully generational projection scale MP-2017
(base year 2015). The IMRF specific rates were developed from the RP-2014
Disabled Retirees Mortality Table applying the same adjustments that were applied
for non-disabled lives. For active members, an IMRF specific mortality table was
used with fully generational projection scale MP-2017 (base year 2015). The IMRF
specific rates were developed from the RP-2014 Employee Mortality Table with
adjustments to match current IMRF experience.

Discownt Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.50%. The
projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that member
contributions will be made at the current contribution rate and that the Village
contributions will be made at rates equal to the difference between actuarially
determined contribution rates and the member rate. Based on those assumptions, the
IMRF’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected
future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected
rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected
benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.

R
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12. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (Continued)
a. Plan Descriptions (Continued)

lllinois Municipal Retirement Fund (Continued)

Changes in the Net Pension Liability

(a) (b) (a)- (b)
Total Plan Net
Pension Fiduciary Pension
Liability Net Position Liability
BALANCES AT
JANUARY 1, 2017 $ 49212214 § 39,998,204 § 9,214,010
Changes for the period
Service cost 1.247.485 - 1,247,485
Interest 3.675.671 - 3,675,671
Difference between expected
and actual experience (763,563) - (763,563)
Employer contributions - 1,379.376 (1,379,376)
Assumption changes (1,666,246) - (1,666,246)
Employee contributions - 519,303 (519,303)
Net investment income - 6,838,024 {6.838,024)
Benefit payments and refunds (1,654,025) (1,654,025) -
Other (net transfer) - (896,592) 896,592
Net changes 839,322 6,186,086 (5,346,764)
BALANCES AT
DECEMBER 31, 2017 $ 50,051,536 5 46,184,290 $ 3,867,246

Changes in assumptions related to price inflation, salary increases, retirement age,
and mortality rates were made in 2017,
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DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (Continued)

a.

Plan Descriptions (Continued)

Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund (Continued)

Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of
Resources

For the year ended April 30. 2018, the Village recognized pension expense of
$1,784.069.

At April 30, 2018, the Village reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to IMRF from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience  $§ 333,877 $§ 710,775

Assumption changes 34,835 1,473,834
Net difference between projected and

actual earnings on pension plan investments 1.164,538 3,090,085
Employer contributions after the measurement date 404.010 -
TOTAL $ 1.937.260 $ 5,274,694

$404,010 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting
from village contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as
a reduction of net pension liability in the reporting year ending April 30, 2019, Other
amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to IMRF will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Fiscal Year
Ending
April 30,
2019 $ (554,114)
2020 (554,116)
2021 (1,071,281)
2022 (1,217,224)
2023 (344,709)
Thereafter -
TOTAL $ (3,741,444)
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DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (Continued)

a.

Plan Descriptions (Continued)

lllinois Municipal Retirement Fund (Continued)
Discount Rate Sensitivity

The following is a sensitivity analysis of the net pension liability to changes in the
discount rate. The table below presents the net pension liability of the Village
calculated using the discount rate of 7.50% as well as what the Village's net pension
liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1 percentage point
lower (6.50%) or 1 percentage point higher (8.50%) than the current rate:

Current
1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
(6.50%) (7.50%) (8.50%)

Net pension liability (asset) $ 11,378,078 § 3.867.246 § (2,234,727)

Police Pension Plan

Plan Administration

Police sworn personnel are covered by the Police Pension Plan (the Plan). Although
this is a single-employer pension plan, the defined benefits and employee and
employer contribution levels are governed by Illinois Compiled Statutes (40 1LCS
5/3-1) and may be amended only by the Illinois legislature. The Village accounts for
the Plan as a pension trust fund.

The Plan is governed by a five-member Board of Trustees. Two members of the
Board of Trustees are appointed by the Village's Mayor, one member is elected by
pension beneficiaries and two members are elected by active police employees.

The Plan is accounted for on the economic resources measurement focus and the
accrual basis of accounting. Employer and employee contributions are recognized
when earned in the year that the contributions are required and benefits and refunds
are recognized as an expense and liability when due and payable.

Administrative costs are financed through contributions and investment income.
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12, DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (Continued)

d.

Plan Descriptions (Continued)

Police Pension Plan (Continued)

Plan Membership

At April 30, 2018, the Plan membership consisted of®

Inactive plan members or beneficiaries currently

receiving benefits 29
Inactive plan members entitled to but not yet

receiving benefits 5
Active plan members 62
TOTAL 96

Benefits Provided

The Plan provides retirement benefits as well as death and disability benefits. Tier |
employees (those hired as a police officer prior to January 1, 2011) attaining the age
of 50 or older with 20 or more years of creditable service are entitled to receive an
annual retirement benefit equal to one-half of the salary attached to the rank held on
the last day of service, or for one year prior to the last day, whichever is greater. The
annual benefit shall be increased by 2.50% of such salary for each additional year of
service over 20 years up to 30 years to a maximum of 75% of such salary. Employees
with at least eight years but less than 20 years of credited service may retire at or
after age 60 and receive a reduced benefit. The monthly benefit of a police officer
who retired with 20 or more years of service after January [, 1977 shall be increased
annually, following the first anniversary date of retirement and be paid upon reaching
the age of at least 55 years, by 3% of the original pension. and 3% compounded
annually thereafter.

Tier 2 employees (those hired on or after January 1, 2011) attaining the age of 55 or
older with ten or more years of creditable service are entitled to receive an annual
retirement benefit equal to the average monthly salary obtained by dividing the total
salary of the police officer during the 96 consecutive months of service within the
last 120 months of service in which the total salary was the highest by the number of
months of service in that period. Police officers’ salary for pension purposes is
capped at $106,800, plus the lesser of ¥: of the annual change in the Consumer Price
Index or 3% compounded. The annual benefit shall be increased by 2.50% of such
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DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (Continued)

a.

Plan Descriptions (Continued)

Police Pension Plan (Continued)

Benefits Provided (Continued)

salary for each additional year of service over 20 years up to 30 years to a maximum
of 75% of such salary. Employees with at least ten years may retire at or after age 50
and receive a reduced benefit (i.e., 2% for each month under 55). The monthly
benefit of a Tier 2 police officer shall be increased annually at age 60 on the
January 1*" after the police officer retires, or the first anniversary of the pension
starting date, whichever is later. Noncompounding increases occur annually, each
January thereafter. The increase is the lesser of 3% or ' of the change in the
Consumer Price Index for the preceding calendar year.

Contributions

Covered employees are required to contribute 9.91% of their base salary to the Plan.
If an employee leaves covered employment with less than 20 years of service,
accumulated employee contributions may be refunded without accumulated interest.
The Village is required to contribute the remaining amounts necessary to finance the
Plan as actuarially determined by an enrolled actuary. Effective January |, 2011, the
Village has until the year 2040 to fund 90% of the past service cost for the Plan.
However, the Village has elected to fund 100% of the past service cost by 2040. For
the year ended April 30, 2018, the Village's contribution was 30.68% of covered
payroll.

Investment Policy

The Police Pension Fund's (the Fund) investment policy authorizes the Fund to
invest in all investments allowed by IL.CS. These include deposits/investments in
insured commercial banks. savings and loan institutions, interest-bearing obligations
of the U.S. Treasury and U.S. agencies, interest-bearing bonds of the State of 1llinois
or any county, township, or municipal corporation of the State of Illinois, direct
obligations of the State of Israel, money market mutual funds whose investments
consist of obligations of the U.S. Treasury or U.S. agencies, separate accounts
managed by life insurance companies, mutual funds, and The Illinois Funds (created
by the Illinois State Legislature under the control of the State Treasurer that
maintains a $1 per share value which is equal to the participant’s fair value).
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12. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (Continued)

d.

Plan Description (Continued)

Police Pension Plan (Continued)

Investment Policy (Continued)

During the year, there were no changes to the investment policy.

It is the policy of the Fund to invest its funds with care, skill, prudence, and
diligence, using the “prudent person™ standard for managing the overall portfolio.

The Fund’s investment policy in accordance with ILCS establishes the following
target allocation across asset classes:

Long-Term
Target Expected Real
Asset Class Allocations Rate of Return
l.arge Cap Domestic Equity 35.00% 6.70%
Small Cap Domestic Equity 20.00% 8.60%
International Equity 10.00% 6.50%
Fixed Income 35.00% 1.50%

Asset class returns and risk premium data are from Morningstar Analyst Research
Center — SBBI Data for the period of 12/31/1925 through 12/31/2017. International
Equity = the MSCI EAFE Index 12/31/1969 through 12/31/2017. Long-term returns
for the asset classes are calculated on a geometric mean basis.

Investment Valuations

All pension fund investments are stated at fair value. Fair value is the price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

Investment Rate of Return

For the year ended April 30, 2018, the annual money-weighted rate of return on
pension plan investments, net of pension plan investment expense, was 8.95%. The

money-weighted rate of return expresses investment performance, net of investment
expense, adjusted for the changing amounts actually invested.
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DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (Continued)

a.  Plan Description (Continued)
Police Pension Plan (Continued)
Deposits with Financial Institutions
The Fund’s investment policy requires deposits to be insured by the Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation (FDIC).
Interest Rate Risk
The following table presents the investments and maturities of the Fund’s debt
securities as of April 30, 2018:
Investment Maturities (in Years)
Less Greater
Investment Type Fair Value Than | 1-3 6-10 Than 10
U.S. agencies - FNMA  § 1,282,268 § -5 -5 -5 1,282,268
U.S. agencies - FHLMC 234,125 - - - 234,125
U.S. agencies - GNMA 12.219,901 - - 3,257 12,216,644
TOTAL $ 13,736,294 $ - % -3 3,257 § 13,733,037

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair
value of an investment. The Fund’s investment policy does not specifically address
interest rate risk. The Fund limits its exposure to interest rate risk by structuring the
portfolio to provide liquidity for all reasonably anticipated operating requirements
while providing a reasonable rate of return based on the current market.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that the issuer of a debt security will not pay its par value upon
maturity. The Fund limits its exposure to credit risk by primarily investing in
securities issued by the United States Government and/or its agencies that are
implicitly guaranteed by the United States Government. The Fund's investment
policy does not specifically address credit risk. The U.S. agencies are rated AAA.
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DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (Continued)

a.

Plan Descriptions (Continued)

Police Pension Plan (Continued)

Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that. in the event of the faiture of the
counterparty to the investment, the Fund will not be able to recover the value of its
investments that are in possession of an outside party. The investment policy does
not specifically address custodial credit risk for investments. However, the Fund
investment policy requires purchases by brokers reporting to the Federal Reserve
Bank of New York or local (Chicago Area) brokers meeting the standards set forth
by the Federal Reserve Bank. Pursuant to ILCS Chapter 108 1/2, Article 1-113 at
Paragraph 16, all investments of the Fund shall be clearly held to indicate ownership
by the Fund.

Fair Value Measurement

The Fund has the following recurring fair value measurements as of April 30, 2018.
The equity mutual funds are valued using quoted prices (Level | inputs). The U.S.
Treasury and agency obligations are valued using evaluated pricing (Level 2 inputs).
The money market mutual funds are valued at amortized cost, which approximates
fair value.

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7%. The projection
of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that plan member
contributions will be made at the current contribution rate and that contributions will
be made at rates equal to the difference between actuarially determined contribution
rates and the member rate. Based on those assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary
net position was projected to be available 1o make all projected future benefit
payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return
on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments
1o determine the total pension liability.
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12. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (Continued)

a.

Plan Descriptions (Continued)

Police Pension Plan (Continued)

Changes in Net Pension Liability

BALANCES AT MAY 1,2017

Changes for the period
Service cost
Interest
Difference between expected

and actual experience

Employer contributions
Assumption changes
Employee contributions
Net investment income

Benefit payments and refunds

Other (net transfer)

Net changes

(a) (b) (a) - (b)
Total Plan Net

Pension Fiduciary Pension

Liability  Net Position Liability
$ 58,633.244 $38917.900 $19,715.344
1,432,911 - 1.432911
4,134,786 - 4,134,786
(1.726,012) - (1,726,012)
- 1,856,992 (1,856,992)
2.389,068 - 2,389,068
- 636,153 (636,153)
- 3.481,196 (3,481,196)
(1,995.563)  (1,995.563) -
- (49.216) 49,216
4,235,190 3,929,562 305,628

BALANCES AT APRIL 30, 2018

$ 62,868,434 §42,847.462

$ 20,020,972

There was a change with respect to actuarial assumptions from the prior year to
reflect revised expectations with respect to mortality rates. The mortality rates have
been changed to the RP-2014 Mortality Table with a blue collar adjustment, with
generational improvement MP-2017 applied from 2013.
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a.

Plan Descriptions (Continued)

Police Pension Plan (Continued)

Actuarial Assumptions

The total pension liability above was determined by an actuarial valuation performed
as of April 30, 2018 using the following actuarial methods and assumptions:

Actuarial valuation date April 30,2018
Actuarial cost method Entry-age normal
Asset valuation method Market value
Assumptions

Inflation 2.50%

Salary increases 5.50%

Investment rate of return 7.00%

Cost of living adjustments 3.00% (1.25% for Tier 2)

Mortality rates were based on the RP-2014 Mortality Table with a blue collar
adjustment, with generational improvement scale MP-2017 applied from 2013. The
other non-economic actuarial assumptions used in the April 30, 2018 valuation were
based on the results of an actuarial experience study conducted by the Illinois
Department of Insurance dated October 3, 2017.

Discount Rate Sensitivity

The following is a sensitivity analysis of the net pension liability to changes in the
discount rate. The table below presents the net pension liability of the Village
cafculated using the discount rate of 7% as well as what the Village's net pension
liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is | percentage point
lower (6%) or | percentage point higher (8%) than the current rate:
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a.

Plan Descriptions (Continued)

Police Pension Plan (Continued)

Discount Rate Sensitivity (Continued)

Current
1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
(6%) (7%) (8%)
Net pension liability $ 30499,104 $ 20,020,972 $ 11,638,091

Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of
Resources

For the year ended April 30, 2018, the Village recognized police pension expense of
$2,108,351.

At April 30, 2018, the Village reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to the Plan from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of  Inflows of

Resources Resources
Differences between expected and actual experience  $ - § 3,931,812
Changes in assumptions 2,629.311 S

Net difference between projected and

actual earnings on pension plan investments - 332,296
TOTAL $ 2629311 § 4,264,108
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a.

Plan Descriptions (Continued)

Police Pension Plan (Continued)

Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of
Resources (Continued)

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to the police pension will be recognized in pension expense as
follows:

Fiscal Year

Ending

April 30,
2019 $ (131,358)
2020 (131,356)
2021 (712,144)
2022 (411,854)
2023 (263,607)
Thereafter 15,522
TOTAL $ (1,634,797)

Firefighters’ Pension Plan

Plan Administration

Fire sworn personnel are covered by the Firefighters’ Pension Plan (the Plan).
Although this is a single-employer pension plan, the defined benefits and employee
and employer contribution levels are governed by ILCS (40 ILCS 5/4-1) and may be
amended only by the [llinois legislature. The Village accounts for the Plan as a
pension trust fund.

The Plan is governed by a five-member Board of Trustees. Two members of the
Board of Trustees are appointed by the Village's Mayor, one member is elected by
pension benefictaries and two members are elected by active firefighter employees.

The Plan is accounted for on the economic resources measurement focus and the
accrual basis of accounting. Employer and employee contributions are recognized
when earned in the year that the contributions are required and benefits and refunds
are recognized as an expense and liability when due and payable.

Administrative costs are financed through contributions and investment income.

- 65 -



VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

12.  DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (Continued)

a.

Plan Descriptions (Continued)

Firefighters’ Pension Plan (Continued)

Plan Membership
At April 30, 2018, the Plan membership consisted of:
[nactive plan members or beneficiaries currently

receiving benefits 6
Inactive plan members entitled to but not yet

receiving them 3
Active plan members 20
TOTAL 29

Benefits Provided

The Plan provides retirement benefits as well as death and disability benefits. Tier |
employees (those hired prior to January 1, 2011) attaining the age of 50 or older with
20 or more years of creditable service are entitled to receive an annual retirement
benefit equal to one-half of the salary attached to the rank held at the date of
retirement. The annual benefit shall be increased by 2.50% of such salary for each
additional year of service over 20 years up to 30 years to a maximum of 75% of such
salary. Employees with at least ten years but less than 20 years of credited service
may retire at or afier age 60 and receive a reduced benefit. The monthly benefit of a
covered employee who retired with 20 or more years of service after January 1, 1977
shall be increased annually, following the first anniversary date of retirement and be
paid upon reaching the age of at least 55 years, by 3% of the original pension and 3%
compounded annually thereafter.

Tier 2 employees (those hired on or after January 1, 201 1) attaining the age of 55 or
older with ten or more years of creditable service are entitled to receive an annual
retirement benefit equal to the average monthly salary obtained by dividing the total
salary of the firefighter during the 96 consecutive months of service within the last
120 months of service in which the total salary was the highest by the number of
months of service in that period. Firefighters® salary for pension purposes is capped
at $106,800, plus the lesser of '% of the annual change in the Consumer Price Index
or 3% compounded. The annual benefit shall be increased by 2.50% of such salary
for each additional year of service over 20 years up to 30 years to a maximum of
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12,

DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (Continued)

a.

Plan Descriptions (Continued)

Firefighters® Pension Plan (Continued)

Benefits Provided (Continued)

75% of such salary. Employees with at least ten years may retire at or after age 50
and receive a reduced benefit (i.e., ¥2% for each month under 55). The monthly
benefit of a Tier 2 firefighter shall be increased annually at age 60 on the January 1%
after the firefighter retires, or the first anniversary of the pension starting date,
whichever is later. Noncompounding increases occur annually, each January
thereafter. The increase is the lesser of 3% or % of the change in the Consumer Price
Index for the preceding calendar year.

Contributions

Covered employees are required to contribute 9.455% of their base salary to the Plan.
If an employee leaves covered employment with less than 20 years of service,
accumulated employee contributions may be refunded without accumulated interest.
The Village is required to finance the Firefighters® Pension Plan as actuarially
determined by an enrolled actuary. Effective January [, 2011, the Village has unti
the year 2040 to fund 90% of the past services costs for the Plan. However, the
Village has elected to fund 100% of the past service cost by 2040. For the year ended
April 30, 2018, the Village’s contribution was 19.08% of covered payroll.

Investment Policy

The Firefighters’ Pension Fund’s (the Fund) investment policy authorizes the Fund to
invest in all investments allowed by ILCS. These include deposits/investments in
insured commercial banks, savings and loan institutions, obligations of the U.S.
Treasury and U.S. agencies, insured credit union shares, money market mutual funds
with portfolios of securities issued or guaranteed by the United States Government or
agreements to repurchase these same obligations, repurchase agreements, short-term
commercial paper rated within the three highest classifications by at least two
standard rating services, separate accounts that are managed by life insurance
companies, mutual funds, The Illinois Funds (created by the Illinois State Legislature
under the control of the State Treasurer that maintains a $1 per share value which is
equal to the participant’s fair value), and IMET, a not-for-profit investment trust
formed pursuant to the lllinois Municipal Code and managed by a Board of Trustees
elected from the participating members. IMET is not registered with the SEC as an
investment company. Investments in IMET are valued at IMET"s share price, the
price for which the investment could be sold.
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12.

DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (Continucd)

a.

Plan Descriptions (Continued)

Firefighters® Pension Plan (Continued)

Investment Policy (Continued)
During the year, there were no changes to the investment policy.

It is the policy of the Fund to invest its funds in a manner which will provide the
highest investment return with the maximum security while meeting the daily cash
flow demands of the Fund and conforming to all state and local statutes governing
the investment of public funds, using the “prudent person™ standard for managing the
overall portfolio. The primary objectives of the policy are, in order of priority, safety
of principal, liquidity, and return on investment.

The Fund’s investment policy in accordance with ILCS establishes the following
target allocation across asset classes:

Long-Term
Expected Real
Asset Class Target Rate of Return
Large Cap Domestic Equity 28.00% 6.50%
Small Cap Domestic Equity 8.00% 8.40%
International Equity 4.00% 6.30%
Fixed Income 60.00% 1.30%

Asset class returns and risk premium data are from Morningstar Analyst Research
Center - SBBI Data for the period of 12/31/1925 through 12/31/2017. International
Equity = the MSCI EAFE Index 12/31/1969 through 12/31/2017. Long-term returns
for the asset classes are calculated on a geometric mean basis.

Investment Valuations
All pension fund investments are stated at fair value. Fair value is the price that

would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date,
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12.

DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (Continued)

a.  Plan Descriptions (Continued)

Firefighters” Pension Plan (Continued)

Investment Rate of Return

For the year ended April 30. 2018, the annual money-weighted rate of return on

pension plan investments, net of pension plan investment expense, was 4.34%. The

money-weighted rate of return expresses investment performance, net of investment

expense, adjusted for the changing amounts actually invested.

Deposits with Financial Institutions

The Fund’s investment policy requires pledging of collateral for all bank balances in

excess of federal depository insurance. The Fund shall have a perfected security

interest in such securities which shall be free of any claims to the rights to these

securities other than any claims by the custodian which are subordinate to the Fund's

claims to rights to these securities,

Interest Rate Risk

The following table presents the investments and maturities of the Fund’s debt

securities as of April 30, 2018:

Investment Maturities (in Years)
Less Greater

Investment Type Fair Value Than | 1-5 6-10 Than 10
U.S. Treasury notes $ 834,375 § 169,745 § 448,302 § 169,359 § 46,969
U.S. agencies - GNMA 340 - 135 - 185
U.S. agencies - FFCB 1,635,895 99,720 341,306 1,194,869 -
U.S. agencies - FHLB 1,809,960 59,867 869,254 880,839 -
U.S. agencies - FHLMC 207,507 - 162,244 45,263 -
U.S. agencies - FMNA 178,365 34,885 72.569 70,911 -
LS. agencies - Tennessee

Valiey Authority 69,094 - 49,411 19,683 S

Municipal bonds 662,743 50413 450.320 162,008 -
TOTAL $ 5398279 § 414,632 § 2393.561 $§ 2542932 § 47,154

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair
value of an investment. The Fund limits its exposure to interest rate risk by
structuring the portfolio to provide liquidity for all reasonably anticipated operating
requirements while providing a reasonable rate of return based on the current market.
The Fund’s investment policy requires that the average maturity and duration of the
portfolio be maintained at approximately five years and range from two to seven
years.
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DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (Continued)

a.

Plan Descriptions (Continued)

Firefighters® Pension Plan (Continued)

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that the issuer of a debt security will not pay its par value upon
maturity. The Fund limits its exposure to credit risk by primarily investing in
securities issued by the United States Government and/or its agencies that are
implicitly guaranteed by the United States Government. The Fund’s investment
policy does not specially address credit risk. The U.S. agencies are rated AA+ to
AAA and the municipal bonds have ratings from AAA to AA-.

Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the
counterparty to the investment, the Fund will not be able to recover the value of its
investments that are in possession of an outside party. The Fund's investment policy
requires an independent third party institution to act as custodian for its securities.

Fair Value Measurement

The Fund has the following recurring fair value measurements as of April 30, 2018.
The equity mutual funds are valued using quoted prices (Level | inputs). The U.S.
Treasury and agency obligations and municipal bonds are valued using quoted matrix
pricing models {Level 2 inputs). The money market mutual funds are valued at
amortized cost, which approximates fair value.

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7%. The projection
of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that plan member
contributions will be made at the current contribution rate and that contributions will
be made at rates equal to the difference between actuarially determined contribution
rates and the member rate. Based on those assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary
net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit
payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return
on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments
to determine the total pension liability.
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DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (Continued)

a.

Plan Descriptions (Continued)

Firefighters' Pension Plan (Continued)

Changes in Net Pension Liability

(a) (b) (a} - (b)
Total Plan Net
Pension Fiduciary Pension
Liability Net Position Liability
BALANCES AT MAY 1,2017 $ 9260268 § B8.573.800 § 686,468
Changes for the period
Service cost 458.792 - 458,792
Interest 669,990 - 669,990
Difference between expected
and actual experience 413,049 - 413,049
Employer contributions - 358453 (358,453)
Assumption changes 260,285 - 260.285
Employee contributions - 178,897 (178,897)
Net investment income - 386,565 (386,565)
Benefit payments and refunds (295,554) (295,554) -
Other (net transfer) - (9,996) 9.996
Net changes 1,506,562 618,365 888,197
BALANCES AT APRIL 30,2018 510,766,830 $ 9,192,165 $ 1,574,665

There was a change with respect to actuarial assumptions from the prior year to
reflect revised expectations with respect to mortality rates. The mortality rates have
been changed to the RP-2014 Mortality Table with a blue collar adjustment, with
improvement scale MP-2017 applied generationally from 2013,
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12. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (Continued)
a.  Plan Descriptions (Continued)

Firefighters’ Pension Plan (Continued)

Actuarial Assumptions

The total pension liability above was determined by an actuarial valuation performed
as of April 30, 2018 using the following actuarial methods and assumptions:

Actuarial valuation date April 30,2018
Actuarial cost method Entry-age normal
Asset valuation method Market value

Assumptions

Inflation 2.50%
Salary increases 5.50%
Investment rate of return 7.00%
Cost of living adjustments 3.00% (1.25% for Tier 2)

Mortality rates were based on the RP-2014 Mortality Table with a blue collar
adjustment, with improvement scale MP-2017 applied generationally from 2013. The
other non-economic actuarial assumptions used in the April 30, 2017 valuation were
based on the results of an actuarial experience study conducted by the lllinois
Department of Insurance dated October 5, 2017.

Discount Rate Sensitivity

The following is a sensitivity analysis of the net pension liability to changes in the
discount rate. The table below presents the net pension liability of the Village
calculated using the discount rate of 7% as well as what the Village's net pension
liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1 percentage point
lower (6%) or | percentage point higher (8%) than the current rate:

Current
1% Decrease  Discount Rate 1% Increase
{6%) (7%) (8%)
Net pension liability § 3551903 $ 1,574,665 $ 7,438
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12. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (Continued)
a.  Plan Descriptions (Continued)

Firefighters’ Pension Plan (Continued)

Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of
Resources

For the year ended April 30, 2018, the Village recognized firefighters® pension
expense of $561,680.

At April 30, 2018, the Village reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to the firefighters® pension plan from the following
sources:

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience  $ 558313 § 127,087

Changes in assumptions 297,362 -
Net difference between projected and

actual earnings on pension plan investments 374,597 -
TOTAL $ 1,230,272  $ 127,087

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to the firefighters’ pension will be recognized in pension expense as

follows:
Fiscal Year
Ending
April 30,
2019 $ 210,078
2020 210,080
2021 129,301
2022 [17,.410
2023 73,068
Thereafter 363,248
TOTAL $ 1,103,185
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13. PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT

For the year ended Apri! 30, 2018, a prior period adjustment was recorded in the amount of
$38,562 in the Facility Construction Fund to record expenses in the proper period.
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VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND

Forthe Year Ended April 30, 2018

REVENUES
Property taxes
Other taxes
Fines and forfeits
Licenses and permits
Charges for services
Intergovernmental
Investment income
Other

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
General government
Public safety
Public works
Allocation to water and sewer fund
Debt service
Principal
Interest and fiscal charges
Capital outlay

Total expenditures

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers (out)
Sale of capital assets
Total other financing sources (uses)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE
FUND BALANCE, MAY |

FUND BALANCE, APRIL 30

Original and Variance
Final Budget Actual Over (Under)
§ 10,800,600 $ 10,795,790 $ (4,810)
14,586,800 16,847,194 2,260,394
633,700 622,372 (11.328)
2,621,200 2,732.922 111,722
6,408,700 6.911,034 502,334
17.150,800 13,888,147 (3,262,653)
10,000 117,712 107,712
566.900 816.256 249,356
52,778,700 52,731.427 (47,.273)
11,114,600 10,406,650 (707,950)
20,123,300 19,332,577 (790,723)
8,930,700 8,530,555 (400,145)
(3,246,000) (3.246,000) -
261,300 260,044 (1,256)
25,300 26,242 942
10,330,400 5,661.178 (4.669.222)
47,539,600 40,971,246 (6,568,354)
5.239,100 11,760,181 6,521,081
(6.254,100) (8.252,709) (1,998,609)
15,000 189,409 174,409
(6.239,100) (8,063.300) (1,824,200)
$ (1.000,000) 3,690,881 § 4,696,381
25,098,759
$ 28,795.640

(See independent auditor’s report.)
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VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS
SCHEDULE OF REVENLES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
RECREATION FUND

For the Year Ended April 30, 2018

Original and Variance
Final Budget Actual Over {(Under)
REVENUES
Property taxes $ 2336300 $ 2322490 § (3.810)
Other taxes 920,500 1,130,446 209,946
Charges for services [,791.000) 1,693,513 {97487
Intergovernmental 200.004 239927 39927
Investment income 1.0} 26,021 23.021
Other 102,000 2.4.965 {77.035)
Total revenues 5.340.800 5.437.362 96.562
EXPENDITURES
Cutture and recreation
Operations
Salaries 493,200 485,092 {(8,108)
Contractual 33,900 25,499 (8,401)
Commoditics 52,800 20,096 (32,704)
Other 268.200 227,695 (40,503)
Recreation programs
Salarics 1,254,200 1.202.904 {51,296}
Contractual 195,500 148,618 {46,882)
Commaoditics 416,700 373974 (42,726)
Park maintenance
Salaries 771,300 740,524 (30,776)
Contractual 385,000 310,266 (74,73:4)
Commaditics 70,400 68,392 {2,008}
Athletic & event center
Salarics 125,000 126,234 1,234
Coniractual 461,300 515,055 53,755
Commoditics 152,100 176,269 24,169
Other 11,600 - (11,600)
Recreation center
Salaries 440,500 431,805 {8.695})
Contractual 357,500 303,121 (54,379
Commoditics 47.300 29,563 (17,737
Debt service
Principal 19,400 11,540 (7,860}
Interest and Fiscal Charges 1,300 1,242 (58)
Capital outlay
Improvements 4.300.000 4.262.514 {37.186)
Total expenditures 9.857.200 9,460,403 {396,797)
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES (4.516.400) (4.023.041) 493,359
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 1,267,800 £,267,800 -
Transfers (out) {350.500) (341.136) 9.764
Total other financing sources (uses) 916,900 926,664 9.764
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE $ (3,599,500 (3.096,377) & 503.123
FUND BALANCE, MAY | 5.096,578
FUND BALANCE, APRIL 30 $ 2.000.201

(See independent auditor’s report.)



VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS

SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS
OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFIT PLAN

Last Six Fiscal Years

(2) UAAL
Actuarial )] asa
Actuarial n Accrued 3) Unfunded Percentage
Valuation Actuarial Liability Funded AAL 5) of Covered
Date Value of (AAL) Ratio {UAAL) Covered Payroll
April 30, Assels Entry-Age (M7 {D {2)- (1) Payroll {4)/ (5)
2013 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
2014 5 - $ 2431930 0.00% § 2431930 § 15742417 15.43%
2015 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
2016 - 4,849,663 0.00% 4,849,663 16,190,763 29.95%
2017 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
2018 - 4,864,329 0.00% 4,864,329 16,121,520 30.17%

N/A - actuarial valuation not performed.

For the actuarial valuation ending April 30, 2016, there were changes in assumptions with respect to mortality
tables, healih care trend rates, line of duty disability rates, spousal coverage election rates, and health care
coverage election rates.

(See independent auditor's report.)



VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS

SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS
ILLINOIS MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT FUND

Last Three Fiscal Years

FISCAL YEAR ENDED APRIL 30, 2018 2017 2016
Actuarially determined contribution $ 1,393400 $ 1333229 § 1,288,895
Contributions in relation to the actuarially

determined contribution 1,393,400 1,333.229 1.288,895
CONTRIBUTION DEFICIENCY (Excess) $ - 3 - $ -
Covered-employee payroll $ 11468545 $ 11.255847 $ 11,103,605

Contributions as a percentage of
covered-employee payroll 12.15% 11.84% 11.61%

Notes to Required Supplementary Information

The information presented was determined as part of the actuarial valuations as of December 31, each
year, which is 12 months prior to the beginning of the fiscal year in which contributions are reported.
Additional information as of the latest actuarial valuation presented is as follows: the actuarial cost
method was entry-age normal; the amortization method was level percent of pay, closed and the
amortization period was 26 years; the asset valuation method was five-year smoothed market; and the
significant actuarial assumptions were an investment rate of return at 7.50% annually, projected salary
increases assumption of 3.75% to 14.50% compounded annually and postretirement benefit increases of
3.00% compounded annually.

Ultimately, this schedule should present information for the last ten years., However, until ten years of
information can be compiled, information will be presented for as many years as is available.

(See independent auditor's report.)



VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS

SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYLER CONTRIBUTIONS
POLICE PENSION FUND

Last Four Fiscal Years

FISCAL YEAR ENDED APRIL 30, 2018 2017 2016 2015
Actsarially determined contribution $  LB55.887 3 1990487 3§ 1.634774 §  1.525.992
Contributions in relation to the actuariaily

determined contribution 1.856.992 1.991.448 1.696.960 1.526.335
CONTRIBUTION DEFICIENCY (Excess) $ (1.103) % 961) % (62.186) § (563)
Covered-emplovee payrolt § 6048420 §  5789.093 S 5.367.300 §  35.639.915

Contributions as a percentage of
covered-employee payroll 30.70% 3-L40% 30.48% 26.97%

Notes to Required Supplementary Information

The information presented was determined as pant of the actuarial valuations as of the beginning of the prior fiscal vear,
Additional information as of the latest actuarial valuation presented is as follows: the actuarial cost method was entry-age
normal; the amortization methed was level percent of pay. closed: and the amortization period was 23 years: the asset
valuation method was five-year smoothing of asset gains and losses: and the significant actuarial assumptions were an
investment rate of return at 7.00%6 annually: inflation at 2.50% annually: projected salary increases of 5.50% compounded
annually: and postretirement benefit increases of 3.00% for Tier | employees and 1.25% for Tier 2 employees,
respectively. compounded annually.

Ultimately. this schedule should present information for the last ten years. However, until ten years of information can be
compiled. information will be presented for as many years as is available,

(See independent auditor's report.)



VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS

SCHEDULL OF EMPLOYLR CONTRIBUTIONS
FIREFIGHTERS' PENSION FUND

Last Four Fiscal Years

FISCAL YEAR ENDED APRIL 30, 2018 2017 2016 2015

Actuarially determined contribution S 322222 % 308.304 % 281,582 § 294,170

Contributions in relation to the actuarially
determined contribution 358.453 356.759 351,767 320,115

CONTRIBUTION BEFICIENCY (Excess) ) (36.231) § (48.435) % (70.185) § {25.943)

Covered-emplovee payroll b3 1.879.145 8§ 1.692.697 5 1.619.587 % 1.559.039

Contributions as a percentage of
covercd-employee payroll 19.08% 21.08% 21.72% 20.53%

Notes to Required Supplementary Information

The information presented was determined as part of the actuarial valuations as of the beginning of the prior fiscal year.
Additional information as of the latest actvarial valuation presented is as follows: the actuarial cost method was entry-age
normal: the amortization method was level percent of pay, closed: and the amortization period was 23 vears: the asset
valuation method was five-year smoothing of asset gains and fosses: and the significant actuarial assumptions were an
investment rate of return at 7.00% annwally: inflation at 2,.30% annually: projected salary increases of 5.50% compounded
annually; and postretirement benefit increases of 3.00% for Tier | employees and 1.25% for Tier 2 employees.
respeciively. compounded annually.

Ultimately, this schedule should present information for the Jast ten years. However. until ten vears of information can be
compiled. information will be presented for as many vears as is available.

{See independent auditor's report.)



VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS

SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS
OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFIT PLAN

Last Six Fiscal Years

Annual
Required
Fiscal Employer Contribution Percentage
Year Contributions {ARC) Contributed
2013 $ 146,850 132273 111.02%
2014 156,196 132,273 118.09%
2015 156,196 154,076 101.38%
2016 235415 429,249 54.84%
2017 250,716 429,249 58.41%
2018 207,019 406,976 50.87%

For the fiscal year ended April 30, 2016, there were changes in assumptions with respect to
mortality tables, health care trend rates, line of duty disability rates, spousal coverage election
rates, and health care coverage election rates.

(See independent auditor's report.)



VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN THL EMPLOYER'S
NET PENSION LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS
ILLINOIS MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT FUND

Last Three Fiscal Years

MEASUREMENT DATE DECEMBER 31, 2017 2016 2015
TOTAL PENSION LIABILITY
Service cost § 1.247485 § 1.237.003 $ 1.218.649
Interest 3.675.671 3.435.368 3.189.281
Diflcrences between expected and actual experience (763.363) (117.932) 655.543
Changes of assumptions (1.666.246) (140.990) 68.3%6
Benelit payments, including refunds of member contributions {1.654.025) (1.600.723) (1.447.542)
Net change in total pension liability 839.322 2.832.926 3.084.327
Total pension liability - beginning 49.212.214 46.379.288 42.694.961
TOTAL PENSION LIABILITY - ENDING S 50.051.336 $§ 49212214 §  46.379.288
PLAN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
Contributions - employer S 1.379.376 § 1.333.740 § 1.380.697
Contributions - member 519.303 500.950 503.966
Net investment income 6.838.024 2.578.886 185,894
Benefit payments, including refunds of member contributions (1.634.023) {1.600.723) (1.447.542)
Administrative expensc/other (896.592) 47.234 (445,117
Net change in plan fiduciary net position 6.186.086 2.860.087 177.898
Plan fiduciary net position - beginning 39.998.204 37.138.117 36.960.219
PLAN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION - ENDING S 46184290 & 39.998.204 §  37.138.117
EMPLOYER'S NET PENSION LIABILITY S 3867246 8 9214010 % 9.241.171
Plan fiduciary net position
as a percentage of the total pension liability 92.27% 8E.28% 80,07%
Covered-employee payroll $ 498216 S 1EI125.719 §  11.103.605

Employer’s net pension liability
as a percentage of covered-cmployee payroll 33.63% 82.82% 83.23%

Netes to Required Supplementary [nformation

There was & change in the actuarial assumptions in 2015 and 2016 for the discount rate. There was a change in actuarial
assumptions in 2017 for price inflation. salary increases, retirement age, and montality rates.

UHitimately. this schedule should present information for the last ten years. However, until ten years of information can be
compiled. information will be presented for as many vears as is available.

(See independent auditor's report.)



VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN THE EMPLOYER'S
NET PENSION LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS
POLICE PENSION FUND

Last Four Fiscal Years

MEASUREMENT DATE APRIL 30, 2018 2017 26 2015
TOTAL PENSION LIABILITY
Service cost $ 1432911 % 1411838 % 1,447,846 % 1,428,441
[nterest 4,134,786 3,941,538 3.859,408 3.275.007
Changes ol benelit terms - - - -
Difierences between expected and actual expericnee (1.726,012) (722.969) (3,056,233) 738,525
Changes of assumptions 2,389,068 89.374 823214 3,149,390
Benefit payments, including refunds of member contributions (1.995.563) (1.964.783) {1.763.114) (1.616.149)
Net change in total pension liability 4,235,190 2755018 1,309,124 6,975.214
Total pension liability - beginning 58.633.244 55.878.226 54.569.,105 47.593.891
TOTAL PENSION LIABILITY - ENDING 3 63868434 § 58633344 § 55878226 § 54.569.103
PLAN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
Contributions - employer 3 1.856992 § 1,991.448 § 1,696,960 % 1,526,555
Contributions - member 636153 399.070 352,258 559,263
Net investment income 3.481.196 3,929.399 (480,028) 2.361.031
Benetit payments, including refunds of member contributions (1.993.563) (1,964.783) (L765,114) {1.616,149)
Adminstrative expense {19.216) (18,587 {15.909}) {17.350)
Net change in plan fiduciary net position 3.929.562 4,536,347 {11.833) 2813350
Plan liduciary net position - beginning 38.917.900 34.381.353 34.393.186 31.579.836
PLAN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION - ENDING 5 JIR47462 5 3B917000 $§ 34381353 34393186
EMPLOYER'S NET PENSION LIABILITY $§ 20020972 § 15715344 & 21496873 %5 20.175919
Plan fiduciary net position
as a percentage of the total pension liability 68 15% 66 38% 61.33% 63 03%
Covered-employee payroll §  6.066051 § 6048420 & 33567300 % 5659915

Employer's net pension liability
as a percentage of covered-employee payroll 330.05% 32596% 386 13% 35647%

Notes to Required Supplementary Information

There was a change with respect 1o actuarial assumptions from the prior year to reflect revised expectations with respect to mortality rates lor
2015, 2016, 2017, and 2018.

Ultimately, this schedule should present information for the last ten years. However, until ten years of information can be compiled,
information will be presented for as many years as 1s available

(See independent auditor's report.)



VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS

SCHEDULE OF CHANGLS IN THE EMPLOYLR'S
NET PLNSION LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS

FIREFIGIHTERS' PENSION FLIND

Last Four Fiscal Years

MEASUREMENT DATE APRIL 30, 2018 207 2016 2015
TOTAL PENSION LIABILITY
Service cost $ 458,792 § 460,019 3 438355 § 455,750
Interest 669,990 599321 551,987 446,079
Changes of benefit 1eems - - . -
Differences between expected and actval experience 413,049 223440 (174.745) 31,952
Changes ol assumptions 260,285 14.316 67,409 276 448
Benefit payments, including refunds of member contributions (295.554} (277.073) {179.883) (91.33.hH
Nt change in total pension lability 1,506,562 1,020,023 703,123 [,118,895
Total pension Hability - beginning 9.260.268 8.240.245 7.537.122 6.418.227
TOTAL PENSION LIABILITY - ENDING £ 10.766830 § 9260268 S B240245 §  7.537.122
PLAN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
Contributions - employer s 358453 8 356,739 $ 351,767 § 320,115
Contributions - member 178,897 165.647 155.201 169,091
Net investment income 386,563 497,554 124,930 439,519
Benefit payments, including refunds of member contributions {293.554) (277.073) {179,883) (91.334)
Administriive expense (9.996) {1.013) {10.433) (10.826)
Net change in plan iduciary net position 618,365 735872 441,582 826,623
Plan fiduciary net position - beginning 8.573.800 7.837.928 7.396.346 6.569.721
PLAN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION - ENDING 5 0192165 5 8573800 § 7.837.928 S 7.396,316
EMPLOYER'S NET PENSION LIABILITY $ 1574665 S 686468 % 402317 § 1.10.776
Plan fiduciary net position
as a pereentage of the total pension liability 8538% 92.59%% 95 12% 98.13%
Covered-cmployee payroll S LETO45 & 1678478 S 1619587 § 1559039
Employer's net pension liabitity
as a pereentage of covered-employee payroll 83.80% 40.90% 24 84% 9.03%

Noles to Required Supplementary Information

There was a change with respect 1o actuarial assumptions from the prior year 1o reflect revised expectations with respect to mortality rates

for 2015,2016, 2017, and 2018.

Ultimately, this schedule should present information for the last ten years, However, until ten years of information can be compiled,

infermation will be presenied lor as many years as is available.

(See independent auditor's report.)



VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS

SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENT RETURNS
POLICE PENSION FUND

Last Four Fiscal Years

FISCAL YEAR ENDED APRIL 30, 2018 2017 2016 2015

Annual money-weighted rate of return,
net of investment expense 8.95% 11.42% (1.40%) 7.52%

Notes to Required Supplementary Information

Ultimately, this schedule should present information for the last ten years, However, until ten years of
information can be compiled, information will be presented for as many years as is available.

(See independent auditor’s report.)
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VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS

SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENT RETURNS
FIREFIGHTERS' PENSION FUND

[.ast Four Fiscal Years

FISCAL YEAR ENDED APRIL 30, 2018 2017 2016 2015

Annual money-weighted rate of return,
net of investment expense 4.34% 6.02% 1.64% 6.33%

Notes to Required Supplementary Information

Ultimately, this schedule should present information for the last ten years. However, until ten years of information
can be compiled, information will be presented for as many years as is available,

(See independent auditor's report.)



VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

April 30,2018

BUDGETS

Annual budgets are adopted for all governmental (except for the 2002A Construction Fund and
Upper Gateway North TIF Fund). proprietary, and pension trust funds. Budgets are adopted on a
basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles, except that proprietary funds are
budgeted on a flow of current financial resources measurement focus. All annual appropriations
lapse at fiscal year end.

The Finance Director submits a proposed operating budget to the governing body for review
commencing the following May 1. The goveming body holds public hearings and may add to,
subtract from, or change appropriations, but may not change the form of the budget. The budget is
legally enacted through passage of an ordinance. The budget may be amended by the governing
body.

Expenditures may not legally exceed budgeted appropriations at the fund level. There were no
budget amendments during the year.

During the fiscal year, expenditures exceeded budget for the following funds:

Final Budget Actual

Marquette Center TIF District Fund $ 816,000 $ 971,834
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VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND

For the Year Ended Apnl 30, 2018

REVENUES
Property taxes

Corporate levy
Fire pratection levy
Police profection levy
Ambulance levy
Audit levy
Social sccurity Tevy
Street levy
Refuse disposal levy
Tort immunity levy
Police pension levy
Fire penston levy

Total property taxes

Other taxes

Litility

Electric

Gas

Telephone

Water
Automobile
Home rule sales
Home rule gas
Real estate transfer
Food and beverage
Gaming tax

Total other taxes

Fines
Court supervision fines - vehicle
Coun
Admintstrative tickets
Parking tickels
Dog/ammal
Forfeiwre of Cash P.D
False alarm
Vehicle impound lees
pul
Fire alarm monitoring

Total fines

Licenses and permits
Business licenses
Liquor licenses
Business perimits
Solwitor permits
Building permils
Garage sale permits
Inspection permits
Amimal tags
Overweight/overwidth permit

Total licenses and permits

(This schedule is continued on the following pages.)

Original and

Varignce

Final Budget Actual Over (Under)
§ 3055300 $ 3047699 § {7.601)
310,600 310,226 (374)
570,000 569,238 (762)
689,300 687,630 (1.670)
50,000 50,093 93
1.300,000 1,297 862 (2,138)
600,000 614,693 14,693
610,000 609,084 {%l6)
1,400,000 1,398,048 (1,952)
1,856,900 1,853,438 (3,462)
358.500 357,179 (721)
10,800.600 10.795.790 {4.8310)
1,200,000 3.362,320 162,520
1,050,000 1,155,432 105,432
920,000 872932 {47,068)
290,000 285,964 (4,036)
6,300 5,957 {343)
6,320,000 7,949,079 1,629.079
800,000 808,887 8,887
400,500 585352 184,852
1.423,000 1,581,899 156,899
175,000 239,152 64.152
14.586.800 16,847,194 2,260,394
35,000 - (35,000)
235,000 232,530 (2,470)
5,000 3,693 (1,303)
50,000 41,033 (8,965)
6,000 7,095 1,095
23,400 52,671 29,271
19,500 23,300 3,800
50,000 102,931 12,931
9,000 9,000 -
160,800 150,115 {10.685)
633.700 622.372 (11.328)
133,000 178,404 23404
100,000 109,350 9,550
110,060 117,373 1.375
3,500 14,000 10,500
1,850,000 1,717,643 (132.357)
2,000 1,860 (140)
400,000 560,554 160,554
700 2436 1,736
- 31,100 31,1600
2,621,200 2,732,922 111,722
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VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES - BUDGLT AND ACTUAL (Contined )
GENLRAL FUND

For the Year Ended April 30, 2018

Oviginal and Variance
Finul Budget Actual Over (Under)
REVENUES (Continued)
Charges for services
Vacancy inspection £ 5000 % 3330 3 (1,650)
Cable TV franchise 340,000 355,187 15,187
Ambulance X000 597,010 77.010
Rental income B (1,322 (1.322)
NSF ¢heck charges 100 210 110
Administration 1,500 1,396 (104)
Zoning board maps/variance 40,000 183,830 143,830
Zoning code material 2,500 2400 (100)
Rental inspection 85,000 84,620 (380)
Construction reinspection 40,000 51,960 11,960
Sprint rental 74,000 71.019 3019
Engincering 600,000 #30.507 230,507
Firc prevention service 50,000 61,532 11,532
Fire academy 1,003,700 1,066,633 62915
Fire recoveny fees 40,000 71,109 31,109
Sex offender registration act (e 1.000 1,015 13
Violent offender against vouth registration fee 100 43 (53)
Administrative heaning fees - 3682 3.682
Rubbish collection 3,320,000 3,248,060 (71.940)
Portable sign/pennant permit 2,000 1.150 (R50)
Fingerprint 1,000 1,902 902
Police special detail 75,000 60,730 (14,2600
Police accident report 7.000 7912 912
Fire reports 800 1.085 285
Total charges for services 6,408,700 6.911.034 302,334
Intergovemmental
State income tax 4,007,700 3,598,257 {409,443)
Sales 5,750,000 6,633,606 883,606
Use 1,003,900 1 049,326 43,426
Replacement tax 110,000 146,802 36,802
Auto theft 6,000 7.800 1,800
D AR E. program revenue 7,500 7.500 -
Will County grants 46,500 49,452 2,952
Federal granis 4,802,000 834,052 (3.967.948)
SWARM Safety Grant 77,400 77,361 (39)
Lockport fire agreement 1,236,800 1,382,290 143 490
Marquette TIF distnibution 113,000 101,701 (1.299)
Total intergovernmental 17,150,800 13.888,147 {3,262,653)
Investment income 10,000 117.712 107,712
Other
VOR TV sale of DVD's - 80 80
Metra parking lot revenue - 7.876 7.876
General donations - 287778 287,778
Tratning reimburscrent 10,000 8712 (1,288)
Community development reimbursement 15,000 30,549 15,549
Workers' compensiation reimburseiment 150,000 19,011 {100,989)
Liaison oflicer reimbursement 38,000 43,313 5313
Other reimbursements 30,000 194 408 144,408
Insurance reimbursements 20,000 59,178 39,178
Reimbursement - 1,500 1,500
Reimbursement of legal [bes 25000 23908 (1.097)
Health insurance contributions 105,000 - (105.000)
Hazardous material reimbursements 30,000 10,445 {19.555)
Commemorative velerans brick and plaque 300 250 {50

(This schedule is continued on the following page.)
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VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS

SCHEDULL OF REVENUES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL {Continucd)
GENERAL FUND

For the Year Ended April 30, 2018

Original and Variance
Finnl Budget Actunl Over (Under)
REVENUES (Continued)
Other (Continued)
Cobra retiree contribution 5 37,000 % 58,907 % 21,907
Developer's break fast 5,000 - {5,000
Village building rent - 1,300 1,300
Miscellancous income 8,500 2184 15,684
Advertising 1,100 1,163 63
Street improvement reimbursement - 6,689 6,689
Flexible spending 65,000 - (63,000)
Sales tax replacement lees 7.000 7.000 -
Property tax rebale - 3 )
Total other 566,900 816,256 249,356
TOTAL REVENUES § 32778700 § 352731427 § (47.273)
e ——

(See independent auditor's report.)



VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS

SCHEDULL OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND

lor the Year Ended April 30, 2018

Original and Variunee
Finul Budget Actual Over (Under)
GENERAL GOVERNMENT
Mayor
Sularies S 148,100 § 147416 § (684)
Contractual services 20.000 7.385 (12.615)
Commoditics 8.100 4.003 (4.097)
Total mayor 176.200 158.804 (17.396)
General village board
Salaries 260,560 255,934 {4.566)
Contraclual services 4.500 6,358 1.838
Commaoditics 91.500 93.801 2.301
Total general village board 356.500 356.093 {407)
Village administration
Salaries 523.900 516.676 (7.224)
Contractual services 44,000 784.988 40.988
Commodities 14.000 11,927 {2.073)
Total village administration 1.281.900 1.313.591 31691
Personnel
Salaries 363.500 270,824 {92.676)
Contraciual services 2.073.000 1.997.611 {75.389)
Commedities 3.500 1.487 (2.013)
Other 147.400 104.955 {42.445)
Total personnel 2.587.400 2.374.877 (212.523)
Community media production
Salaries 122,600 120.628 {1.972)
Contractual 2.500 771 {1.729)
Commoditics 9.000 3,442 (5.358)
Total community media production 134,100 124.841 (9.259)
Operations
Salaries 106.500 109,155 2.655
Conlractual services 55.000 56.072 1.072
Commoditics 9.800 8.125 (1.675)
Other 2.332.900 1.850.582 (482.318)
Total operations 2.504.200 2.023.934 (480.266)
Commissions and commitiees
Salaries 18.200 13.842 (4.358)
Conltractual 200 - {200)
Commoditics 12.500 7.553 (4947
Total commissions and commiltlees 30.900 21,395 (9.505)

(This schedule is continued on the following pages.)
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VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS

SCHEDULTE OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (Continued)
GENERAL FUND

For the Year Ended April 30, 2018

Original and Variance
Final Budget Actual Over (Under)
GENERAL GOVERNMENT (Continued)
Village Clerk
Salaries $ 119800 $ 120,582 S 782
Contraclual services 22.000 18.614 (3.386)
Commodities 400 75 (325)
Total village clerk 1:42.200 139.271 (2.929)
Finance department
Administration
Salaries 996,900 963.117 {33.783)
Contractual services 4.000 3.860 (140)
Commodities 188.500 231.855 43.355
Other expenditures 1.000 101.647 100.647
Total administration 1.190.400 1.300.479 110,079
General services
Contractual services 198.000 173.002 (24.998)
Commaoditics 11.000 12,239 1.239
Other expenditures 2,000 - (2.000)
Total general services 211.000 185.241 {23,759)
Information services
Saliries 350.200 344,309 (6.891)
Contractual services 841400 820.293 (21.107)
Commodities 21.500 21.667 167
Total information services 1.214.100 1.186.269 (27.831)
Total finance department 2.615.500 2.671.989 56.489
Community services and development
Administration
Salaries 648.700 627.067 (21.633)
Contractual services 29.500 32,339 2.839
Commoditics 19.300 16,032 (3.468)
Total administration 697.700 675,438 (22.262)
Inspectional seevices
Salaries 488.900 457,311 (31.589)
Contractual services 85.600 79.688 (5.912)
Commodities 13.500 9418 (4.082)
Total inspectional services 588.000 546,417 {41.583)
Total community services and development 1.285.700 1.221.855 {63.845)
Total general government 11.114.600 10.406.650 (707.950)

(This schedule is continued on the following pages.)
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VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (Continued)
GENERAL FUND

For the Year Ended April 30, 2018

Original and Variance
Finu! Bodget Actual Over (Under)
PUBLIC SAFETY
Police and fire commission
Salaries S 20,100 § 1,170 § (8.930)
Contractual services 50.000 38.614 ([1.326)
Commuodities 2.000 662 (1.338)
Tolal palice and fire commission 72.100 50.506 {21.59h)
Police department
Administration
Salaries 3.211.400 3.179.559 (31.841)
Contractual services 9,000 7.507 (1.493)
Commoditics 3.000 2437 {343)
Total administration 3.223.400 3.189.523 (33.877)
Operations
Salaries 8.813.-400 8.289.635 (523.765)
Contractual services 416.500 597.789 181.289
Commaodities 178.000 185.401 7401
Other expenditures 9.500 8.508 (992)
Total operations 9.417.400 0.081.333 {336.067)
Support services
Salaries 995.200 953.477 (41.723)
Conlraciual services 12.000 9.339 (2.661)
Commoditics 5.000 4.630 (370)
Total support services 1.012.200 967.446 (44.754)
Total police department 13.653.000 13.238.302 (414.698)
Fire and ambulance department
Administration
Salarics 4.739.900 4.422.273 (317.627)
Contractual services 360,000 415.342 55.342
Commoditics 206.000 211548 5.548
Total administration 3.305.900 5.049.163 {256.737)
Fire scademy
Administration
Salaries 707100 636,493 (70.605)
Coniractual services 83.500 31.254 (52.246)
Commoditics | RB.000 224,400 36.400
Total fire academy 978.600 892,149 (86.431)
Total fire and ambulance department 6.284.500 5.941.312 {343.188)

(This schedule is continued on the following pages.)
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VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLLE, ILLINOIS

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (Continued)

GENERAL FUND

For the Year Ended April 30. 2018

PUBLIC SAFETY (Continued)
Romeoville Emergency Management Agency
Administration
Salaries
Contractuatl services
Commodities

Total administration

Operations
Contractual services
Commoditics

Total operations

Communications
Contractual services

Total Romeoville Emergency Management Agency
Total public safety

PUBLIC WORKS
Administration
Salaries

Buildings and grounds
Salaries
Contractual semvices
Commodities

Total buildings and grounds

Motor pool
Salarics
Conlractual services
Commaodities

Total motor pool
Streets and sanitation
Salaries
Contractual services

Commoditics

Total streets and sanitation

Original and Varisace
Finnl Budget Actual Over {Under)

15700 § 14205 § (1.495)
18.500 14.533 (3.967)
13.000 12,735 {265)
47,200 41.473 (5.727)
35.000 32,104 (2.896)
8.500 8.083 (417)
43.500 40,187 (3.313)
23.000 20.797 {2.203)
113.700 102,457 (11.243)
20.123.300 19.332.577 (790.723}
452,600 446,707 (5.893)
793.800 663.857 (131.943)
230.000 165,482 (64.518)
63.500 38.488 {25.012)
1.089.300 867.827 (221.473)

153.200 170,962 [7.762

143.000 143.025 25
321.500 291.159 {30.341)
617.700 603,146 {12.554)

1.238.900 1.281.634 42,734
3.945.000 3.821.908 (123.092)
256,000 191.836 (64.164)
5.439.900 5.295.378 (144.522)

(This schedule is continued on the following page.)



VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ELLINOIS

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (Continued)
GENERAL FUND

For the Year Ended April 30, 2018

Original nnd Variance
Final Budget Actual Over (Under)
PUBLIC WORKS (Continucd)
Landscape and grounds
Salaries S 633,700 $ 531.881 % {101.819)
Contractual services 669.000 750.767 81.767
Commodilics 28,500 32,849 4.349
Total landscape and grounds 1.331.200 1.315.497 (15.703)
Taotal public works 8.930.700 8.530.555 (400.145)
ALLOCATIONS TO OTIER FUNDS
Allocations to water and sewer fund {3.246,000} {3.246.000) -
DEBT SERVICE
Principal 261,300 260.044 (1.236)
Interest and fiscal charges 25.300 26.242 942
Total debt service 286.6400 286,286 (314)
CAPITAL OUTLAY
General government 664,500 572512 (91,988)
Public safety 970,400 1.347.053 376.653
Public works 8.693.500 3.741.613 {4.953.887)
Total capital outlay i0.330.400 5061178 (4.669.222)
TOTAL EXPENDITURES §  47.539.600 § 40971246 8§ (6.568.354)

(See independent auditor's report.)



VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
DEBT SERVICE FUND

For the Year Ended April 30, 2018

REVENUES
Property taxes
Investment income
Total revenues
EXPENDITURES
Debt service
Principal
Interest and fiscal charges

Total expenditures

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in

Total other financing sources (uses)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE
FUND BALANCE, MAY |

FUND BALANCE, APRIL 30

(See independent auditor's report.)

Original and Variance
Final Budget Actual Over (Under)
£ 831,300 § 820949 § (1,351)

- 387 387
831.300 830,336 (964)
5.009,100 5,009,006 (94)
1,024,400 1,022,099 (2.30)
6,033,500 6,031,105 (2,395)

(5,202,200) {5,200.769) 1,431
5,202,200 5,200,769 {1,431)
5.202.200 5.200.769 (1,431)

$ - - $ -
$ R




VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FACILITY CONSTRUCTION FUND

For the Year Ended April 30, 2018

Original and Variance
Final Budget Actual Over (Under)
REVENUES
Investment income 5 - $ 15,591 § 15,591
Total revenues - 15,591 15,591
EXPENDITURES
Capital outlay 1.600,000 1,376,206 (223,794)
Total expenditures 1,600,000 1,376,206 (223,794)
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES {1,600,000) {1,360.613) 239,385
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in - 2,000,000 2,000,000
Total other financing sources (uses) - 2.000.000 2,000,000
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE §  (1.600.,000) 639,385 § 2,239,385
FUND BALANCE, MAY 1 1.775.814
Prior Period Adjusiment (38.562)
FUND BALANCE, MAY |, RESTATED 1,737,252
FUND BALANCE, APRIL 30 $ 2,376,637

(See independent auditor's report.)



VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
DOWNTOWN TIF DISTRICT FUND

For the Year Ended April 30, 2018

Original and Variance
Final Budget Actual Over (Under)
REVENUES
Property taxes b 218,000 3 259321 % 41,321
Investment income 100 - (100)
Charges for services - 156,400 156,400
Other 129,800 46,373 (83.427)
Total revenues 347,900 462,094 114,194
EXPENDITURES
General government
Contractual services 1,153,000 196.763 {956,237)
Debt Service
Principal 1,180,000 1,180,000 -
Interest and fiscal charges 411,300 411,240 (60)
Capital outlay 945,000 460,711 (484,289)
Total expenditures 3,689,300 2,248,714 (1.440,586)
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES (3.341.400) (1,786,620} 1.554.780
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 2,035,000 2,025,276 (9,724)
Total other financing sources (uses) 2,035,000 2,025.276 (9,724)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE $ (1,306.400) 238,656 §  1,545.056
FUND BALANCE, MAY | 83,973
FUND BALANCE, APRIL 30 5 322,629

{See independent auditor's report.)



NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS



VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

April 30,2018

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables (net, where applicable,
of allowances for uncollectibles)

Other
Due from other governments

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS
OF RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCES

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable

Total liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
None

Total deferred inflows of resources
Total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources

FUND BALANCES
Restricted
Maintenance of roadways
Economic development
Capital projects
Unrestricted
Assigned
Capital projects
Unassigned

Total fund balances

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS
OF RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCES

Special Capital
Revenue Projcets Total
3 1,528,906 3 3,569,402 3 5,098,308
- 70,161 70,161
90,338 116,844 207,682
5 1,619,744 8§ 3,756,407 § 3,376,151
5 62,034 § 388,824 § 450,858
62,034 388,824 450,858
62,034 388,824 450,858
1,557,710 - 1,557,710
- 2,041,427 2,041,427
- 110,911 110,911
- i.215,262 1,215,262
- {17 {17
1,557,710 3.367.583 4,925,293
3 1,619,744 § 3.756407 % 5,376,151

(See independent auditor's report.)



VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES. EXPENDITURES,

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAIJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

For the Year Ended April 30,2018

Special Capital
Revenue Projects Total
REVENUES
Taxes
Property $ - $  3.364,745 3,364,745
Other - 808,888 808,888
Intergovernmental 1,090.187 466 1,090,653
Investment income 22175 12,181 34,356
Other 6,215 1,245,592 1,251,807
Total revenues 1.118.577 5,431,872 6.550.449
EXPENDITURES
General government - 4,356,659 4,356,659
Public works 920,004 - 920,004
Debt service
Capital outlay - 1,732,665 1,732,665
Total expenditures 920.004 6,089,324 7,009,328
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES 198.573 (657,452) (458.879)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Issuance of notes payable - 3,384,000 3,384,000
Transfers (out) - (1,900,000) (1.900,000)
Total other financing sources (uses) - 1,484,000 1,484,000
NET CHANGE IN FUND BAILLANCES 198,573 826,548 1,025,121
FUND BALANCES, MAY 1 1,359,137 2.541.035 3,900,172
FUND BALANCES, APRIL 30 $ 1,557,710 § 3,367,583 §  4,925.293

(See independent auditor's report.)
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VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
MOTOR FUEL TAX FUND

For the Year Ended April 30, 2018

Original and Variance
Final Budget Actual Over (Under)
REVENUES
Intergovernmental $ 1,100,300 $ 1,090,187 §% (10,113)
Investment income 3,000 22,175 19,175
Other - 6,215 6.215
Total revenues 1,103.300 1,118,577 15,277
EXPENDITURES
Public works
Contractual 665,000 610,639 (54,361)
Commodities 500,000 309,365 (190,635)
Total expenditures 1,165,000 920,004 (244,996)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE $ (61,700) 198,573 % 260,273
FUND BALANCE, MAY | 1,359,137
FUND BALANCE, APRIL 30 $ 1,557,710

(See independent auditor's report.)



VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

April 30, 2018
Local Marquette
Road Gas Center
Improvements Tax TIF District
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents b 180,911 § 26,095 $ 1,769,283
Receivables
Other - 70.161 -
Due from other governments - 116,844 -
TOTAL ASSETS $ 180911 % 213,100 § 1,769,283
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 5 70,000 $ 213,117 § -
Total liabilities 70,000 213,117 -
FUND BALANCES
Restricted
Economic development - - 1,769,283
Capital projects 110,911 - -
Unrestricted
Assigned
Capital projects - - -
Unassigned - {7 -
Total fund balances (deficit) 110,911 (17) 1,769,283
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
FUND BALANCES $ 180911 § 213,100 % 1,769,283
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Romeo

2004 2002A Road Upper Gateway
Construction Construction TIF District North TIF Total
£ 1,319,999 § 970 % 272,144 % - $ 3,569,402
- - - - 70.161
- - - - 116,844
F 1.31999% §% 970 § 272,144 % - § 3,756,407
$ 105,707 3 - 3 - hY - $ 388,824
105,707 - - - 388.824
- - 272,144 - 2,041.427
- - - - 110,911
1,214,292 970 5 5 1,215,262
- - 5 (7
1,214,292 970 272,144 S 3.367.583
$ 1,319999 § 970 $ 272144 § - $ 3.756,407

(See independent auditor's report.)



VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAIJOR CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

For the Year Ended April 30, 2018

REVENUES
Property taxes
Other taxes
Intergovernmental
Investment income
Other

Total revenues
EXPENDITURES
General government
Capital outlay

Total expenditures

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Issuance of Notes Payable
Transfers (out)
Total other financing sources (uses)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES
FUND BALANCES, MAY 1

FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT), APRIL 30

Local Marquette
Road Gas Center
Improvements Tax TIF District
5 - b - $ 3,330,397
- 8038.888 -
- 466 -
654 - 8,725
- 490,773
654 1,300.127 3.339,122
- 5 971,834
39.600 1,537,358 -
89,600 1,537,358 971,834
(88.946) (237.231) 2,367,288
- 5 (1.900,000)
- - (1,900.000)
(88,946) {237.,231) 467,288
199,857 237,214 1,301,995
5 110911 § (17) § 1,769,283
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Romeo

2004 2002A Road Upper Gateway
Construction Construction TIF District North TIF Total
$ - 5 - $ 34348 § = S 3,364,745
- - - - 308,888
- - - - 466
102 11 2,689 - 12,181
754,819 - - - 1,245,592
754,921 11 37.037 - 5.431,872
- - 825 3.384,000 4,356,659
105,707 - - - 1,732,665
105,707 - 825 3.384,000 6.089.324
649,214 Il 36,212 (3.384.000) (657.452)
- - - 3,384,000 3,384,000
- - - - (1,900,000)
- - - 3.384,000 1,484,000
649,214 11 36,212 - 826,548
565,078 959 235,932 - 2,541,035
5 1,214,292 § 970 § 272144 3 - S 3,367,583

(See independent auditor's report.)



VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
ROAD IMPROVEMENTS FUND

For the Year Ended April 30,2018

Original and Variance
Final Budget Actual Over (Under)
REVENUES
Investment income 3 - $ 654 $ 654
Total revenues - 634 6354
EXPENDITURES
Capital outlay 150,000 89,600 (60.400)
Total expenditures 150,000 89.600 (60.400)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 3 {150,000) (88,946) § 61,054
FUND BALANCE, MAY | 199,857
FUND BALANCE, APRIL 30 3 110,911

(See independent auditor's report.)



VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES [N FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
LOCAL GAS TAX FUND

For the Year Ended April 30, 2018

REVENUES
Home rule gas tax
Intergovernmental
Other

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Capital outlay

Total expenditures
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE
FUND BALANCE, MAY |

FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT), APRIL 30

(See independent auditor's report.)

Original and Variance
Final Budget Actual Over (Under)
¥ 800,000 $ 808,888 $ 8,888
- 466 466
622,000 490,773 (131,227)
1.422.000 1.300,127 (121.873)
1,639,000 1.537.358 (101.642)
1.639,000 1,537,358 (101,642)
$ (217,000) (237,231) § (20,231)
237.214
3 (17



VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
MARQUETTE CENTER TIF DISTRICT FUND

For the Year Ended April 30, 2018

REVENUES
Property taxes
Investment income

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES

General government
Contractual

Total expenditures

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers (out)

Total other financing sources (uses)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE
FUND BALANCE, MAY |

FUND BALANCE, APRIL 30

(See independent auditor's report.)

Original and Variance
Final Budget Actual Over (Under)
2,715.000 3,330,397 §% 615,397
1,000 8,725 7,725
2,716.000 3,339,122 623.122
816,000 0971.834 155,834
816,000 971,834 155,834
1,900,000 2,367,288 467,288
{1,900,000) (1,900,000) -
(1,900.000) {1.900,000) -
- 467,288 3 467,288
1,301,995
1,769,283



VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
2004 CONSTRUCTION FUND

For the Year Ended April 30, 2018

Original and Variance
Final Budget Actual Over (Under)
REVENUES
Investment income 5 - $ 02 % 102
Developer contributions - 754.819 754.819
Total revenues - 754,921 754,921
EXPENDITURES
Capital outlay 200,000 105,707 (94,293)
Total expenditures 200,000 105.707 (94,293)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE $ (200,000) 649,214 § 849,214
FUND BALANCE. MAY | 565,078
FUND BALANCE, APRIL 30 $ 1,214,292

(See independent auditor's report.)



VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
ROMEO ROAD TIF DISTRICT FUND

For the Year Ended April 30, 2018

Original and Variance
Final Budget Actual Over (Under)
REVENUES
Property taxes $ 33,000 $ 34348 § 1,348
Investment income - 2,689 2,689
Total revenues 33,000 37.037 4,037
EXPENDITURES
General government
Contractual 33,000 825 {32.173)
Total expenditures 33,000 825 (32,173)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE $ - 36,212 % 36,212
FUND BALANCE, MAY 1 235,932
FUND BALANCE, APRIL 30 3 272,144

(See independent auditor's report.)



MAJOR ENTERPRISE FUND



VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS
SCHEDULL OF REVENUES. EXPLNSES,
AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION - BUDGLT AND ACTUAL
WATER AND SEWER FUND

For the Year Ended April 30, 2018

Original and

Final Budget Actual
DPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services
Waier sales $ 7755000 §  B.139.535
Sewer sales 9.203.000 $4.393.030
Fines and fees
Late charges 375.000 373.823
Other lees - 4,273
Tap on fees 600.000 610,560
Reconnection fees 40.000 38.400
NSF charges 4.000 4,793
Afier hours meter replacement appointment - 400
Reimbursements 70,000 80.673
Miscelluneous - (214)
Total operating revenues 18.049.000 18.645.295
OPERATING EXPENSES
Finance administration
Salarics 394.500 368.574
Contractual services 146.100 144,173
Commodities 47.000 44,152
Other 3.000 2,133
Total finance administration 590.600 359,032
Public works administration
Contractual services 401,000 804,744
Commodilies 13.500 5.269
Capital outlay 7.000 4,395
Total public works administration 421.500 814,908
Public works water distribution
Salaries 1.745.100 1.79£.5370
Contractual services [.216.500 1.324.462
Commodities 833.000 881.219
Capital outlay 1.419.000 1.229.865
Total public works water distribution 3.215.60{0 5.227.116
Public works sewage treatment
Salaries 1.120.200 1.103.269
Contractual services 1.246.500 1.334.617
Commodities 186.500 202,152
Capital outlay 355.000 39.650
Total public works sewage treatment 2.908.200 2.919.688

(This schedule is continued on the following page.)
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VEILLAGE OF ROMLEOVILLE, ILLINOIS
SCHEDULEL OF REVENULS. CXPENSES.
AND CHANGLES IN NET POSITION - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (Continued)
WATER AND SEWER FUND

[For the Year Ended April 30, 2018

Original and

Final Budpct Actual
OPERATING EXPENSES (Continued)
Public works sewage collection
Salarics s 728100 611,135
Contractuad services 329.000 364.556
Commodities 53.000 20.599
Capital outlay 2.460.000 1.417.579
Total public works sewage collection 3.570.100 2.413.869
Subtotal 12.706.000 11.934.113
Administration and other charges 3.246.000 3.246.000
Total operating expenses 15.952.000 15.180.113
OPERATING INCOME 2.097.000 3.465.182
NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Property 1ax rebate - (59.190)
Gain on the sale of fixed assels - 10.773
investment income 16,000 9.138
Interest, fiscal charges, and principal expense (4.113.000y (4.025,961)
Total non-operating revenues (expenses) (4.097.000) (4.065.2410)
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE TRANSFERS AND CONTRIBUTIONS (2.000.000) (600.058)
Transfers (out) - {212.896)
CONTRIBUTIONS - 2354113
CHANGE IN NET POSITION - BUDGLETARY BASIS §  (2.000.000) 1341161
ADJUSTMENTS TO GAAP BASIS
Debt principal payments 3.563.434
Pension expense - IMRF (69.2635)
Capitalized asscts 2.373.459
Depreciation expense (3.907.478)
Total adjustments 10 GAAP basis 1.960.150
CHANGE IN NET POSITION - GAAP BASIS 3500311
NET POSITION. MAY 1 $7.533.591

NET POSITION, APRIL 30

(See independent auditor’s report.)



FIDUCIARY FUNDS



VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
PENSION TRUST FUNDS

April 30,2018
Police Firefighters'
Pension Pension Total
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 239716 - 239,716
Prepaids 901 - 901
Investments
U.S. Treasury and agency securities 13,736,294 4,735,536 18,471,830
Municipal bonds - 662,743 662,743
Money market mutval funds 355,105 89.600 444,705
Equity mutual funds 28,467,328 3,810,190 32,277,518
Accrued interest receivable 55,050 44,645 99,695
Total assets 42,854,394 0,342,714 52,197,108
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 6,932 150,549 157,481
Total liabilities 6.932 150,549 157,481
NET POSITION RESTRICTED
FOR PENSIONS 42,847,462 9,192,165 52,039,627

(See independent auditor's report.)




VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

PENSION TRUST FUNDS

For the Year Ended April 30, 2018

ADDITIONS
Contributions
Employer
Employee
Total contributions
Investment income
Net appreciation (depreciation)
in fair value of investments
Interest and dividends
Total investment income
Less investment expense
Net investment income
Total additions
DEDUCTIONS
Administration
Benefits and refunds
Benefits
Total deductions

NET INCREASE

NET POSITION RESTRICTED
FOR PENSIONS

May 1

April 30

Police Firefighters'
Pension Pension Total
3 1,856,992 § 358,453 § 2,215,445
636,153 178.897 815,050
2,493,145 537.350 3.030,495
1,213,481 275,070 1,488,551
2,613,409 148,352 2,761,761
3.826,890 423 422 4,250,312
(345,694) (36.857) (382,551)
3,481,196 386,565 3,867,761
5,974,341 923,915 6,898,236
49,216 9,996 59,212
1,995,563 295,554 2,291,117
2,044,779 305.550 2,350,329
3,929,562 618,365 4,547,927
38.917.900 8,573,800 47,491,700
$ 42847462 § 9.192.165 $ 52,039,627

(See independent auditor's report.)



VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES,
AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
POLICE PENSION FUND

For the Year Ended April 30, 2018

Original and
Final Budget Actual
ADDITIONS
Contributions
Employer $  1.856900 $ 1,856,992
Employee 630,000 636,153
Total contributions 2,486,900 2,493,145
[nvestment income
Net appreciation (depreciation)
in fair value of investments 1,300,000 1,213,481
Interest 600,000 2,613,409
Total investment income 1,900,000 3,826,890
Less investment expense (300,000) (345,694)
Net investment income 1,600,000 3.481,196
Total additions 4,086,900 5,974,341
DEDUCTIONS
Administration 23,000 49216
Benefits and refunds
Benefits 4,061,900 1,995,563
Total deductions 4,086,900 2,044,779
NET INCREASE $ - 3,929,562
NET POSITION RESTRICTED
FOR PENSIONS
May 1 38,917,900
April 30 $ 42,847.462

(See independent auditor's report.)



VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES,

AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FIREFIGHTERS' PENSION FUND

For the Year Ended April 30,2018

ADDITIONS
Contributions
Employer
Employee
Total contributions
Investment income
Net appreciation in
fair value of investments
Interest
Total investment income
Less investment expense
Net investment income
Total additions
DEDUCTIONS
Administration
Benefits and refunds
Benefits

Total deductions

NET INCREASE

NET POSITION RESTRICTED
FOR PENSIONS

May 1

April 30

(See independent auditor's report.)

Original and
Final Budget Actual
358,500 % 358,453
180,000 178.897
538,500 537.350
150,000 275,070
125,000 148,351
275,000 423,421
(35,000) (36.857)
240,000 386,564
778,500 923,914
17,000 9,996
761.500 295,554
778,500 305,550
- 618,364
8,573,800
$ 9,192,164




SUPPLEMENTAL DATA



VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS
SCHEDRULL OF DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS

For the Year Ended April 30, 2018

Year
Ending Principal Interest ‘Fotal
General Obligation Bonds
Dated June 30, 2008 2019 $ 1.150.000 § 104.563 § 1.234,563
Series 2008A 2020 1,000,000 58.563 1.058.563
Interest due on June 30 2021 430,000 18.563 468.563
and December 30 at rates
ranging from 3.230% to 4,1235% S 2,600,000 § 181.689 § 2.781.089
General Obligation
(Capital Appreciation) Bonds
Dated June 30. 2008 2022 i) 2779423 § 2.720.575 8§ 5.500.000
Series 20088 2023 2.846.160 3.153.840 6.000.000
interest due on December 30 and 2024 2.675.040 3.324.960 6,000,000
at rates ranging from 5,12% 2025 2.506.740 3.493.260 6,000,000
o 5.85% 2026 2.545.205 3.954,795 6.500.000
2027 2.390.830 4,109,170 6.500,000
2028 2,243,605 4.256.393 6,500,000
2029 2103400 4.396.600 6.500,000
2030 1.974.180 4.525.820 6.500.000
2031 1.851.460 4,648,540 6.500.000
2032 1.739.010 4.760.990 6.300.000
2033 1.640,210 4.859.790 6.500.000
2034 1.546,740 4,953.260 6.500.000
2035 1.458.275 5.041.725 6.500.000
2036 1.374.620 5.125.380 6.500,000
2037 1.293.515 5.204.485 6.500,000
2038 1,220,765 5.279.235 6.500.000
2039 1.136.460 5,363,540 6.500.000
2040 [.008.244 5.191.756 6,200,000
36.335.884 84.364.110 120.700.000
Acereted Interest 24.616.678 (24.616.678) -
$ 00,952,562 § 59.747.438 S 120.700.000
General Obligation
Refunding Bonds
Dated November 3, 2008 2019 $ [.245.000 § 49.800 S 1.294.800
Refunding Series 2008C ;
[nterest due on June 30 and $ 1.245.000 § 49.8300 § 1.294.800
December 30 at rates of 3.50%
10 4.00%
General Obligation Bonds
Dated July 30, 2013 2019 $ 1.200.000 § 290840 S 1.490.840
Series 2013A 2020 1.225.000 254,840 1.479.840
Interest due on June 30 2021 1.255.000 215.028 1.470.028
and December 30 at rates 2022 1.310.000 [74.240 1.484.240
ranging from 2.50% to 4.10% 2023 1.345.600 128.390 1.473.390
2024 1.380.000 78.625 1.458.625
2025 603.000 24.8035 629.805
3 8.320,000 % 1.166.768 S 9.4806.768

(This schedule is continued on the following pages.)
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VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS
SCHEDULE OF DEBRT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS (Continued)

For the Year Ended April 30, 2018

Year
Lnding Principal Interest Total
General Obligation Bonds
Dated July 30, 2013 2019 h) - by 87.000 S 87.000
Series 20138 2020 - 87.000 87,000
Interest due on June 30 2021 - 87.000 £7.000
and December 30 at rates 2022 - 87.000 87.000
of 4% 2023 - 87.000 87.000
2024 - 87.600 87.000
2025 725.000 87.000 812.000
2026 1.450.000 38,0600 1.508.000
S 2.175.000 S 667.000 5 2.842.000
General Obligation Refunding Bonds
Dated November 3, 2014 2019 3 [.345.000 % 125300 § 1.470.300
Series 2014 2020 370,000 84,950 454950
Interest due on June 30 2021 380.000 73.850 453.850
and December 30 at rates 2022 395.000 62.450 437,450
ranging from 3% to 4% 2023 403,000 50.600 455.600
2024 420,000 34,400 454.400
2025 440.000 17.600 457.600
g 3,755,000 § 449.150 § 4.204.150
General Obligation Refunding Bonds
Dated May 3, 2016 2019 3 1.980.000 $ 510250 8 2.490.230
Series 2016 2020 3.690.000 411.250 4.101.250
Interest due on June 30 2021 4.535.000 226.750 4.761.750
und December 30 at a rate of 3%
$  £0.205.000 § 1.148.250 §  11.353.250
General Obligntion Refunding Bonds
Dated September 12, 2016 2019 $ 360,000 S 101,988 § 461,988
Series 2016A 2020 370,000 94,788 461,788
Interest due on June 30 2021 375.000 87.388 462.388
and December 30 at a rates 2022 385.000 79.888 464,888
ranging from 2.00% to 2.25% 2023 400.000 72,188 472,188
2024 405.000 64,188 469.188
2023 420.000 36,088 476.088
2026 435.000 47.688 482.688
2027 445,000 38.988 483.988
2028 465.000 30.088 495,088
2029 470.000 20.788 490,788
2030 480.000 10.800 490.800

) 5.010.000 S 704.868 S 1.854.052

(This schedule is continued on the following pages.)
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VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS
SCHEDULE OF DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS (Continued)

For the Year Ended April 30. 2018

Year
Ending Principal Interest Totul
Note Payable
Dated August 1. 2008 2019 s 1.335.205 § 363945 S 1.701.150
ineis Envirenmental Protection 2020 1.368.793 332336 1.701.149
Agency Loan 2021 [.403.227 297,923 [.701.130
Interest due on June | and 2022 1.438.527 262.623 1.701.150
December 1 at a rate of 2.50% 2023 1.474.715 226.435 1.701.13¢
2024 1.581.813 189.337 1.701.130
2025 1.549.843 151.305 1.701.150
2026 1.588.833 112,317 1.701.150
2027 1.628.802 72,348 1.701.150
2028 1,669,777 31.573 1.701.150
$ 14969537 S 2041962 S 17.011.499
Note Payable
Dated March 5. 2015 019 g 75.000 S - s 75.000
Will County Note Payable 2020 75.000 - 75.000
Principal due on December 3§ 2021 75.000 - 75.000
at a rate of 0% 2022 1.319.790 - 1.319.790
5 1.544.790 8 - 8 [.544.790
Capitul Lease
Dated August 25, 2009 2019 g 22619 § 2983 S 25.602
2009 Fire Training Facility 2020 24.065 1.538 23.603
Principal and interest due on August 25
at rates of 6.39% $ 46,684 § 4.521 § 31.205
Capital Lease
Dated August 1. 2012 2019 § 439537 § 5549 8§ 49.506
2012 Pierce Armow XT Pumper 2020 45.015 4.492 49,507
Principal and interest due on August | 2021 46.098 3409 49,507
at rates of 2.41% 2022 47.208 2,299 49.507
2023 48.345 1.163 49.508
5 230623 § 16912 § 247.535
Capital Lease
Dated December 14. 2012 2019 3 35597 % 488 S 36.083
2012 Elgin Fagle Street Sweeper
Principal and interest due on December 14 1) 35597 % 488 S 36.085
at rates of 1.37%
Capital Lease
Dated January 27, 2014 2019 $ 2804 S - S 2.804
2014 Five (5) Treadmills
Principal and interest due on August 1 and $ 2804 8 - 5 2.804

February | at rates of 0%

(This schedule is continued on the following page.)
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SCHEDULL OF DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS (Continued)

VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOLS

For the Year Ended April 30. 2018

Cuapital Lease
Dated September 4. 2015
2014 Smeal 105" Fire Truck
Principal and interest due on July 1
at a rate of 2.75%

Capital Lease
Dated July 21, 2016
Fitness Equipment
Principal and imerest due on October
at a rale 01'5.33%

Year
Ending Principal Interest Total

2019 51.525 12,484 64,009
2020 52,941 11,067 64.008
2021 54.396 9.612 64.008
2022 55.892 8.116 64,008
2023 57.428 6.580 64.008
2024 59.007 5.001 64.008
2023 60.629 3.379 64,008
2026 62.296 1.713 64.009
454014 57.932 512.060
2019 6,212 12,484 18.696
2020 6.515 11.067 17.582
22 2021 6.832 9.612 16,444
19.559 33.163 52,722

(See independent auditor's report.)
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STATISTICAL SECTION

This part of the Village of Romeoville, Illinois™ comprehensive annual financial report presents
detailed information as a context for understanding what the information in the financial statements,
note disclosures. and required supplementary information says about the Village's overall financial
health.

Contents Page(s)

Financial Trends
These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the
Village’s financial performance and well-being have changed over time. 121-130

Revenue Capacity
These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the Village's
property tax. 131-134

Debt Capacity
These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of

the Village’s current levels of outstanding debt and the Villages ability to issue
additional debt in the future. 135-139

Demographic and Economic Information
These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader
understand the environment within which the Village's financial activities take
place. 140-141

Operating Information
These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader
understand how the information in the Village's financial report relates to the
services the Village provides and the activities it performs. 142-146

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the
comprehensive annual financial reports for the relevant year.



VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS
NET POSITION BY COMPONENT

Last Ten Fiscal Years

2018 2017 2016* 2015

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

Net investment in capital asscts § 271.821336 § 256.791.259 §  264.541.513 263.931.875

Restricted 4.032,677 3.180.894 2,709,485 3.288.122

Unrestricted (27.468.592) (21.781.960) (20.988.393) 4.856.829
TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES § 248385421 § 238.190.193 §  2406.262.607 271.983.243
BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES

Net investment in capital assets § 84196076 5§ 79.933.272 5§ 90.127.058 90.26]1 491

Restricted - 5 5 -

Unrestricled 6.838.826 7.600.319 7.258.430 8.885.135
TOTAL BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES § 91034902 § 87.533.591 §  97.385.494 100.437.231
PRIMARY GOVERNMENT

Nel investment in capital assets $ 356017412 § 336724531 §  354.068.573 354.193.366

Restricted 4.032.677 3.180.894 2.709.485 3.288.122

Unrestricted (20.629,766) (14 181.641) {13.729.957) 13.741.964
TOTAL PRIMARY GOVERNMENT $ 339420323 8 325723784 §  343.048.101 371.223.452

*Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 68 was implemented at April 30. 2016.



2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
266.143.014 256.930,797 251,491,187 250.373.273 254.221.831 249.592.572
4.815.450 2.513.686 7.228.622 12.901.961 164.830 993.014
1.024.779 4.517.245 11.095.994 5.802.877 HLO4L 146 17.887.749
263.981.728 269.815.803 269.078.111 264.430.807 268.473.335 271.152.937
90,952.810 86,897,837 85.140.129 B2.814.080 75.306.997 74.356.474
9.484.421 12.410.766 15.350.507 19.521.288 24.898.401 28.761.335
99.308.603 100.490.636 102.335.368 100.203.398 103.117.809 104.665.620
357.095.824 343.848.634 336631316 333.187.353 329.528.828 323.949.046
4.813.450 1.513.686 7.228.622 12.901.961 164.830 993.014
10.509.200 16.928.011 26.446.301 25.324.163 34.942.547 46.619.084
372.420.474 363.290.331 370.306.439 371.413.479 36-4.636.2035 371591144




CHANGE IN NET POSITION

Last Ten Fiscal Years

VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS

EXPENSES
Governmental activities
Generad government
Public safety
Public works
Culture and recreation

Interest and fiscal charges on long-term debt

Total governmental activitivs expensus

Business-type activities
Water and sewer

Total business-type activities expenses

TOTAL PRIMARY GOVERNMENT EXPENSES

PROGRAM REVENUES
Governmental activitics

Charges for services

General povernment

Public safety

Public works

Culture and recreation
Operating grants and contribulions
Capital grants and contributions

Total governmental activities
Progrim revenues

Business-type activitics
Charges for services
Water and sewer
Operating grants and contributions
Capital grants and contributions

Total business-type activitics
Program revenues

TOTAL PRIMARY GOVERNMENT
PROGRAM REVEMUES

NET REVENUE (EXPENSE)
Governmental activities
Business-lype activitics

TOTAL PRIMARY GOVERNMENT
NET REVENUE {EXPENSE)

2018 2017 2016* 2015

3 15.869.380 §  13,145.269 § 13853044 § 16251079
20.712.374 20,471,106 21,462,433 19,131.969
11,089.243 14.345,138 15,020,236 15,310,857
6,378.864 5,797,024 5026478 4,277,124
4.264. 187 4.605.731 4.575.340 4.794.913
38314048 58.36-4.268 39.937.651 59,763,942
17.305.114 17.490.294 17,759,434 17,496,743
17.305.114 17490294 17.759.434 17.496.743

3 75619162 3 75854562 3 77697085 3  77.261.683
g 1.789.766 3 1,376943 § 1,366,788 3 1.268.676
3.890.H6 3.573.257 3.248.233 3.274.051
6,620,284 7493409 5,507.24 5.541.431
1.690.279 1126442 1,040,173 970,556
1.565.249 1.234.385 1,162,335 1.248.429
4.627.719 6.048.334 976.637 2.330.934
20,184,243 20,852,770 13.301.410 14.634.077
18.643.295 17.721.175 16.579.382 13,524,548

5 - - 136,620

2,354, H15 1,749,245 399.658 211426
20.999.410 19.470.420 16.979.040 15.872.594

$ 41.183.653 §  40.323.190 § 30.280.450 5 30.506.671
$§ (3B.129.805) § (37511498) 3 (46,636,241 5 (45,131.863)
3.694.296 1.980,120 (780.394) (1.624.149)
§ (34.433509) § (35.531.372) § (47.416.633) § (46.756.014)




2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009

LO16119829 3 16820623 § 12453150 §  12,632.798 S 11028906 $ 11,890,523

19,536,832 17.977.351 17.683.337 16,816,092 18,373,007 18,270,997
12.093,817 11677451 13.274.353 10.596,797 11,092,991 11.789.375

4,193,048 3,934,308 3.844.491 3469413 4345424 4.296.423

+4.959.369 4.289.449 4.342.536 4,264,035 4,320,124 2.991.639
56.902.893 54.699.182 51.601.868 47.779.155 49.360.452 49.239.157
16.763.602 15.935.142 16.168.462 15.623.988 13.072.465 13.145.150
16.763.602 15.935,142 16.-168.462 15.623.988 13.072.465 13.143.150

$ 73666497 3 70.634.32 5 68070330 8 63.403.043 § 62432017 §  62.384.307

5 1,269,554 § 1407156 3 1,588,325 8 1257540 3 1,998,582 §  2,709.58)

3,093,646 3.186,635 3,095,784 2,976,097 1,463,849 1,341,973
5,484,531 4,751,868 3.608,476 3843912 2,782,267 271,234
895,577 792,802 793,660 741,042 860,826 909,796
1,364,140 1.287.635 1,238,064 1,461,476 2,244,206 2,696,283
7,505,923 1,998,463 4.358.514 3.600.719 220.000 147.816
19.613.373 13.424.561 14.684.823 15.880.786 9.569.730 10.516.703
15,411,379 14,732,596 13467211 12.968.546 12,298,995 13,071,390
2.430.283 53,175 744.821 2342204 1.235 144,228
17.841.662 14.783.771 14,212,032 15.310.750 12.300.230 13215618

§ 37435035 8§ 28210332 § 28B96.835 $ 31191536 § 21869960 3 13.732.32]

§ (37.289.5322) § (41.274621) 5 (36.917,045) § (31.898.369) § (39.790,722) § (38722439
1.078.060 {1.149.371) {2.256.430) (313.238) (772.235) 70468

§ (36.211.462) § (42.423.992) § (39.173.475) § (32.211.607) $§ (40.562.957) 3 (38.651.986)

124 -



VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS

CHANGE IN NET POSTFION (Continued)

Last Ten Fiscal Years

GENERAL REVENUES AND OTHER
CHANGES IN NET POSITION
Governmental activitics
Taxes
Property
Home rule sales
Telecommunications
Utility
Hotel/motel
Other
[ntergovernmental - unrestricted
Replacement tax
State sales tax
Use tax
Income 1ax
Investment income
Miscellancous
Sale ol capital assets
Translers
Special item

Total governmental activitics
Busincss-tvpe activitics
Investment income
Miscellancous
Transfers
Total business-type activitics
TOTAL PRIMARY GOVERNMENT
CHANGE IN NET POSITION
Governmental activitics

Business-type activitics

Total primary governmental change in
net position

Prior period adjustment
NET POSITION - BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET POSITION - END OF YEAR

2018 207 2016* 2015
$ 17572297 % 16422851 $ 16423304 § 15269571
7.949.079 6,306.026 6,146,634 10,955,120
872,932 957,144 993,552 1,142,883
6,421,712 6,370,157 5929.117 6,022,872
544,641 551,753 475,098 400,345
2,998,165 3.010.253 2,405,204 2,210,611
146,802 182,612 109,384 -
6.633.606 5,729.800 5,520,622 -
1,049,326 976,635 920,714 818410
3,598,257 3,730,745 4,228,793 3.886.045
194.067 1411 128,845 64,959
169,815 221,198 328,096 165,667
- 281,824 - -
212.8% 385,072 - -
- - - 4.288.965
48.363.593 45.257.483 43.609.563 45225 448
9,138 20957 150,909 300,876
10,773 8.720 77,500 32,668
(212.896) {385.072) g -
{192.985) {355.395) 128.409 33354
§ J8.170.610 $§ 44902088 S 43.837.974 S 45558992
$ 10233790 5 7745983 § (3.026,676) § 93,583
3.501.311 1.624.731 (531.985) (1.290.603)
13.735.101 9.370,716 (3.578,661) (1,197,022
(38.562) (27.295.033) (23,996,690} .
325.723.784 343.648.101 371,323,452 372420474

$ 339420323 S 325.723.784 § 343,648,101

S 371.223.452

*Replacement. state sales, use, and income taxes are presented as unrestricted intergovernmental revenue beginning in fiscal vear

2016.



2014 2013 2012 2011 2000 2009

15546578 8 15722079 $ 15279544 8 15032052 5 14820536 § 13,707.382

0,893,380 9.146.375 9365911 9,025,865 7,356.280 7,491,063
1,323,373 1.298,127 1492567 1.:443.900 1.460.674 1,487,257
5,959.246 5.477,963 4,764.214 +4.920.460 3,554,178 3.874,144
290,454 247.872 247,557 242,785 252844 300,235
£.425.637 1,183,935 2077464 1,677,997 1.919.200 1.910.096
696.169 636,783 379,133 537.844 439.689 521046
3.866.664 3.575.982 3,204,848 2.862.078 21,785,961 3,172,690
35,369 40,976 43,020 246.283 367,726 871.853
130.520 80,452 550,060 78.056 191,106 227,086

- * - 2,600.000 2,480,000

39.167.390 37.410.546 37.606.324 36.067.322 35.748.194 36.042.852
(16,177) 136,471 403,586 437.201 459,824 846,147
66,743 29,060 6,112 374.684 15.574

= - - = (2.600.000) (2.480.000)

50.568 165.531 411.698 811.885 (2.140.176) (1.618.2719%)

$§ 39217958 § 37.576.077 S 38.0i8.022 $ 36.879.207 S 33608018 S 34.424.573

5 1.877.868 & 121,024 8 (3.668.297) § (849.723) 3 3849825 §  (3.M47.870)

1.128.628 1.243.591 {737.673) (1.444.545) (2453410 {2.390.514)
3,006,496 1,364,615 (4.405.970) (2.294.268) 1.396.411 (6,138.384)
6,123,647 {2.168.193) 48,413 2.109.674 - o

346.059.894 346.863.472 351.221.029 351.405.623 3530.009.212 356.147.590

$ 355.190.037 § 346059894 § 346.863.472 § 351.221.029 § 351.405.623 3 350.009.212




VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS

FUND BALANCLS OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal Year

2018

2017

2016

2015

GENERAL FUND
Unassignued
Reserved im
Unreserved

TOTAL GENERAL FUND

ALL OTHER GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
Nonspendable
Restricted
Assigned
Unassigned
Reserved
Unreserved. reported in
Special revenue funds
Debt service funds
Capital project funds

TOTAL ALL OTHER
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Note: Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 54 was implemented at April 30. 2012,

Daty Source

Audited Financial Statements

5 28795610 %

25.098.759

5

24191357

20.675.671

$ 28795640 S

25.098.759

24.191.557

20.675.671

$ - 8
4.032.677
5.592.100

an

3.180.894
7.673.643

16.125.483
5.475.589

3.288.122
6.915.001

$ 9624760 S

10.856.537

8

21.608.072

10.203.123




2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
$ 17996239 § 16406975 S 14971672 $ - -8 g
5 - . 5 472.853 817,514

- - - 12.913.655 8.903.411 10.200.416

§ 17996239 § 16406975 S 14971672 § 12913655 $ 9376264 $ 11.017.930
5 $ 499033 S 760333 § S -8 .
KI5.450 2.513.686 7.228.622 - s :
1.751.815 3.040,004 4.436.631 - . :

- . s 13.923.594 20.553.771 45.624.813

: - . (20.221) (419.111) (763.806)
s . . 5 (2.392) -
. . . s (754) .

§  6.567.265 § 6052813 § 12425586 S 13.903.373 $§ 20131514 $  44.861.009




VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Last Ten Fiscal Years

2018 2017 2010* 2015
REVENUES
Property t1axes $ 17.572.295 % 16422851 § 16423305 S 14899310
Other taxes 18.786.528 17,195,334 15.949.605 21.553.488
Fines and forfeits 622,372 600.115 529.171 525.809
Licenses and permits 2,732,922 3.530.750 [.803.939 2.239.902
Charges for services 8.760.947 7.760.362 7.241.283 6,570,453
Intergovernmental 15.218.727 13.894.282 13.731.160 6.876.406
[nvestment income 194,067 L4l 128.843 64,959
Other 2.139.401 1.520.835 904.270 2.843.481
Total revenues 66.027.259 61.035.940 56,711,578 35,573,808
EXPENDITURES
Current
General government 14.960.072 11.954.887 11.815.013 11.679.424
Public saftty 19.332.577 18.697.889 18.03-1.341 17.878.688
Pubic works 9.450.559 9010058 8.709.845 9.336.352
Recreation 5.185.107 4,124,138 3.964.791 3.964.193
Allocations to water and sewer fund (3.246.000) (3.183.000) (3.121.000) (3.060.000)
Capital outlay 13,493,274 10.081.008 9.321.709 8.543.839
Debt service
Principal 6,460,590 5.906.154 5.375.593 S.8M.571
Interest and fiscal charges 1.460.823 1.976.449 1.870.307 2.093.303
Bond issuance costs - - - 125.748
Total expenditures 67.097.002 38.567.583 55.970.599 56.436.120
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES (1.069.743) 2.468.357 740,979 (862.312)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
[ssuance of bonds - 5.105.000 11.950.000 7.308.233
Premium on bonds issued - 77.163 1.465.998 677.639
Issuance of refunding bonds - - - -
Premium on refunding bonds - - - -
Payments 1o escrow agent - (18.264.202) - (7.860.124)
Capital leases issued - 32515 - -
Notes payable issued 3,384,000 - 355.500 2747915
Sale of capital asscts 189.409 743.832 201.358 14.973
Transfers in 10.493.845 12.270.438 9.423.063 [1.673.868
Translers {out) (10.493.845) {12.270.458) (9.423.0063) {11.673.868)
Total sher financing sources (uscs) 3.573.409 (12.305.690) 14,172,856 2. 888.638
SPECIALITENMI - - - 4.288.963
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 5 2.503.666 3 (9.837.333) § 14913835 S 6.315.291
DEBT SERVICE AS A PERCENTAGE OF
NONCAPITAL EXPENDITURES 14.84% 14.90% 14.10% 14.70%

*Sales and use tax presented as intergovernmental revenue beginning in liscal year 2016,

-129-



2014 2013 2012 2011 2000 2009

$ 15.086.189 5 15081826 § 15135292 5 14815103 S 14.820.336 $§ 13.707.382

19.608.305 17.970.958 18.526.587 17.846.841 14.82:4.767 15,418.734
652,242 623.118 853511 842,300 752,173 645.190
2.246.099 1.540.449 761,008 901.880 797.229 1.568.431
6.239.227 5.973.911 5.448.350 5.383.469 4.877.269 4.888.901
7.151.987 6.572.704 6.763.999 6,593,745 3.889.790 6.034.080
35.369 40.976 45.020 246.285 367.726 871.853
2.170.564 2.842.872 1.718.868 1.032.134 1.089.957 944.984

53.289.982 50.646.814 49.252.641 47.661.757 41.419.449 44.079.555

13.277.239 15.200,174 10.276.541 10.279.604 9.337.741 9.761.037
17.657.940 16.884.123 16,459,782 16.104.041 153.574.310 15.233.202
9.149.870 §.829.149 8.743.358 8.478.126 8.264.865 7.989.078
3,600,130 3.408.063 3.215.119 3112875 3.650.743 3.610.345
(3.000.000} (2,845.000) (2.790.000) (2.710.000) (2.600.000) (2.480.000)
20.163.557 10,037.710 8.229.834 12.437.256 36,172,185 25.003.027
3.550.370 2.984.621 2,630,149 2.553.378 1.882.280 1.451.205
1,948,524 1,954,015 1.960.867 2107777 2.310,980 1.690.968
339.669 - - - 82.506 1.701.082

66.687.299 56.4452.855 48.725.630 52.363.057 74.675.610 63.962.944

(13.397.317) __ (5.806.041) 526.991 (4.701.300)  (33.256.161) __ (19.883.389)
15.045.000 - ; . 6700000  47.135.884
299,329 . - - . -

- 2.750.000 - 2.460.000 . =

. $9.846 s 38.946 . :

- (2.803.963) : (2.391.196) - .
114.828 $18.206 . : 185.000 171.848

11.876 14.482 4.826 37.691 : .
6.630.665 8.222.204 7.090.363 5.501.664 4.725.139 4,684,145

{6.630.663) (8.222.204) {7.090.363) (5.501.664) (4.725.13%) (4.684.145)

15.50:1.033 868.571 4.826 145441 6.885.000 47.307.732

§ 2103716 § (49374700 § 531817 8 (4.555.859 § (26.371.161) § 27.424.343

I L300 10,60, 11.30% LE.70% 10.90% 8.10%
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VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS

PRINCIPAL PROPERTY TANPAYLRS

Current Year and Nine Years Ago

2018 2009
Percentuge Percentage
of Tot of Total
Village Village
Taxable Taxable Taxable Taxable
Type of Assessed Assessed Assessed Assessed
Taxpayer Business Value Ronk  Valuation Value Rank  Yaluation
PDV Midwest Refinery Citgo Refinery-Petroleum Preducts $ 127.018,403 | 1051% § 50,138,500 | 4 45%
Duke Sceured Fin 2009-1ALZ LLC  Real Propenty 17,029,046 & 1 41%
Tart 155 Industrial LL.C Real Property 15,639.972 3 1.29%
PLDAB LLC Real Property 15,666,067 4 1.30%
GPT N Schinidt Road LLC Real Property 15,240,654 5 126%
Prologis-illinois LLC Owner, Operater and Developer 14,612,297 6 F21% 17.394.910 2 1 5495
of Industrial Real Estate
Airport Road Holdings Real Praperty 10,498,936 7 087%
Pactiv Corp. Food Services. Direct Sales 9,591,371 8 0 79%
BAEV LaSalle Real Property 9,584,640 9 079% 10,055,703 5 0 89%
JRC Remington/Ex Al LLC's Real Propenty 9,333,712 10 0771%
J&J Romeoville Property Real Propenty 11,006,200 4 0.94%
Prudential Ins. Co ol America Insurance 14,607,935 3 1.30%
James Campbell Co. LLC Real Property 9,300,000 6 0.83%
DCT/SPF Pinnacle IX LLC Real Property 9,203,800 7 0.82%
CRPILP KCDC LLC Real Property 9,089,700 8 0.81%
Hart [55 Industrial LLC Real Propenty 8,908,000 9 0.79%
RREEF Amer REIT 1l Corp [ndustrial Propertivs 8.796.000 10 0.78%

20.20% $ 148.500.750

13.19%
E

Note: Every effort has been made to seek out and report the largest taxpayers  However, many of the taxpavers contain multiple parcels, and it is possible that

some parcels and their valuations have been overlooked. The 2017 EAV is the most current available

Data Source

Will County Clerk

- 133 -



VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS
SCHEDULE OF PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS

Last Fen Levy Years

Percentage Percentage
Tax of Collections Total of
Levy Tax Tax Extensions for Tax Extensions
Year Extensions Collections Collected  Previous Years Collections Collected
2017 14,337,231 § - 0.00% $ - $ - 0.00%
2016 13,675,019 13,648,895 99.81% - 13,648,895 99.81%
20105 13,193,894 13,171,863 99.83% - 13,171,863 99.83%
2014 13,160,007 13,147,707 99.91% - 13,147,707 99.91%
2013 12,924,565 12,891,285 99.74% - 12,891,285 99.74%
2012 12,852,253 12,767,370 99.34% - 12,767,370 99.34%
2011 12,832,637 12,791,222 99.52% - 12,791,222 99.52%
2010 12,852,966 12,803,539 99.62% - 12,803,539 99.62%
2009 11,777,090 11,715,947 99.48% - 11,715,947 99.48%
2008 11,878,398 11,830,360 99.60% - 11,830,360 99.60%

Note: Includes separate agency of Romeoville Fire but excludes Road and Bridge Levy.

N/A - Information not available

Data Source

Will County Treasurer
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VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS

RATIOS OI OUISTANDING DEBY BY TYPL

Last Ten Tiscal Years

Governmental

General Subordinate
Fiscal General Obligation Capital Alternate Lien Taxable
Year Obligation Apprecintion Revenue Tax Increment Capital Nole
Ended Bonds Bonds* Bonds Revenue Note Lease Payable
2018 5 33585901 § 60.952.362 § . 3.384.000 § 789381 5 154790
2017 40.204.756 57.721.305 - - 985.9065 1.619,790
2016 38.829.691 54.661.576 - - 1.148.998 1.619.790
2015 50.584,554 51.764.238 - - 739355 1.769.790
2014 54.870,548 49.020.718 - - 966,495 -
2013 43.125.004 46.422.784 - - 1.102,576 -
2012 46.016.648 43.962.717 - - 440.279 -
201 46,664,626 41.633.192 1.785.000 - 650.906 -
2010 48.693.945 39.427.268 1,935,000 - §48.212 -
2009 43.543.048 37.338.409 2.090.000 - 861.389 -

*The General Obligation Capital Appreciation Bonds value represents the principal outstanding which includes accreted interest.

*¥*See the schedule of Demographic and Economic Indicators on page 140 for personal income and population data.

Note: Details of the Village's outstanding debt can be found in the notes 1o financial stalements,
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Business-Type

General Alternate Total Percentage  Percentuge
Obligation Revenue Note Primary of ol Personal Per

Bonds Bonds Payable Government EAV EAY Income** Capitu**
1.232.3600 8§ - 14,969.537 § 116478531 § £.208.139.992 9.64% 9.72% § 293545
3,552,522 - 16.271,977 120.356.315 [.140.638.533 10.55% 10.04% 3.033.17
5,738.114 - 17,542,457 [39.560.626 1.065.515.505 13.10% 10.54% 3.182.00
7.854.576 - 18.781,760 131.514,293 1.037.893.883 12.67% 10.74% 331437
9.754.452 - 19.990.652 134.602.865 1,033.351.111 13.02% 11.23% 3.392.00

11.704.996 - 21,169.879 123.525.239 1.094.957.671 [1.28% 19.34% 5.839.61

13.563.352 - 22.320.169 126.303.165 1.164.155.585 10.85% 19.77% 5.970.93

13,345,374 - 23.442.232 129.521.330 1.276.684.761 10.15% 20.28% 6.123.07

17,016,055 - 24,496,953 132,437,433 1.220.638.234 10.85% 20.73% 6.260.93

18.636,952 - 23.748.136 126.217.934 1.228.262.980 10.28% 19.76% 5.966.90
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VILLAGE OF ROMEQVILLE, ILLINOIS

RATIOS OF GENERAL BONDED DEBT OUTSTANDING

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Percentage of

Less Amounts Estimated
General Available Actual Taxable

Fiscal Obligation in Debt Value ol Per
Year Bonds* Service Fund Total Property** Capita***
2018 $ 95,790,823 § - $ 95,790,823 2.64% 2,414.27
2017 101,478,583 - 101,478,583 2.97% 2,557.42
2016 119,249,381 13,415,998 105.833,383 3.531% 2,667.17
2015 110,203,588 8,129 110,195.259 3.54% 2,777.10
2014 113,645,718 8,129 113,637.589 3.66% 2.863.85
2013 101,252,784 8,129 101.244,655 3.08% 2,551.53
2012 103,542,717 2,248 103,540,469 2.96% 4,894.84
2011 103,643,192 19,476 103,623,716 2.71% 4,898.77
2010 105,137,268 - 103,137,268 2.87% 4,970.32
2009 99,518,409 952,850 98,563,539 2.67% 4,659.63

*This is the general bonded debt of both governmental (including capital appreciation bonds) and business-
type activities.

**See the schedule of Assessed Value and Actual Value of Taxable Property on page 131 for property

value data.

***See the schedule of Demographic and Economic Indicators on page 141 for population data.
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VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS
SCHEDULE OF DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING BONDED DEBT

April 30,2018

Percentage
of Debt
Gross Applicable to Government's
Bonded Debt* Government** Share of Debt
DIRECT DEBT
Village of Romeoville S 100,256,634 100.00% § 100,256,634
OVERLAPPING DEBT
Schools:
School District Number 88-A 21,515,000 19.64% 4,225,546
School District Number 92 6,070,000 17.78% 1,079,246
School District Number 202 244,755,000 9.04% 22,125,852
School District Number 365-U 122,541,667 28.50% 34,924,375
High School District Number 2035 12,210,000 7.75% 946,275
Community College District Number 523 179,530,000 6.09% 10,933,377
Total Schools 586,621,667 74,234,671
Others:
Will County*** - 5.96% -
Will County Forest Preserve District 108,309,792 5.96% 6,455,264
Fountaindale Library District 31,630,000 0.15% 47,445
Bolingbrook Park District 26,070,000 0.04% 10,428
Lemont Park District 11,126,000 0.05% 5,563
Lockport Park District 7.752.000 27.15% 2,104,668
Plainfield Park District 12,228,000 7.52% 919.546
Total Others 197,115,792 9,542.914
Total Overlapping Debt 783,737,459 83.777.585
TOTAL DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING DEBT § 883,994,095 $ 184,034,219

Notes
* Qutstanding principal of general obligation bonds as of May 9, 2018. 100% of the principal of outstanding
general obligation bonds of overlapping taxing districts have been displayed in this schedule.
** QOverlapping debt percentages based on 2017 EAV, the most current available.
**¥ Will County debt of $281,380,000 is self supporting, so it is not included in the table.

Data Source

Office of the County Clerk - Will County, lllinois
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VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS
SCHEDULE OF LEGAL DEBT MARGIN

April 30, 2018

Under the 1970 lllinois Constitution, there is no legal limit for home rule municipalities except
as set by the General Assembly. To date, the General Assembly has set no limits for home rule
municipalities.
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VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS
DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC INDICATORS

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Estimated
Per Capita Total Personal Level in
Fiscal Personal Income of Median Years of Unemployment
Year Population Income* Population Age* Schooling Ratc*
2018 39680 $ 30,199 S 1,198,296,320 354 14 3.70%
2017 39.680 30,199 1,198,296,320 354 14 4.70%
2016 39,680 30,199 1,198,296,320 354 14 6.70%
2015 39,680 30,199 1,198,296,320 354 14 6.50%
2014 39,680 30,199 1,198,296,320 354 14 8.50%
2013 39,680 30,199 1,198,296,320 354 14 9.30%
2012 39,680 30,199 1,198,296,320 354 14 9.00%
2011 39,680 30,199 1,198,296,320 354 14 9.80%
2010 39,680 30,199 1,198,296,320 354 14 10.50%
2009 21,153 30,199 638,799,447 333 14 10.30%
*Will County

Data Source

Bureau of Census
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VILLAGE OF ROMEOYILLE, ILLINOIS
FULL-TIME EQUIVALENT EMPLOYEES BY FUNCTION

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal Year 2018 2017 2016 2015
GENERAL GOVERNMENT
Mayor 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Village clerk (suppon) 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Village administration
Administration 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00
Personnel 2.00 2.00 2.00 2435
RPTV 1.00 .00 1.00 1.60
Marketing 1.35 0.73 0.63 0.63
Information services 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00
Finance 9.94 9,94 9.94 9.94
Community services and development
Administration 334 545 6.40 6.00
Inspectional services 4.84 4.84 4.26 4.26
PUBLIC SAFETY
Police
Administration 9.50 9.50 9,50 9.50
Operations 74.40 73.40 72.40 74.40
Support services 14.07 13.59 10.28 12.79
Fire and ambulance 62.28 60.30 58.80 57.00
Fire academy 10.60 10.60 11.00 7.00
Romeoville Emergency Management Agency 0.72 0.72 0.72 0.72
PUBLIC WORKS
Administration 4.00 4,00 4.00 5.00
Buildings 9.25 9.25 9,23 11.86
Motor pool 1.73 1.00 242 1.00
Streets and sanitation 11.00 10.73 9.00 9.00
Landscape and grounds 5.00 3.00 6.00 7.00
RECREATION
Operations 6.19 3.26 5147 3.17
Recreation programs 34.94 34.84 31.09 31.09
Park maintenance 9.63 9.27 9.43 943
Recreation center 9.95 9.27 5.00 5.00
WATER AND SEWER
Finance administration 4.00 4.00 4.00 4.00
Public works watcr distribution 13.00 13.00 11.00 12.00
Public works sewage treatment . 9.00 9.00 7.00 10.00
Public works sewage collection 5.00 5.00 8.00 8,00
TOTAL VILLAGE EMPLOYEES 326.73 319.69 306,28 312.23

Data Source

Operating Budget



2014 2013 2042 2011 2010 2009

1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 -
1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00
245 245 1.38 1.08 1.75 1.75
1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.50 1.00
0.63 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 4.00 4.50
9.94 9.88 9.25 8.73 8.00 842
6.00 6.00 6.50 6.70 8.65 8.65
4.26 4.08 4.07 4.00 7.50 7.00
9.50 10.00 10.52 10.92 7.50 8.50
73.38 72.02 71.52 {355 80.00 78.58
12,32 15.29 15.29 15.04 20.02 19.79
35.80 49.07 53.80 57.21 63.92 63.72
LS 5.25 4.25 3.43 3.30 3.50
0.72 0.72 0.87 0.87 0.87 0.87
5.00 3.00 5.00 3.00 5.00 5.00
11.86 11.50 10.00 17.00 i4.00 14.00
1.00 1.00 2.00 2.00 3.00 3.00
9.00 9.00 9.00 6.00 10.50 11.00
7.00 7.00 7.00 - - 1.00
517 317 5.17 517 5.61 5.32
28.92 2833 33.41 30.63 30.49 24.96
9.75 9.60 8.20 3.19 9.46 9.07
5.00 5.80 3.80 3.80 8.86 8.80
4.00 4.00 4.00 4.00 6.00 6.00
12.00 12,00 12.00 11.00 12.00 12.00
10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00
8.00 8.00 8.00 8.00 8.00 8.00

306.14 301.16 307.03 Jod.02 336.13 331.63
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VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS

OPLERATING INDICATORS

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiseal Year 2018 2017 2016 2015
GENERAL GOVERNMENT
Community Development
Permits issued* 3131 2077 2,101 2,195
Inspections conducted* 7317 6.296 4,666 2,785
Business licenses issucd* T48 690 731 848
PUBLIC SAFETY
Police
Personnel - civilian** 27 M4 32 32
Personnel - sworn ** 64 64 6l 61
Traflic accidents 1.535 1.573 1.439 1.400
Calls for service 40.696 43.516 41,097 38.886
Traflic citations 6.486 6.263 5813 6.4806
Parking citations 1.703 2,057 1.737 1,161
Writlen warnings 1.705 2.267 2.025 918
Administrative warning tickels 116 211 137 163
Arrests 1.213 1.198 875 870
DUI arrests 1536 133 65 66
Written reports 3.262 3.575 3.500 3.459
Domestics 569 647 513 494
False alarms 1.266 1.213 1.256 1.311
Fire
Calls
EMS 2.056 2045 2.060 1.917
Fire i.392 1.348 1.239 1.312
Total 3448 3.393 3.299 3.229
PUBLIC WORKS
Streets (miles) 170 170 i70 170
RECREATION
Program ofTerings
Youth 815 770 733 580
Adult 19] 240 238 232
Senior ¢itizen 31 19 15 13
WATER AND SEWER
Number of active meters 17.000 16.924 16.831 16,698

Gallons of water pumped
Gallons of water sold (billed)
Utilization

N/A - information not available

1.601,598.500
1.352.433.000
84442

*Figures based on prior calendar year approximating current fiscal year.
**Docs not include Co-Op Students, Crossing Guards. or Kennel Helper.

Data Souree

Various village departments
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1.339.240.400
1.268.506.000
8241%

1.532.814.900
1.260.283.300
82.22%

1.478.703.000
1.216.020.300
82.24%



2014 2013 2012 2611 2010 2009
2.031 1.376 1.250 2.021 1.168 1.305
2,923 7.076 220 6.889 6.521 8.750

711 685 692 684 628 613
34 34 33 33 29 34
63 61 63 63 67 68
1330 1.243 1.304 1.397 1.332 1.480
41.069 41.754 435,184 46.391 55,297 55,166
8.446 8.330 9.202 1.797 9.593 8.608
1096 629 1.188 1.572 2.295 2,330
611 494 791 989 1.430 1.021
330 181 299 441 810 620
1.292 1.526 1.616 §.4935 1.972 1.807
90 113 117 98 13 121
3.687 4.094 4,409 4323 5.212 5.458
486 519 637 585 649 610
[.147 1.039 1.121 1.153 1.095 1.379
1.690 1.837 1.890 1,733 1.613 1.693
1.267 1.266 1.246 1112 1192 1.307
2,957 3.103 J.136 2.845 2.807 3.000
170 170 170 170 170 170
54 530 475 527 436 508
23 42 42 30 52 57
35 38 20 38 41 70
16.604 16,535 16.570 16,557 16.597 16.566
1.525.850,300 1.708.115.500 1.635.515.000 1.480.389.191 1.509.647.875 1.466.014,000
1.330.730,900 1.382.636.900 1.322.254.690 1.334.422,900 1.317.100.300 1.252.073.800
87.21% 80.95% 80.85% 90.14% 87.25% 85.41%
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CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS & ADVISORS
® Members of American Institute of Certified Public Accountants

1415 West Diehl Road, Suite 400
Naperville, IL 60563

630 566 8400

SIKICH.COM

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT’S REPORT ON
MANAGEMENT’S ASSERTION OF COMPLIANCE

The Honorable Village President
and Members of the Board of Trustees
Village of Romeoville, Illinois

We have examined management’s assertion that the Village of Romeoville, lllinois (the Village),
complied with the provisions of subsection (q) of Section 11-74.4-3 of the Illinois Tax Increment
Redevelopment Allocation Act ([llinois Public Act 85-1142) during the year ended April 30, 2018.
Management is responsible for the Village’s assertion. Our responsibility is to express an opinion
on management’s assertion about the Village's compliance with the specific requirements based
on our examination.

Our examination was made in accordance with the standards established by the American Institute
of Public Accountants. Those standards require that we plan and perform the examination to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether management’s assertion about compliance with the specified
requirements is fairly stated, in all material respects. An examination involves performing
procedures to obtain evidence about whether management's assertion is fairly stated, in all material
respects. The nature, timing, and extent of the procedures selected depend on our judgment,
including an assessment of the risks of material misstatement of management’s assertion, whether
due to fraud or error. We believe that the evidence we obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Our examination does not provide a legal determination on the Village's compliance with the
specified requirements.

In our opinion, management’s assertion that the Village of Romeoville, lllinois, complied with the
aforementioned requirements for the year ended April 30, 2018, is fairly stated in all material
respects.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Trustees, management
and the lllinois Department of Revenue, lllinois State Comptrollers office and the Joint Review
Board and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Sctich LLD

Naperville, Illinois
October 26,2018

ACCOUNTING TECHNOLOGY ADVISORY
s a - 1 2 ] =
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s ' K I C H CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS & ADVISORS
@

1415 West Diehl Road, Suite 400
Naperville, IL 60563

630 586 8400
SIKICH.COM

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

The Honorable Village President
and Members of the Board of Trustees
Village of Romeoville, Illinois

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Village of
Romeoville, [llinois (the Village) as of and for the year ended April 30, 2018, which collectively
comprise the basic financial statements of the Village and have issued our report thereon dated
October 26, 2018, which expressed an unmodified opinion on those statements.

Our audit was made in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the basic financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts, and disclosures in the basic
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall basic financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the Village's basic financial statements. The supplementary financial
information (balance sheet and schedule of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balance)
is presented for the purpose of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial
statements. The supplementary financial information is the responsibility of management and was
derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
basic financial statements.

The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic
financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the
basic financial statements as a whole.

Schict LLP

Naperville, Illinois
October 26, 2018

ACCOUNTING TECHNOLOGY ADVISORY



SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION



VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS

BALANCE SHEET
DOWNTOWN TIF DISTRICT FUND

April 30,2018
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 381,600
Accounts receivable
Due from other funds 38,100
TOTAL ASSETS $ 419,700
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities A 91,513
Deposits Payable 5,558
Total liabilittes 97,071
FUND BALANCE
Restricted for economic development 322,629
Total fund balance 322,629
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
FUND BALANCE $ 419,700

(See independent auditor's report.)



VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
DOWNTOWN TIF DISTRICT FUND

For the Year Ended April 30, 2018

REVENUES
Property taxes $ 259,321
Charges for service 156,400
Other revenues 46,373
Total revenues 462,094
EXPENDITURES
General government 196,763
Debt Service
Principal payments 1,180,000
Interest and fiscal charges 411,240
Capital outlay 460,711
Total expenditures 2,248,714
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES (1.786,620)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 2,025,276
Total other financing sources (uses) 2,025,276
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 238,656
FUND BALANCE, MAY 1 83,973
FUND BALANCE, APRIL 30 $ 322,629

(See independent auditor’s report.)



d1L-uoN
JiL-uoyN
JiL-voN

JIL-UoN
d1L-uoN
4tL-UoN
JI1-UON
411-UoN
d11-uoN
JiL-uoN
4IL-UON
411-UoN
41L-UON
d11-uoN
JIL-UON
JI1-UON
JIL-uoN
J11-UON
411-UoN
J11-UoN
JI1-uoN
JI1-UoN
JIL-UON
J11-uoN
J11-UCN
411-U0N
Ji1-uoN
Jit-uoN
diL-uch
diL-uoN
diL-uoN

JIL-uoN
diL-uon
JIL-HON
JIL-UoN
J11-UON
A1-uoN
311-UoN
4IL-uoN
41L-UON
JIL-UON
JIL-UoN

J11-UoN
JI1-u0N
JIL-uoN
dig-uoN
diL-uoN
diL-uoy
JiL-uoN
JiL-voN
JIL-UON

FIUONFAIL

smes

EV9'LLZ
EEQZTL

voR'sT
99y
[f4 ¥AS

€8T
000’y

EOEETTY
spuny

00092
000°001

069's6

TLL'06Y

PenEIay

6960-80
FOET-TT
150Z-ST

SPOL-v6
6L0-20
Tt0-£0

SEGT-ST

S6LZ-00

{09Z-00

£08Z-00

v08z-00

T9sZ-00
S91-t0
0£5-90

9y9I-EL

SVPIT-ET

TI61-S1

LEGT-ST

BERT-ST

bs0Z-91

1607-31

oste-oI

0LZL-L1

LLZrLn

[AX4402)

TEET-LT

CPET-LY

LLETLE

BLET-LT
L6°E6

EBOZ-9T

rrl1-56
avit-ot

orL-06
LEDO-E0
93111
L9TT-pX
£9vI-BL
£80T-bT

121-66
PEEZ 66
0BT

SS8I-v1
S99T-ET
0L02-91
S960-TT
6TPI-TL
BLTZ LT
S8IT-60
sSyzi-of
T97L-L1

JaqUInH
Epuny EETLNIN T

Aysoyiny wog 1alo(
Awoyiny uod 125j0f
adajjo3 1oy 120§

113uN0d Juiuue|d JOPIIOD) UOISUD)X WAYINOS SSE JIEISIAU)
221j0g 3IEIS SIOUI|)

adljod J1els stoug))

aned 3115 11/ Auady wisAs wWLepy JUSWII0GUI ME SOt
uoneuodsuel] jo wawpedag siouyy
uonepodsuel) jo wawuedag sioun)
uoneyodsues) jo wawpedag siou))
uvoienodsuel) Jo wawpedag siou)
uoneuodsuelj jo Jawpredag siouy)|
uvonepodsuel) jo wawyedag sjouy)|
uvonepodsues Jo Jwawedag siou)|
uonepodsuely Jo wawyredag sloug)
vonepodsuely Jo wauriedag siou|
uvoliepodsuesg Jo uawnedag siou
uoneyodsuesy Jo Juatuyedag siouny)
uonepodsuel Jo Juawpedag siou)|
uonepodsuel| Jo Juawpedag siou|
uonepodsuel) jo Juawedag sioull|
uonepodsuel| }o Juawedag siouy))
uanepodsuel| jo Juawuedag siou))
uoneyuodsues) (o Judswuedagq sioul)
uoneiodsues) o Jusawpedag sou)
uaneyodsues] Jo EwE:mnam 5|0
uaneuodsues) jo uawiedag s1o
uoneyodsuel) jo juawpedag st
uanepodsuel)] jo wauniedag siow
UONEPOSSY Pl [eMINY AJURDD AR 1218210
LIS UONIAN0L 34 WTimg

diysumo) adegng

diysumo) 23egng

VoNeRossY §,ja1y] ang AajeA saujeld sag
Uo7 0sudIdIu] Adfjea samy saueld 500
auo7 asudiaiul AdjjeA JoAry Sauleld 2og
auog asudiajul A3jIeA Jany sauleld saq
AYUn32S pueppwoy jo wawuedag
uodya07 Jo A

W3or Jo A

uaneg jo Ay

JH 35310 Jo A

1H 15247 30 Ay

Awoyiny wsuesy odeny)

{dvina) Buuuryy 10) Aualy ueyjodanaw odesny)
Wwoway "33pupoop ‘ua|g Jawoy joocsqiujog
PIaYywiely pue yoosqaucy

Proywield pue yocuqduyog

yoaigiuog

{Anunwwo) Junssy) esoany

$100uBuy yo dio) Auny

g Wowaasdy

81-LT A

uodmy Ausiaan simal - warsAs Juiues ssaippy Jqng - Juawaaidy ateay

55022y ALad0Id - WBIUDPURGY UONEIS 11

UONINIISHOD YIBd voneasday ‘sasodind wawneda uojleassay Joy Auadosd

010 35 'SUaWaNNbal BN Sul) PedysdA0 jo Supaem ‘suonanpal 334 Juawdojasag duieys adeudig
aanbsey Juiof "adeudis ‘swawannbay Sudedspue] ‘suawaa0ity) peoy - voisuedxy sndwey ajpaoawioy
dyssaquiapy (12uno) Jujuueld J0P11I0) UOISUBIXT LIBYINGS SSE IRISIAN]

uonEULo)U| POIBY AJOISIH |euiun s Aso)soday (enual) alers

BPIY [ENINY - WAISAS WUZY JUMM3IIGIT MET Sloul)||

w31y Piy [BNINYY 1UIWaTI0UI Me

peoy 1a|png o) Jaqaps - J3)5url) pecy adeluosy

PeCY 13110 pUB £S5 3INOY - PAUGIYCI SIUIWYIEOIIUT

peoy 121j0f pue £5 230y a8reydsiq afemas £ ainoy

PeOY )JN[0r PUB £5 IINDY - paXqIYOLy Suiiey

Sauew JaiI0 g Junepnsay £5 ainoy

ddoueuduey [eudig ey

sIvdwanoidw) peoy wodyy

PEOY J3qap 0) pRoY 1ajpng - 133load 153 pROY JOME]

PeDY Jagaps 0] £5 SINOY - 10alold 15€3 peoy JojAe|

51500 Bunaduidul uonels 13w (OVIND} 1ueln AlenDd iy uonedmy uonsaduo) jesapay
PIeAB|INOG 1)U O) Aemyieg SUBIalaA - Buidepinsay Aemyied SPROISSOY

V3315 YISET 03 EC "1 11 - Suepunsoy dapq Juow)ag

Pjosg Funepnsay aALQ JWOW|ag - 1UDWIHTy Jo uawpuawy

{wein DYND) 204NN - SIVSWRA0IHWN UONELS BIBINY

{1ues9 DYIND) UONINIISUO) UONEIS UIRl) - SIUBWDIACIdWY UONEIS BN

120015 YISET 01 €5 "L T - Burdepnsoy dauq Juowjag

Agsyigg $UgI919A 01 pAjd 13130 "N - Sunepnsay Aemyiey SpROSSSOID

ULy Euuy O] PY J2GIM - DUIDBLNSDY PIRADINOE PUEID

‘PY wodi)y g 9ZT LY 11 1€ safueynaul §5-1 104 Suudouldu] | aseyd 10} Dleq pul MEWNS] pUapg
Suid|ng Juawaned pue y|emapls “py J0jAe] - JUE.D) JO0YIS 0) 3INaY Bjes

Waloud 19930 2 551~ 1) POOMINE] 17 "By Jaqas - Alsadolgd Jo Fuekasuod

waloud 1agaM 13 551 - 10 POOMDRE] 1 "PY Jaqap - Uatase] g Aladold jo ajuekaauo)
uonedpiued UONEPOSSY PIY JENINY AJUNOD 1A J01EDI5)

25N Yans Buimopie 10; uonesuadwod JaY1o pue Juleys anuanal yim sasoding

Aunnes) Awapedy Joj Auadord U151 VONDBN0NG D314 WBIMQ Asn oL P iy Awapeay and a|) ']
Apqisuodsay 2IUBUIILIEW PUR UORPSUN] PEOY §JNME

wawaeiday xe) Auadosd a8pug pue peoy

D4 - W1y Py (eninpy

diyssaquaiy auog asidiaug Adjjey 2aa)y saweld sad

auoz asudiaiul AdjleA JoAY SDUIRL S MaU B Ul Jaqaw € 3g 0) dasy

$1eaA 57 03 dn 20§ Duoz Bunsixa Byl SPUBING AJDANDD)YD 1BLY) AUDZ ISUAIZIUD MU € W04
532112814 198 pue swdo|aaa( 3sinod Buluies)

W3wWaa13y aun Aepunog

1D|oF JO AM) - JuawadiBy Aepunog

Wawaaudy aduey ang anjog

[8s:n07) pjog poomisiy)

Speoy piojAes) 2 yNMudY e SHIUSWAA0IdW) J3L10 Pue uonezijeud)s jo 1500 Ayl SPIEMO) UBIINGIILG) 000'0ZS
peoy yumuay pue JagIA 1e sitawaacsduy pug)s) 2deIspue) spremo) UoNguILe) 05129895
sasoding Supuiesy 10y Awapeday a4 9)A0aWOY dy) 10} sng Aqesadou] Ue JO UolsINbIY
awdoanag ue|d asn pue) dmsuayndivoy

Aauady 19108 LONDY JULOS |ediNUREY

10alosy dBueydsaya) 9ZT IIN0Y - pEOY VOdRY - §5)

Wwawpuawy wawdaidy 13aloid 23ueydsdu) gz oy - peoy Lodny - gg|

1alolg 33ueynioiu) 9z Ny - peoy Moday - 55|

spucg gy) - Wesdold 10ANg oy WL 35414 ISISTY

ysay durpuncis ‘oBeudss 's2a80) ‘WalsAs awdmnbl Guipunog - adieyasig (B33 Ja1ueg ysIy

uonOUdSag JuLIINIY

IA JUSWYIENY - 3517 JUBWABIBY |RIUBLLILIBA0SII Y|

3|1nocawoy Jo ade|IA



J1L-VON
dI-UoN
1-UON
diL-uoN
d11-uoN
JIL-UON
JI1-UON
J11-UoN
JI1-UoN

ananbiew - 411

11-UON
H14-UON
diL-uoN
FE-UoN
diL-uoN
JiL-voy

umoumog - 411

J1L-UoN
JiL-uoN
JIL-UoN

JIL-uoN
AN1-uoN
A1L-uoN
JiL-uaN
4l1-UON
41L-UON
411-UoN
JI1-UoN
J11-UoN
JI1-uUoN
314-UoN

J1L umoiumog

JiL-voN
JiL-uoN
JIL-uoN
FLTRUL
JlL-UoN
A1L-UoN
A11-uoN
JIL-UON
d11-uoN
J11-UON
JIL-UoN
Jil-uoN
JL-UoN
JiL-uoN
JiL-uoy
diL-voN
di1-uoN
J1L-UON
311-UON
AN1-uoy
Ji1-uoN
411-uoN

FN-UON/AL

smelg

SOSEL8

L06'TLYT

$69°LZT
1]
99P'Z8E

paniajsuel]

spung

18337

¥56'9Z1

DGZ'ZBE"T

panjasay
spuny

vZ0-£0
150-10
88L-18
SI6E6
SL6t6
8Iy-S0
BEB-LO
9e80-L0
bS6I-ST
jr410r4)
DELZ-66
r10-20
LPET-66
ET60-80
PSIT-60
691T-60
06t0-50
0L60-TT
£951-2t
BIBI-PI

6b1Z-91
STVI-TL
90€t-01
TOLT-ET
OL6T-5T
TLBT-ST
¥S60°80
¢T0z-51

618-78
185Z-00
EPIL-60
poOi-9t
STIT-pt

£LE5-90

6£9-68

6£0-20
BECT-OT
£9vZ-8L
89rT-81
wLz-00
LELZ-00

060-20
6L£ZT-0T
L16t-ST

BLT-1O
CEOZ-ST
097-86
129Z-66
BrIo-v0

0Z5-L0

91L-08
65786
SSTI-LL
162802

aquny
Iueupin

yoasqdujjog jo adejpp
joouqaunog jo adepa
yooiqduog jo adep
yooqduieq jo adea

yo0iqdulog jo adepn
yooiqduljog jo adeps
¥e0.qdujog jo adejup
300.1q3ujog jo alejpn

smpog Buixe] 41 ananbieyfNSGE 131510 J00YIS Maup Adjjen
NSYE 1LISI [00YIS MAA AD(EA
1YS9E 1351 [O0LIS MMA Adjiep
NSIE 1510 100YIS MHA Aajep
MS9E 1ISIQ 100435 MAA Aagren
NSIE 1UISI JooYIS MaIA AJEA
NS9E WISIO J00YIS MIIA AdjjEA
NSIE INNSIG (004G Matp Ad(leA,
NSOE 1HNSIG (0oY>S maip Adjlep
NSYE 1IMISIQ |00Y35 MAIA Aajjep
NSOE 1HISIA |00Y35 MAIA Aajlep

NSSE 13510 |00y35 M3AtA A3ljeA

PDNSIO vondaoag )4 Wowa T sdiod) Auny 5N/MEND 15803 51

UDIIRIDOSSY LONeaIIay (E133dS AROD- 1)
UONEPOSSY U0Ne3s3dY [e13ads Ayuno)-u)
UDNEIIDSSY UONRAIIAY [B13ads AJUNOT-ta]
UONE|IOSSY UDESIIBY |erdds Auno)-11)
a20)yse) asvodsay AJDEIaW] JOLENUNLI032]aY
SI0U)| JO DIEIS

diysiaquiayy ysiy 10) Azuady 1samyIinog

70Z 1311810 |00Y35 payuielg

WAWaasdy uonaloly ang opuepn

uOfeI205SY UONEDLAY [ERads AJUN0D [ LIAYLIoN
Aoualy sa1em UONRY WL AIUNOY) |1, WIBYLION
(LY3W3N) Bures | (euoray-minpy 1583 Yo
[SVYaVIN) WaIsAS waepy xog piy [eniny

penbs sanoey eary uejodoslayy

VLIH/YYLIW

[DET

enap

120510 peoy diysumo] podydon

1VSI] peoy diysumo) Jodyoo]

WNISHY yieg dlysumoy Jrodydo

ns1q Y1ed diysumop wodyiol

10510 e diysumo] podyaol

diysumo] wotyaoy

diysumo] yodyao)

1HNSIQ USNIBI0LY 4 podyao]

1510 UONIB014 343 Lodydo]

1IHI51(] UORIDIOIG A4 LOdXIO]

1IHNSIA UDIIBI0N a4 HodyIa]

1INSIQ qrey diysumo] Lod a0y 1210513 Jied Juowa
AW By UoNIFI0N] di14 JuOwa]

JDIUDY SUCNEIUNWIWIOY) ABMEIE]

Apoyiny Lioganof

it uawasisy

8T-L1 M

sywawanosdw) peoy ynig

1ajsuel] RUONMNPLURT 18205 INSTT

@14 = Jualaaidy piy |ennyy

24} - Jawady asuodsay 15014

WawWaaIdy PUUDIUY JDMO] JDIBAN 3ANQ d1anbuey

UONIIPEIN] - UDISU)IXNT PIRAGINOY LoISUNLIaY

Aemyied speosssos) pOOT ANiqisuodsay uiepy sa1ep

4001q3u|0g 0] J3§5UBI| Y44 - SPOO4 WRUEND aZIeyIsi] JAIEMBISEAY

uohiod joorgujog - PIRA3|ROY J31UD]) 0] ABMYIEd SUBIIIA - Sunepnsay Aemyied SPEOILE0ID
AAUBIU) 121U vonendsuel ) “saquaiul siuawsacrdw) NIH JY “aaluesens snjding 3))
{uai3sapn} 107 Buyed pue a3 yieq oy

WAWAIBY PULRILY 1BMO] IDIBAN BALI d1anbueyy

uoneusojut jeunu) jo Juipodar e3oidizay

YIEd 558UISNY - BIRULL] N SGT - JaMOL JB1EM - Wawdinb3 euuduy - Uawaddy el
Wwawaaady dureys Angoey

13143] UD|1ea1IY aY) e swesdoiy |ooYdS JB)Y

Aypaey voneuodsuel] 1UISIQ [C0YIS MIIA Aagen

100435 IH DY - Butidg ashy [ep3ads - wawdopaag Jo yun pauuely

J2)U UONEAIIBY A 1e sweidord [0oYDS 13Ny

'BIULIUD [00YIS YH 3)|IA0WOY MALt 23Eaa3 (m 1By 33alosd

uanezeus)s PEOY |EJIRIN PUR £G 2IN0Y SY) DILTI|IIL) O} UIEL 3310} J9MBAS AJRYUES B 21EI0(3] 0} JUDLWISe]
1331410 WOS|EN [00YIS-3N0g

s1alueg ysiy [eued diyg pue ABNWES a3e3iy’ - LONEIINKIMIOD PUE S3INPaI0IY 35u0dsaYy AJuaBisusy
JA1Q ISONUTIN (T dsea)

vusg Alunog 1] - Juawaasdy jo sapiuy

SMET-AQ YHS puswy

WBaWBAIBY JO S3PILY YHE PuaWY

SUONEUNWILIOIFA] Aduafiawg piy |[eEmny

weidord Auadolgd snyding |esapagy uy aleddiuey

1004 32uensu) Anjiger) pue dwo 13xI0M - diysiaquiayy 41y 10 AJuddy 1samyinog
uonewogu) |euiuiy jo Sunsodas [eaoidiay

533135 Yjedsiq auy 1163

AN FSONUON OT JO Jjes

AUBWOD 1218 A, 2] WEIBLY SIOU) JO WDIUSIRDIY UBWOE IUIUIL] S33quapy YAV IIMN
1HIWIN Ym sniers uedianieg Ajaap

244+ WasAS wiejy Xog piy (enIny

uonedidiued 83104 yse| SNV

HONeIS uies) Jopuo] sBejuay eslap - vonesad UDNeIS EJ13W

uoisuedx3 107 Suyied UONELS d)|IADaWeY Jo uSIsaq ans pue Supaaurdul

sadeds 09T - uojsuedx3 107 Juijied UONEIS A[IACIAWOY JO UCHINIISUC])

UONPSUN( Peoy lojie]

UON2PSUINT pEDY J0jABL

PR [EenINp 221|104

ajuepien vonIduLe) Jeas-§ Aynn AljiIes Woonsay J00PINY YIBd 135uUng

Aupaey yied sorem sje4 adelsal 10) JWwawdasdy IJeY JOMIG PUE JDIEAN

FIUBURUIE Y peoy Lodiny

wsAs vans Jujuiepn 1oomng ue Jo vonesadp

334 - QIv ewoiny

UBWAITY euualuy JAMOL 1218 DAL JOjABL

WawaaiBy Auadosg paseys uoiIal0g a4 Hodyao)

wawaasdy Auadoig paIeys uoilaaioig a4 Podyao]

U011e42055Y UONEaIaY |B13ads Auno) Jiim WBYUOoN - S32IM3S UCIESIIaY |ey3ads
SJI0ULIA] UIELIA) JO UONIAN0IG AN4

STNAIBG YNEDSI BI14 UL 33404 TT63

peoy suiydoy 3 vosuedxy podiy

AT TRTET, FUEITEET): (7

W JuBWIY2eNY - ISIT JUaWSI8Y |ejusluuIaA0gIalY|

3||1roswWoy Jo age|)Ia



JI1-uoN - {Asaunay oBu3) YAGd ‘Maal jo PIEDY AUNO) [P ‘SILLISS3SSY
10 Jospuadng AJuna) [ian ossassy diysuma) aBegng 13msig

WAUIIEqY CNNDSOK aPIACIWOY “1NsI] AuTign) J)jand 3jEpuIeIunDy

"1IHASIA AJeagr] 120 Ay ‘diysumol aBedng 1nsiQ Rieg Juowal

I 515 “PUISK] UDPIFN0NY 2414 IWOWST ‘SZ5 13SI aBa0D soing Jator
‘SDZ "N 1211510 10635 YIIH diysumog LodyI0] 76 ON 1Sy
100435 AIURDY [IAY ‘$3L1510 3MB531d 152004 AIUNOJ 1A% "AIuno) (1A
dIL-UoN  DOO'L - 6TOT-ET dnoyg suonesadg jeaads - JusYs AJUNOD (I
EITRL & . 9512-96 Hu2uS AJunog Jm
diL-voy = 5 1L02-91 HU24S AUNoD |1'M
JIL UON/4IE umolumeq - 1£60-80 Lol uawisedag AemysiH AJunod im
JiL-uon - - 1511-60 wauniedag Aemydiy Aunod
J11-uon e . £9E0-50 RIS 152104 AUNOT IR
diL-uon = v 1001-Z1 MBS 35304 AUno AR
JI1-uoN & 1 GL60-TT dnoig uonedasdiy Aunod s
JILUON LIST-ZT dnotg uonedasBly Alunod jim
diL-uoN 6IET-LT dnoig uonedaiddy Awnod im
A1L-uoN - e 1880-L0 yooxqauyiog jo a3ejA g Aluno?) irm
JI-uoy - - 020Z-51 uoneuodsuel) o Wawyedad slaun)l 7 AIUnod i
FITETLY > . TL61-51 (asino) jj00 poomisiy) sansadord o9 AT A1Unod
1n-vop o - BELT00 AUnoD
4H-UON 0 & 166°06 Awno) pm
di1-uoN - - TEOE0 Aunod e
Jl1-uoy - - 9ET-ED Auno)
Ji1-uoN - - 9Z1-£0 Aenc) (pm
411-uon = . €SL-20 Awne) (pm
J11-uoN - - SSL-40 AWnoD |
JI1-uoN = - v5-L0 Aunod |1
JI1-uoN - - 0LL-L0 Awinoy i
J11-uoN . - 1500-80 Auno) i
JIL-UON  000'SE o £ZrL-1t
Ji-ueN L9ZT-4T
JlL-ueN OBTZ-LT Aunod (um
diL-uoN 182241 Aunod (i
JiL-uoy T8EZ-LT Ayuno) i
JIL-vON ozvz-Lt Aunoed s
UMOIUMOC] - 4L - - EOPT-TT 1UsIQ Mg He0 alym
JIL-uon S G $647-00 diysumo) puejieaym
JiL-uoN . e [z a¢ Platjueld Jo aBepua
JL-uUoN ETET-LT Jed 152104 Jo adejp
diL-uon - - S901-ET anQuo siaumo( Jo adeqip
JIUON/EIL PIIIBUEIL [EEEETY TaqunN i usumady
snjels spung spuny FUBLIPIO

8T-LT A3

WABRSBY WAWINNIS JUDWSSASSY [Aaupay 0311)) 177 Fuuygay 1sampiy AQd

$22)n0s3y Jsawdinb] pue a31a19§ 231|0g JO UOISIADI]
13y UONEIYHON JENXAS PHYD

4| pue o e ‘adelons wessem
suawaaoidw Aemyiey s,.Ueidlapn
UOIIIBSIDIU] SALIQ MIIATNE] PUB PROY A0

AEmyIBg SPEOISSOrY 7 PY 19007 - |EUDIS DYjRIL - 1DIUB7) JBJSUE]) BYSEN, - JUBWaAITy Son Aumwwon
judwaanfy vonexauuy Auadolgd aa1asald 152404

uonedasidy ande3

uonedai83y 20313

bt 13y §o uo) d0.88y 22313

JUBYIINU| PEOY J0GIA pUE S5 - SIUBWAN0IdW] Apnls Aliqiseay

UOJEUBINT YUON PEOY UMOIURWIDN PUE “15 YISET 1B PROY J2GaAN 36 Judwaaosdw) poddng

SpeoY piajles pue yapauay 12 Bivalwaandw) fuuapia, peoy pue [eudis uyel|

£5 310y O] UOSPNY Wol) peoy a|pasaden -1a)of

WawWaasdy DpIy [ENINW 3014105 INj0g

UONBULICHY §|5

M) UO[IR] ‘N PUB 3G ddueUMUIEW |eudIS Mjjes)

wiedydiy pue saqa aaueudiuley [eudis aesp

wawddily ABraug 77 asueuajuiewy jeudis el i aPISYIII) PUE JDGIAN

"PY WodXy pue J3Qap 9IUEUDIUIR Y B UONERISY) Ueipay adelspue]

PEOY LOdINY pUe JDOIM U0 S{euSiG J1j4e) JO BIURUIILIBIY 7§ UANEYEISY|

PEOY S04/ UO SUBIE 192N W UIBJUIELL PUE [JBISUN O} UD|5SILLIY

SUBWAA0IHL| pEOY UPSED PUE JAQIM

{saliap) peoy uysen 1§ 1aqam, 0] UALBACIdW) Fuannsuog

{xajdwo) S0 1and) saney aBeipa je ang vondajied uydAlay auoda)y

PY UMOIUELON ©) 1S YIBTT Sudwancidw) peoy Jagam

‘PH UMOILeLLIGH JO 4Ines 0115 YISET JO YiN0S Suawiaacudul) peoy Jagam

[esodsi(] S1MpoIy 1B |EU0SI34 PUE UOENpAp

WasAS 0IPRY TYW QOF - 55220 WDISAS LOIEIUNLIWOT

SIUIWEA0IDW) UOIeAOUDY pue apEIed Aleigr - Wwawaaidy wawdoasapay

Peoy Ja|png o1 1aq3p - Jaysuel) peoy aSejuoly

WawWaakdy aun Aepunog

uoning Awapeay aing ajinoawoy 10) a3ueyIxT INYDA

2§ pue Jajsues) ded JWNoOA gyl

"

uofiey

3
J L

W USWwyoeNY - 1517 JUBWIaISy |eluawulaaogIalu|

3|Aoawoy jo ade||iA



